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Notice is hereby given that the 58th Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held on Wednesday, the 
23rd  September 2020 at 2.30 P.M through Video Conferencing (“VC”) / Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”) 
to transact the following business: 

Ordinary Business

1.	 To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements including Statement of Profit and Loss (including 
Other Comprehensive Income) along with the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in 
Equity for the financial year ended 31st March 2020, the Balance Sheet as at that date and the Report of the 
Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2.	 To appoint a Director in the place of Mr. Sumanth Ramamurthi (DIN 00002773), who retires by rotation and 
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

Special Business

3.	 To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution

	 RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 148(3) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with Rule 14 of The Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification or  
re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force), as amended from time to time, the appointment of 
Mr.R.Krishnan, Cost Accountant (Membership No.7799), by the Board of Directors of the Company on the 
recommendation of Audit Committee as Cost Auditor, to conduct audit of the cost records maintained by the 
Company, for the financial year ending on 31st March 2021, on a remuneration of Rs.50,000/- (Rupees Fifty 
Thousand Only) exclusive of applicable Taxes and out of pocket expenses incurred in this connection as fixed 
by the Board of Directors, be and is hereby ratified and confirmed.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the company be and are hereby authorized to do all 
such acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution.

Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013:

Item No. 3

Based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors has approved the appointment and 
remuneration of Mr.R.Krishnan, Cost Accountant (Registration No. 7799) as Cost Auditor to conduct the audit of the 
cost records of the company for the financial year 2020-21. In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to the 
cost auditors has to be ratified by the members of the company.

Accordingly, the consent of the members is sought for passing an ordinary resolution as set out at item no. 3 of the 
notice, for ratification of the remuneration payable to the cost auditor for conducting the cost audit of the Company, 
for the financial year 2020-21.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of your company and their relatives are concerned or interested 
financially or otherwise in the above resolution.

The Board recommends the resolution set out in Item No. 3 of the notice for the approval of the members.

Notice to the Members

By order of the Board 
For Super Spinning Mills Limited

 	  	  Narmatha G K 
	 Company Secretary

Coimbatore
29th August, 2020
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Notes:

1.	 In view of the continuing Covid-19 pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has vide its circular 
dated May 5, 2020 read with circulars dated April 8, 2020 and April 13, 2020 (collectively referred to as “MCA 
Circulars”) permitted the conduct of the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) through Video Conferencing (VC) / 
Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM), without the physical presence of the Members at a common venue. The 
deemed venue for the AGM shall be the Registered Office of the Company. In compliance with the provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
(“SEBI Listing Regulations”) and MCA Circulars, the AGM of the Company is being held through VC / OAVM. 
Members desirous of participating in the meeting through VC/OAVM, may refer to the procedure to be adopted 
as mentioned in serial No 25 below.

2.	 Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a Member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint a 
proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf  and the proxy need not be a Member of the Company. Since this 
AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA Circulars through VC / OAVM, physical attendance of Members has 
been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the Members will not be available 
for the AGM and hence the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Notice.

3.	 Institutional / Corporate Shareholders (i.e. other than individuals / HUF, NRI, etc.) are required to send a 
scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of its Board or governing body Resolution/Authorization etc., authorizing its 
representative to attend the AGM through VC / OAVM on its behalf and to vote through remote e-voting. The 
said Resolution/Authorization shall be sent to the Scrutinizer by email through its registered email address to 
mds@mdsassociates.in with a copy marked to investors@ssh.saraelgi.com and enotices@linkintime.co.in.

4.	 The Register of Members and share transfer books of the Company will remain closed from Thursday, 17th 
September, 2020 to Wednesday, 23rd  September, 2020 (both days inclusive) as per Regulation 42 of the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Section 91 of the Companies Act, 2013.

5.	 Members whose shareholding is in the electronic mode are requested to update bank account details (Bank 
Account No., name of the Bank, Branch, IFSC code, MICR code and place with PIN Code) to their respective 
Depository Participants and not to the Company. Members whose shareholding is in the physical mode are 
requested to direct the above details to the Company or to the RTA. Regular updation of bank particulars is 
intended to prevent fraudulent transactions.

6.	 The Company has entered into agreements with National Securities Depository Limited (“NSDL”) and Central 
Depository Services (India) Limited (“CDSL”). The Depository System envisages the elimination of several 
problems involved in the scrip-based system such as bad deliveries, fraudulent transfers, fake certificates, 
thefts in postal transit, delay in transfers, mutilation of share certificates, etc. Simultaneously, Depository System 
offers several advantages like exemption from stamp duty, elimination of concept of market lot, elimination of 
bad deliveries, reduction in transaction costs, improved liquidity, etc. Members, therefore, now have the option 
of holdings and dealing in the shares of the company in electronic form through NSDL or CDSL. Members are 
encouraged to convert their holding to electronic mode.

7.	 Securities and Exchange Board of India has mandated that the transfer of securities held in physical form, 
except in case of transmission or transposition, shall not be processed by the listed entities / Registrars and 
Share Transfer Agents with effect from 1st April, 2019. Therefore, members holding share(s) in physical form 
are requested to immediately dematerialize their shareholding in the Company. Necessary prior intimation in 
this regard was provided to the shareholders.
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8.	 a)	 Members are requested to notify immediately any change of address:

i.	 to their Depository Participants (“DPs”) in respect of the shares held in electronic form, and

ii.	 to the Company or its RTA, in respect to the shares held in physical form together with a proof of 
address viz, Aadhar/Electricity Bill/ Telephone Bill/Ration Card/Voter ID Card/ Passport etc.

b) 	 In case the registered mailing address is without the Postal Identification Number Code (“PIN CODE”), 
Members are requested to kindly inform their PIN CODE immediately to the Company / RTA/ DPs.

9.	 Non-Resident Indian (“NRI”) Members are requested to inform the Company or its RTA or to the concerned 
Depository Participants, as the case may be, immediately:

a.	 the change in the residential status on return to India for permanent settlement

	 or

b.	 the particulars of the NRE/NRO Account with a Bank in India, if not furnished earlier.

10.	 As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Act, facility for making nominations is now available to INDIVIDUALS 
holding shares in the Company, Members holding shares in physical form may obtain the Nomination Form 
from the RTA of the Company. Members holding shares in electronic form must approach their Depository 
Participant(s) for completing the nomination formalities.

11.	 Members who are holding shares in identical order of names in more than one folio are requested to send to 
the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (‘RTA’), the details of such folios together with the share certificates for 
consolidating their holdings into one folio. The share certificates will be returned to the Members after making 
requisite changes thereon.

12.	 Members are requested to make all correspondence in connection with shares held by them by addressing 
letters directly to the Company Secretary of the Company or its RTA, namely, M/s Link Intime India Pvt. Limited, 
“Surya”, 35 May Flower Avenue, II Floor, Behind Senthil Nagar, Sowripalayam, Coimbatore – 641028 by quoting 
the Folio number or the Client ID number with DP ID number.

13.	 In case of joint holders, the Member whose name appears as the first holder in the order of names as per the 
Register of Members of the Company will be entitled to vote at the AGM.

14.	 A member who needs any clarification on accounts or operations of the Company shall write to the Company 
Secretary, so as to reach him at least 7 days before the meeting. The same will be replied by the Company 
suitably.

15.	 In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular dated May 12, 2020, Notice of the AGM 
along with the Annual Report 2019-20 is being sent only through electronic mode to those Members whose 
email addresses are registered with the Company/Depositories. Members may note that the physical copy 
of the Annual Report will not be sent. Members may note that the Notice and Annual Report 2019-20 will 
also be available on the Company’s website www.superspinning.com, websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. 
BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited at www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com 
respectively, and on the website of Link Intime India Private Limited at instavote.linkintime.co.in. Members can 
attend and participate in the Annual General Meeting through VC/OAVM facility only.

16.	 Members attending the AGM through VC / OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum 
under Section 103 of the Act.

17.	 Members may note that M/s. Sethia, Prabhad Hegde & Co., (Firm Registration No: 013367S) Chartered 
Accountants were appointed as the Statutory auditors of the Company by the shareholders at the 55th 
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Annual General Meeting of the Company to hold office for a period of five years from the conclusion of that 
Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the 60th Annual General Meeting, subject to ratification by the 
shareholders at every Annual General Meeting. However, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide notification 
dated May 7, 2018 has done away with the requirement of seeking ratification of members for appointment 
of auditors at every Annual General Meeting. Accordingly, no resolution is being proposed for ratification of 
appointment of statutory auditors at the 58th Annual General Meeting.

18.	 Since the AGM will be held through VC / OAVM, the Route Map is not annexed in this Notice.

19.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account 
Number (PAN) by every participant in securities market. Members holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, 
requested to submit the PAN to their Depository Participant(s) with whom they are maintaining their demat 
account(s). Members holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN details to the Company or RTA.

20.	 Brief resume, details of shareholding and Directors’ inter-se relationship of Directors seeking election/re-
election/ changes in terms as required under Regulation 36 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standards 2, are provided as Annexure to this Notice.

21.	 As per the green initiative taken by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the shareholders are advised to register/
update their e-mail address with the Company/RTA in respect of shares held in physical form and with the 
concerned Depository Participant in respect of shares held in electronic form in order to enable the Company 
to serve documents in electronic mode.

22.	 Annual financial statements and related details is posted on the Company’s website and is also kept for inspection 
at the Registered Office of the Company. A copy of the same will be provided to the members on request.

23.	 Soft copies the Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personal and their shareholding, maintained under 
Section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which Directors are 
interested, maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 will be available for inspection by the 
members during the AGM. Members seeking to inspect such registers can send their request to  narmatha.gk@
ssh.saraelgi.com

24.	 Registration of email ID and Bank Account details:

	 In case the shareholder’s email ID is already registered with the Company/its Registrar & Share Transfer Agent 
“RTA”/Depositories, log in details for e-voting are being sent on the registered email address.

	 In case the shareholders has not registered his/her/their email address with the Company/its RTA/Depositories 
and or not updated the Bank Account mandate for receipt of dividend, the following instructions to be followed:

(i)	 In case of shares held in physical form, kindly log in to the website of our RTA, Link Intime India Private 
Ltd. at www.linkintime.co.in under Investor Services > Email/Bank detail Registration - fill in the details and 
upload the required documents and submit. (or)

(ii)	 In the case of Shares held in Demat mode, the shareholder may please contact the Depository Participant 
(“DP”) and register the email address and bank account details in the demat account as per the process 
followed and advised by the DP.

25.	 VOTING THROUGH ELECTRONIC MEANS

	 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended by the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Amendment Rules, 2015 (including any statutory modification(s), clarifications, exemptions or 
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reenactments thereof for the time being in force), Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS - 2), the Company is 
providing to its Members with the facility to cast their vote electronically from a place other than venue of the 
Annual General Meeting (“remote e-voting”) using an electronic voting system provided by Link Intime India 
Private Ltd (‘LIIPL’), as an alternative, for all members of the Company to enable them to cast their votes 
electronically, on all the business items set forth in the Notice of Annual General Meeting and the business may 
be transacted through such remote e-voting. The instructions to e-voting explain the process and manner for 
generating/ receiving the password, and for casting of vote(s) in a secure manner. However, the Members are 
requested to take note of the following items

I.	 Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and becomes Member of the Company after dispatch of 
Annual General Meeting Notice and holding shares as of the cut-off date, i.e. Wednesday, 16th September, 
2020, may refer to this Notice of the Annual General Meeting, posted on Company’s website www.
superspinning.com for detailed procedure with regard to remote e-voting. Any person who ceases to be 
the member of the Company as on the cut-off date and is in receipt of this Notice, shall treat this Notice for 
information purpose only.

II.	 Members attending the meeting through VC shall be provided the facility of voting through e-voting during 
the meeting. During this time, members who have not already cast their vote through remote e-voting may 
exercise their vote through the said modes at the meeting.

III.	 The Members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also attend/ participate in 
the AGM through VC / OAVM but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again.

IV.	 The e-voting period begins on Sunday, 20th September, 2020 9.00 A.M. and ends on Tuesday, 22nd  
September 2020 at 5.00 P.M.. During this period Shareholders of the Company, holding shares either in 
physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date of 16th September, 2020 may cast their votes 
electronically. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.

The instructions for members for voting electronically are as under: -

	 Log-in to e-Voting website of Link Intime India Private Limited (LIIPL)

1. 	 Visit the e-voting system of LIIPL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:  https://instavote.
linkintime.co.in.

2.	 Click on “Login” tab, available under ‘Shareholders’ section.

3.	 Enter your User ID, password and image verification code (CAPTCHA) as shown on the screen and click 
on “SUBMIT”.

4.	 Your User ID details are given below:

a.	 Shareholders holding shares in demat account with NSDL: Your User ID is 8 Character DP ID followed 
by 8 Digit Client ID

b.	 Shareholders holding shares in demat account with CDSL: Your User ID is 16 Digit Beneficiary ID

c.	 Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form (i.e. Share Certificate): Your User ID is Event No + Folio 
Number registered with the Company

5.	 Your Password details are given below:

	 If you are using e-Voting system of LIIPL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in for the first time or if you are 
holding shares in physical form, you need to follow the steps given below:
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	 Click on “Sign Up” tab available under ‘Shareholders’ section register your details and set the password 
of your choice and confirm (The password should contain minimum 8 characters, at least one special 
character, at least one numeral, at least one alphabet and at least one capital letter).

For Shareholders holding shares in Demat Form or Physical Form

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric PAN issued by Income Tax Department (applicable 
for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders).
l	 Members who have not updated their PAN with depository Participant or in the 

company record are requested to use the sequence number.

DOB/ DOI Enter the DOB (Date of Birth)/ DOI as recorded with depository participant or in the 
company record for the said demat account or folio number in dd/mm/yyyy format.

Dividend Bank 
Details

Enter the Dividend Bank Details as recorded in your demat account or in the company 
records for the said demat account or folio number.
l 	 Please enter the DOB/ DOI or Dividend Bank Details in order to register. If the above 

mentioned details are not recorded with the depository participants or company, please 
enter Folio number in the Dividend Bank Details field as mentioned in instruction (iv-c).

	 If you are holding shares in demat form and had registered on to e-Voting system of LIIPL: https://instavote.
linkintime.co.in, and/or voted on an earlier voting of any company then you can use your existing password 
to login.

	 If Shareholders holding shares in Demat Form or Physical Form have forgotten password:

	 Click forgot password and enter User ID, select Mode and Enter Image Verification code (CAPTCHA). Click 
on “SUBMIT”.

	 In case shareholder is having valid email address, Password will be sent to the shareholders registered 
e-mail address. Else, shareholder can set the password of his/her choice by providing the information 
about the particulars of the Security Question & Answer, PAN, DOB/ DOI, Dividend Bank Details etc. and 
confirm. (The password should contain minimum 8 characters, at least one special character, at least one 
numeral, at least one alphabet and at least one capital letter).

	 NOTE: The password is to be used by demat shareholders for voting on the resolutions placed by the 
company in which they are a shareholder and eligible to vote, provided that the company opts for e-voting 
platform of LIIPL.

	 For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for voting on the resolutions 
contained in this Notice.

	 It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep 
your password confidential.

	 Cast your vote electronically

6.	 After successful login, you will be able to see the notification for e-voting on the home page of INSTA Vote. 
Select/ View “Event No” of the company, you choose to vote.

7.	 On the voting page, you will see “Resolution Description” and against the same the option “Favour/ Against” 
for voting.

		 Cast your vote by selecting appropriate option i.e. Favour/Against as desired.
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		 Enter the number of shares (which represents no. of votes) as on the cut-off date under ‘Favour/Against’.

8.	 If you wish to view the entire Resolution details, click on the ‘View Resolutions’ File Link.

9.	 After selecting the appropriate option i.e. Favour/Against as desired and you have decided to vote, click 
on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “YES”, else to 
change your vote, click on “NO” and accordingly modify your vote.

10.	 Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify or change your vote 
subsequently.

11.	 You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on “Print” option on the Voting page.

	 General Guidelines for shareholders:

a. 	 Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodian are required to log on to 
e-Voting system of LIIPL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in and register themselves as ‘Custodian / Mutual 
Fund / Corporate Body’.

	 They are also required to upload a scanned certified true copy of the board resolution /authority letter/
power of attorney etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorised representative(s) in 
PDF format in the ‘Custodian / Mutual Fund / Corporate Body’ login for the Scrutinizer to verify the same.

b.  	 During the voting period, shareholders can login any number of time till they have voted on the resolution(s) 
for a particular “Event”.

c.   	Shareholders holding multiple folios/demat account shall choose the voting process separately for each of 
the folios/demat account.

d.  	 In case the shareholders have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, please refer the Frequently Asked 
Questions (“FAQs”) and Instavote e-Voting manual available at https://instavote.linkintime.co.in, under 
Help section or write an email to enotices@linkintime.co.in or Call us :- Tel : 022 - 49186000.

Process for those shareholders whose e-mail address are not registered with the depositories for 
obtaining login credentials for e-voting for the resolution proposed in this Notice:

1. 	 For physical shareholders – Please provide necessary details like Folio Number., Name of the Shareholder, 
Scanned copy of the Share Certificate (Front and Back), PAN (Self-attested scan copy of PAN Card),  
AADHAR (Self-attested scan copy of Aadhar Card) by e-mail to investors@ssh.saraelgi.com.

2. 	 For Demat Shareholders – Please provide Demat account details (CDSL – 16 digit Beneficiary ID or NSDL 
-  16 digit DPID + CLID), Name, Client Master or Copy of Consolidated Account Statement, PAN (Self-
attested scan copy of PAN Card),  AADHAR (Self-attested scan copy of Aadhar Card) to investors@ssh.
saraelgi.com or coimbatore@linkintime.co.in .

3. 	 The Company/Registered Share Transfer Agent shall co-ordinate to provide the login credentials to the 
above mentioned shareholders.

	 Instructions for Shareholders/Members to attend the Annual General Meeting through InstaMeet (VC/
OAVM) are as under:

1)	 Shareholders/Members are entitled to attend the Annual General Meeting through VC/OAVM provided 
by Link Intime by following the below mentioned process.  Facility for joining the Annual General Meeting 
through VC/OAVM shall open 15 minutes before the time scheduled for the Annual General Meeting and 
will be available to the Members on first come first serve basis.
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	 Shareholders/Members are requested to participate on first come first serve basis as participation 
through VC/OAVM is limited and will be closed on expiry of 15 (fifteen) minutes from the scheduled time 
of the Annual General Meeting.  Shareholders/Members with >2% shareholding, Promoters, Institutional 
Investors, Directors, KMPs, Chair Persons of Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, 
Stakeholders Relationship Committee and Auditors etc. may be allowed to the meeting without restrictions 
of first-come-first serve basis.  Members can log in and join 15 (fifteen) minutes prior to the schedule time 
of the meeting and window for joining shall be kept open till the expiry of 15 (fifteen) minutes after the 
schedule time.

	 Shareholders/ Members will be provided with InstaMeet facility wherein Shareholders/ Member shall 
register their details and attend the Annual General Meeting as under:

1.	 Open the internet browser and launch the URL for InstaMeet <<https://instameet.linkintime.co.in>> and 
register with your following details:

a.	 DP ID / Client ID or Beneficiary ID or Folio No.: Enter your 16 digit DP ID / Client ID or Beneficiary ID 
or Folio Number registered with the Company

b.	 PAN: Enter your 10 digit Permanent Account Number (PAN)

c.	 Mobile No.

d.	 Email ID

2.	 Click “Go to Meeting”

	 Shareholders/ Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Tablets/ Laptops connected through 
broadband for better experience.

	 Shareholders/ Members are required to use Internet with a good speed (preferably 2 MBPS download 
stream) to avoid any disturbance during the meeting.

	 Please note that Shareholders/Members connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptops 
connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Visual loss due to fluctuation in their network.  It is 
therefore recommended to use stable Wi-FI or LAN connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

	 In case the shareholders/members have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you can write an email 
to instameet@linkintime.co.in or Call us: - Tel : ( 022-49186175 )

	 Instructions for Shareholders/Members to register themselves as Speakers during Annual General 
Meeting

l	 Shareholders/ Members who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may 
register themselves as a speaker by sending their request mentioning their name, demat account 
number/folio number, email id, mobile number at investors@ssh.saraelgi.com from 17th September 
2020 9.00 a.m. to 22nd September 2020 at 12.00 p. m.

l	 The first 20 Speakers on first come basis will only be allowed to express their views/ask questions 
during the meeting.

l	 Shareholders/ Members, who would like to ask questions, may send their questions in advance 
mentioning their name demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at  
investors@ssh.saraelgi.com. The same will be replied by the company suitably.
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	 Those shareholders/members who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express 
their views/ask questions during the meeting. The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of 
speakers depending on the availability of time for the Annual General Meeting.

	 Shareholders/ Members should allow to use camera and are required to use Internet with a good speed 
(preferably 2 MBPS download stream) to avoid any disturbance during the meeting.

	 Instructions for Shareholders/Members to Vote during the Annual General Meeting through 
InstaMeet

	 Once the electronic voting is activated by the scrutiniser during the meeting, shareholders/ members who 
have not exercised their vote through the remote e-voting can cast the vote as under:

1.	 On the Shareholders VC page, click on the link for e-Voting “Cast your vote”.

2.	 Enter Demat Account No. / Folio No. and OTP (received on the registered mobile number/ registered email 
Id) received during registration for InstaMeet and click on ‘Submit’.

3.	 After successful login, you will see “Resolution Description” and against the same the option “Favour/ 
Against” for voting.

4.	 Cast your vote by selecting appropriate option i.e. “Favour/Against” as desired.

	 Enter the number of shares (which represents no. of votes) as on the cut-off date under ‘Favour/Against’.

5.	 After selecting the appropriate option i.e. Favour/Against as desired and you have decided to vote, click 
on “Save”. A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “Confirm”, else to 
change your vote, click on “Back” and accordingly modify your vote.

6.	 Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify or change your vote 
subsequently.

	 Note: Shareholders/ Members, who will be present in the Annual General Meeting through InstaMeet 
facility and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not 
barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting facility during the meeting.

     	 Shareholders/ Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting prior to the Annual General Meeting will 
be eligible to attend/participate in the Annual General Meeting through InstaMeet. However, they will not 
be eligible to vote again during the meeting.

	 In case the shareholders/members have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you can write an email 
to instameet@linkintime.co.in or Call us: - Tel : ( 022-49186175)

IV.	 The voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up equity share capital of 
the Company, as on the cut-off date (record date) of 16th September,  2020.

V.	 The Chairman shall,  at the Annual General Meeting, at the end of discussion on the resolutions on which 
voting is to be held all e-voting for all those members who are present at the Annual General Meeting by 
electronic means but have not cast their votes by availing remote e-voting facility.

VI.	 Mr. M.D.Selvaraj, FCS of MDS & Associates, Company Secretaries in Practice, Coimbatore has been 
appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner.

 VII.	The Scrutinizer shall immediately after the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting, first count the votes 
cast at the meeting and thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in the presence of at 



11

ANNEXURE

Additional information of Directors seeking appointment / re-appointment as required under Regulation 
36(3) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), 
Regulations, 2015) and Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (“SS-2”), issued by the Institute of 
Company Secretaries Of India

The information relating to the directors proposed to be appointed / re-appointed is given hereunder:-

Name Mr. Sumanth Ramamurthi

Director Identification Number (DIN) 00002773
Age 60 Years
Qualification B.S - Electrical Engineering (USA)
Expertise More than three decades of experience in the fields of textile and 

engineering industry. Liable to retire by rotation.
Shareholding in the Company 94,23,860 * Equity Shares
Board Position Held Chairman and Managing Director
Date of first appointment on the Board 22-02-1992
Relationship with other Directors Mr. Sumanth Ramamurthi is not related to any of the Directors 

or KMPs of the Company
Terms and Conditions of re-appointment Liable to retire by rotation
Remuneration last drawn `  50.88 Lakhs
Remuneration proposed to be paid As per Item No. 3 of the resolution annexed to the Notice
Number of meetings of the Board attended 
during the year

4 (four)

Directorships of other Boards Precot Meridian Ltd
Elgi Electric And Industries Ltd
Elgi Ultra Industries Ltd
Super Farm Products Private Ltd
Super Sara Textiles Ltd
Sara Elgi Industries Ltd

Membership/ Chairmanship  of Committees of 
other Boards

Audit Committee
Precot Meridian Ltd - Member
Stakeholders Relationship  Committee
Precot Meridian Ltd - Chairman
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
Precot Meridian Ltd - Member
Elgi Electric And Industries Ltd - Chairman

least two (2) witnesses not in the employment of the Company and make a Scrutinizer’s Report of the votes 
cast in favour or against, if any, forthwith to the Chairman of the Company.

VIII.	The Results shall be declared within 2 days of the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting. The results 
declared along with the Consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the Company’s website  
www.superspinning.com and on the website of LIIPL and communicated to the Stock Exchanges where 
the Company’s shares are listed.



12

To the Members,

The Directors hereby present the 58th Annual Report of 
the Super Spinning Mills Limited, on the business and 
operations of your company along with audited financial 
statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020.

Financial Highlights:

The summary of the financial performance of the Company 
for the year ended 31st March 2020 is as follows.

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars 31.03.2020 31.03.2019

Revenue from operation 14560.63 20812.23
Other Income 443.40 150.12
Total Revenue 15004.03 20962.35
Earnings before Finance 
Cost, Depreciation & Tax

(564.20) (505.78)

Less: Finance Cost 880.50 1265.63
Earnings before 
Depreciation & Tax

(1444.70) (1771.41)

Less: Depreciation and 
amortization

389.56 409.15

Profit/ (Loss) before 
Exceptional Items & Tax

(1834.26) (2180.56)

Add: Exceptional Items 704.00 734.47
Add: Profit from 
Discontinued operations

- (156.48)

Profit / (Loss) before 
Tax

(1130.26) (1602.57)

Less: Current and 
deferred Tax

- -

Add : Other 
Comprehensive Income

(98.60) 673.30

Profit / (Loss) after Tax (1228.86) (929.27)

Review of business operations

During the year under review, your Company continued 
to operate below its normal rated capacity resulting in 
a lower turnover during the year. On account of severe 
working capital constraints, the Company could not 
operate Super A and B units at its normal full capacity. 
Besides this, the cotton yarn market was very sluggish 
during most part of the year affecting the movement as 
well the price realisation.

However, in spite of all these adverse circumstances, 
the Earnings before Depreciation and Interest was at a 
loss of Rs 564.20 lakhs as against a profit of Rs. 505.78 
lakhs in the previous year. After deducting the finance 
costs and depreciation, operating loss during the year 
amounted to Rs. 1228.86 lakhs as against a loss of  
Rs. 929.27 lakhs during the previous year.

Outlook for the current year

In the light of the changing economic scenario and due 
to increasing competitive environment particularly from 
the unorganized sector, SUPER A UNIT manufacturing 
facility has became uncompetitive. Several initiatives 
such as substantial improvements in quality and service, 
cost reduction etc., were taken in the past. However, 
the performance of the Unit did not improve. As the 
Unit is considered no longer viable for operations, after 
considering various options, the Board of directors have 
decided to sell the same in the overall best interest of all 
the stakeholders.

The Board of Directors of the Company, at its meeting 
held on 27th June 2020, approved to sell/ transfer/
dispose off its Manufacturing unit along with 36.26 Acres 
of land situated at Company’s SUPER A UNIT - Kirikera, 
Hindupur, Andhra Pradesh (“Undertaking”), together with 
all specified tangible and intangible assets in relation 
to the Undertaking (excluding its brand name and the 
specific liabilities) to any prospective buyer. Further in 
the Postal Ballot held on 5th August 2020, the same was 
approved by the shareholders of the company. The net 
proceeds from the sale of the Undertaking will be utilized 
to repay the existing loans, employee settlements, 
creditors payments and reduce the interest burden for 
enhancement of working capital of the Company.

With regard to the SUPER B unit, in view of the lower 
working capital requirements for synthetic and blended 
yarn, we have migrated to man made fibres and we are 
taking stringent measures for improving the productiviity 
and reducing the wage cost. 

The COVID-19 pandemic has brought the textile market 
on the whole to a standstill since the beginning of this 
financial year. It has adversely impacted exports as 
well as the domestic sales. Your Company has started 
its partial operations in May 2020. Demand of skilled 
workmen seems to be one of the main constrain faced. 
Despite these challenges, we hope for an improved 
performance during the current year.

Director’s Report
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Change in the nature of business

There was no change in the nature of principal business 
of the Company during the financial year ended 31st 
March 2020.

Transfer to Reserves

During the year under review, no amount has been 
transferred to general reserves. However, the current 
year loss of Rs 1130.26 Lakhs has been adjusted against 
the retained earnings under the head “other equity”.

Dividend

Due to losses incurred by the Company during the year 
under review the Directors have not recommended any 
Dividend for the year ended 31st March 2020.

Share Capital

The issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital 
of the Company as on 31st March 2020 stood at 
Rs.5,50,00,000/- divided into 5,50,00,000 equity shares 
of Re.1/- each. During the year under review the 
Company has not made any fresh issue of shares.

Transfer of Unclaimed Dividend to Investor 
Education and Protection Fund

There was no amount to be transferred during the 
year to the Investor Education and Protection Fund 
established by the Central Government.

Extract of Annual Return

The extract of Annual Return in the prescribed Form 
No.MGT-9 pursuant to Section 92 read with Rule 12 
of the Companies (Management and Administration) 
Rules, 2014 is furnished as Annexure 1 to this Report. 
The Annual Return of the Company as required under 
Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 is available 
on the website of the company www.superspinning.com

Board and Committee meetings

Detailed composition of the Board & various 
Committees, number of meetings held during the year, 
attendance particulars of the directors in such meetings 
are provided under Corporate Governance Report 
which forms part of this annual report.

Statement of Compliance with Secretarial Standards

The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure 
compliance with the provisions of all applicable 
secretarial standards and such systems are adequate 

and operating effectively. The Company has duly 
complied with Secretarial Standards issued by Institute 
of Company Secretaries of India on meeting of the 
Board of Directors (SS-1) and General Meetings (SS-2).

Directors Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134(3)(c) 
of the Companies Act, 2013, with respect to Directors’ 
Responsibility Statement, it is hereby confirmed that:

a)	 in the preparation of the annual accounts, the 
applicable accounting standards had been followed 
and there are no material departures from those 
standards;

b)	 the directors had selected such accounting policies 
and applied them consistently and made judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so 
as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs 
of the company at the end of the financial year and 
of the loss of the company for that period;

c)	 the directors had taken proper and sufficient care 
for the maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of this 
Act for safeguarding the assets of the company 
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other 
irregularities;

d)	 the directors had prepared the annual accounts on 
a going concern basis;

e)	 the directors have laid down internal financial 
controls to be followed by the Company and that 
such internal financial controls are adequate and 
operating effectively and

f)	 the directors had devised proper systems to ensure 
compliance with the provisions of all applicable 
laws and that such systems were adequate and 
operating effectively.

Details in respect of frauds reported by Auditors 
under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 
other than those which are reportable to the Central 
Government

There have been no frauds reported by the Auditors 
pursuant to Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Declaration of Independent Directors

The Company has received declarations from all the 
Independent Directors of the Company confirming that 
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they meet the criteria of independence as stipulated 
in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
Regulation 16(1)(b) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. Further, 
they have also declared that they are not aware of 
any circumstance or situation, which exist or may be 
reasonably anticipated, that could impair or impact 
their ability to discharge their duties with an objective 
independent judgment and without any external 
influence. Based on the declarations received from 
the Independent Directors, the Board of Directors has 
confirmed that they meet the criteria of independence 
as mentioned under Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI 
Listing Regulations and that they are independent of 
the management.

Statement regarding opinion of the board with regard 
to integrity, expertise and experience (including the 
proficiency) of the independent directors appointed 
during the year

Board of Directors have evaluated the Independent 
Directors appointed/ re-appointed during the year 
2019-20 and opined that the integrity, expertise and 
experience (including proficiency) of the Independent 
Directors is satisfactory.

Company’s Policy Relating to Directors Appointment, 
Payment of Remuneration and other matters

The Company pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and in terms of Regulation 
19(4) of the SEBI Listing Regulations has formulated a 
policy on Nomination and Remuneration for its Directors, 
Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management. The 
Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company 
is annexed herewith as Annexure 2 and can also be 
accessed on the Company’s website at the link http://
www.superspinning.com/wp-content/uploads/2019/03/
NominationAndRemunerationPolicy.pdf

Comments on Auditors’ Report

There were no qualifications, reservations, adverse 
remarks or disclaimers made by M/s.Sethia, Prabhad & 
Hedge, Statutory Auditors and Mr.M.D.Selvaraj of MDS 
& Associates, Secretarial Auditor in their report.

The Auditors report includes an emphasis of matter 
relating to COVID-19 Pandemic’s impact on company’s 
financial performance , which is given in the Note no: 52 
to the financial statements.

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments 
made under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013

During the year under review the Company has not 
granted any loans or given any security or made any 
investments pursuant to the provisions of Section 186 
of the Companies Act, 2013. However, the details in 
respect of investments made by the Company in the 
earlier years are disclosed in the notes to the financial 
statements.

Particulars of contracts or transactions with related 
parties

All the transactions entered into by the Company with 
related parties as defined under the Companies Act, 
2013 and Regulation 23 of SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
during the financial year 2019-20 were in the ordinary 
course of business and on arms’ length basis.

The particulars of contract and arrangement entered 
into by the Company with related parties referred to 
Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 including 
certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso 
thereto are disclosed in Annexure 3 (Form No. AOC-2) 
and forms part of this Report.

The policy on related party transactions as approved by 
the Board of Directors of the Company has been uploaded 
on the company’s website and may be accessed 
through the link at https://www.superspinning.com/wp-
content/uploads/2020/06/RPTpolicy_20200610.pdf

Material changes and commitments affecting the 
financial position of the company

Due to outbreak of Covid-19 pandemic and based on 
the directives of the Government of India, Government 
of Andhra Pradesh the operations of the Company was 
suspended on 24th March 2020 and resumed on 04th 
May 2020, in phased manner with minimal work force 
by following requsite precautions/guidelines. This has 
impacted the Turnover and Profitability of the Company.

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, 
Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

The information pertaining to conservation of energy, 
technology absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings 
and outgo as required under section 134(3)(m) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is attached herewith 
as Annexure 4 to this report.
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Risk Management Policy of the company

The Company recognizes that risk is an integral part 
of business and it is committed to managing the risks 
in a proactive and efficient manner. Keeping the same 
in mind, the Board of Directors of the Company has 
formulated the Risk Management Policy. The Company 
does not face any risk other than those prevalent in the 
industry and it has taken all possible steps to overcome 
such risks. However, some of the risks which may pose 
challenges are set out in the Management Discussion 
and Analysis Report, which forms part of this report.

Audit Committee

The Company has constituted Audit Committee in 
accordance with Section 177 of the Companies Act, 
2013. Kindly refer the Report on Corporate Governance 
for matters relating to the composition, meetings and 
functions of the committee.

The Board has accepted the Audit Committee’s 
recommendations during the year wherever required 
and hence no disclosure is required under Section 
177(8) of the Companies Act, 2013, with respect to 
rejection of any recommendations of Audit Committee 
by the Board.

Whistle Blower Policy (Vigil Mechanism)

It is required to formulated a Whistle Blower policy in 
line with the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and Regulation 22 of SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 to 
enable the directors and employees to report concerns 
about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud 
or violation of the company’s code of conduct or ethics 
policy. The Company has a policy which provides for 
adequate safeguards against victimization of director(s) 
/ employee(s) who avail of the mechanism and also 
provides for direct access to the Chairman of the Audit 
Committee in exceptional cases. The Whistle Blower 
policy has been uploaded on the company’s website 
and may be accessed through the link at http://www.
superspinning.com/wp-content/uploads/2016/08/
WhistleBlowerPolicy.pdf.

Corporate Social Responsibility initiatives

The brief outline of the Corporate Social Responsibility 
(CSR) policy of the Company and the initiatives 
undertaken by the Company on CSR activities during 
the year under review are set out in Annexure 5 of this 
report.

The company has adopted a Corporate Social 
Responsibility Policy defining therein the CSR activities 
to be undertaken by the Company in line with the 
provisions of Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013. 
The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the 
Board is responsible for the implementation and effective 
monitoring of the CSR activities of the Company.

Annual evaluation of the Board on its own 
performance and of the individual Directors

On the advice of the Board of Directors, the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee of Board of Directors 
of the Company have formulated the criteria for the 
evaluation of the performance of Board of Individual 
Directors, Board as a whole, Committees of Directors, 
Independent Directors, Non-Independent Directors 
and the Chairperson of the Board. Based on that 
performance evaluation has been undertaken. The 
Independent Directors of the Company have also 
convened a separate meeting for this purpose. All the 
results and evaluation has been communicated to the 
Chairperson of the Board of Directors.

The above criteria are based on the Guidance Note 
on Board Evaluation issued by the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India on January 5, 2017.

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Sumanth Ramamurthi, 
Chairman and Managing Director of the Company, 
retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself for 
reappointment. A resolution seeking shareholders’ 
approval for his re-appointment forms part of the Notice.

Mr. C G Kumar, Mr. Sudarsan Varadaraj and Mrs.  
Suguna Ravichandran were re-appointed as Independent 
Directors of the Company pursuant to Section 149 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 at the AGM held on 28th August 
2019 to hold office for the second term of five consecutive 
years with effect from 1st June 2019 and not liable to 
retire by rotation.

Mr. Sumanth Ramamurthi has been re-appointed as 
Chairman and Managing Director of the Company for a 
further period of three years with effect from 01st April 
2020 and the Company had obtained the approval of 
the members at the Annual General Meeting held on 
28th August 2019.
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Mr. A R Balasundharam (DIN: 07802383), Non-Executive 
Director of the Company, retired from the duties of the 
Board on 31st March 2020. The Board recalled the 
efforts and valuable contributions rendered by him during 
his association with the Company and placed on record 
their sincere appreciation to Mr. A R Balasundharam.

At the Board of Directors meeting held on 27th 
June 2020, Mr. Sanjay Krishna Ramamurthi (DIN: 
08730627) was appointed as the Additional Director of 
the Company. Subsequently in the Postal Ballot held 
on 5th August 2020, the same was approved by the 
shareholders of the company.

Key Managerial Personnel of the Company required 
under Sec 2(51) and Section 203 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, are Mr. Sumanth Ramamurthi, Chairman and 
Managing Director, Mr. B Sathyanarayan Reddy, Chief 
Financial Officer and Mrs. Narmatha G K, Company 
Secretary.

Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associate 
Companies

The Company does not have any subsidiaries, Joint 
Ventures or Associate Companies.

Fixed Deposits

The Company has not accepted or renewed any fixed 
deposits from the public and shareholders, during the 
year under review and hence there were no unpaid 
deposits as on 31st March 2020.

Details of significant and material orders passed by the 
regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting the going 
concern status and Company’s operation in future

There are no significant and material order passed by 
the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going 
concern status and company’s operation in future.

Adequacy of internal financial controls with 
reference to the financial statements

The Company has implemented and evaluated the 
Internal Financial Controls which provide a reasonable 
assurance. During the year, the Internal Auditor of the 
Company were assigned the responsibility for ensuring 
and reviewing the adequacy of legal compliance systems 
in the Company as required under the Companies Act, 
2013. The audit Committee of the Board constantly 

reviews the observations of the internal auditor with 
respect to the internal control systems and their 
adequacy, significant risk areas, control mechanism and 
the operations of the Company. It also discusses and 
implements the recommendations made for corrective 
action through the internal audit reports. The Directors 
and Management confirm that the Internal Financial 
Controls are adequate with respect to the operations of 
the Company. A report of Auditors pursuant to Section 
143(3) (i) of the Companies Act, 2013 certifying the 
adequacy of Internal Financial Controls is annexed with 
the Auditors Report.

Auditors

Statutory Auditors

M/s.Sethia, Prabhad Hegde & Co., Chartered 
Accountants (FRN 013367S) Bengaluru were appointed 
as the statutory auditors of the company for a period of 
five years at the 55th Annual General Meeting of the 
company held on 1st December 2017. Pursuant to 
the amendment of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 
2013, the company is no longer required to seek the 
ratification of the appointment of the auditor at every 
annual general meeting.

The company has received a certificate from M/s.
Sethia, Prabhad Hegde & Co., Chartered Accountants, 
confirming that they are not disqualified from continuing 
as statutory auditors of the company.

Secretarial Auditors

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with corresponding rules 
framed thereunder, the Company has appointed Mr. 
M.D.Selvaraj, MDS & Associates, Company Secretaries 
in Practice to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the 
Company. The report of the Secretarial Audit in Form 
No. MR-3 for the financial year 2019-20 is annexed 
herewith as Annexure 6 to this report.

Further, the Secretarial Compliance Report for the 
year ended 31st March, 2020 issued by the Practicing 
Company Secretary pursuant to Regulation 24A of the 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, has been filed with BSE Limited and 
the National Stock Exchange of India Limited. A copy of 
the same is available on the Company’s website: www.
superspinning.com
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Cost Auditors

Based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, 
the Board of Directors has appointed Mr. R.Krishnan, 
Cost Accountant, (Membership No. 7799) as the Cost 
Auditor of the company for the financial year 2019-20. 
Pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 
2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors is 
subject to the ratification of the members in a general 
meeting. The Board recommends the ratification of his 
remuneration. The Cost Audit Report for the financial 
year 2019-2020 will be filed within the required period 
under Companies Act, 2013.

Maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) 
of section 148 of the companies act, 2013

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 148(1) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Cost 
Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, the Company was 
required to maintain cost records. Accordingly, the 
company has duly made and maintained the cost 
records as mandated by the Central Government.

Particulars of Employees

The details pursuant to Section 197(12) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is annexed herewith 
as Annexure 7 to this report.

Corporate Governance

A detailed review of the operations, performance and 
future outlook of the Company and its businesses is 
given in the Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
Report (Regulation 34 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 
& Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015), which 
forms part of this Report.

The Corporate Governance Report is annexed to and 
forms part of this report. The Company has complied 
with the conditions relating to Corporate Governance as 
stipulated in SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. A report of the 
Statutory Auditors of the Company confirming the 
compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance as 
required by SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is annexed to this 
report and forms part of this report.

Disclosure under the Sexual Harassment of 
Women at workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 
Redressal) Act, 2013

The Company has in place a policy on Sexual 
Harassment of Women at workplace in line with the 
requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at 
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 
2013.

Internal Complaint Committee has been setup to redress 
complaints received regularly. There was no compliant 
received from any employee during the financial year 
2019-20 and hence no complaint is outstanding as on 
31st March ,2020 for redressal.

Personnel Relations

The Company continues to enjoy the cordial relationship 
with its employees at all levels.
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Annexure 1

FORM No. MGT-9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

as on the financial year ended on 31.03.2020

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of  
the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I.	 REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

i) CIN L17111TZ1962PLC001200

ii) Registration Date 06.06.1962

iii) Name of the Company SUPER SPINNING MILLS LIMITED

iv) Category / Sub-Category of the Company Public Limited Company having share capital / Non 
Government Company

v) Address of the Registered office and contact details ‘Elgi Towers’,
PB 7113, Green Fields, Puliakulam Road,
Coimbatore 641 045
Tel 	 :	 0422-2311711
Fax	 :	 0422-2311611
E-mail	 :	 investors@ssh.saraelgi.com
Website	 :	 www.superspinning.com

vi) Whether listed company Yes

vii) Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar 
and Transfer Agent, if any 

Link Intime India Private Limited,
“Surya”, 35, May Flower Avenue,
Behind Senthil Nagar,
Sowripalayam Road
Coimbatore 641 028
Phone	 :	 0422-2314792, 2315792
Fax 	 :	 022-2314792
Email ID	 :	 coimbatore@linkintime.co.in

II. 	 PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-

S. No Name and Description of main 
products / services

NIC Code of the Product / 
service

% to total turnover of the 
company

1 Cotton Yarn 13111 93.02%

III.	 PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

	 The Company does not have any holding, subsidiary or associate companies.
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IV.	 SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

i) 	 Category-wise Share Holding

S No
Category of 

Shareholders

No. Of Shares held at the beginning of the 
year (as on 01.04.2019)

No. Of Shares held at the

end of the year (as on 31.03.2020)

% 
Change 
during 

the 
year

Demat Physical Total
% of Total 

Shares
Demat Physical Total

% of 
Total 

Shares
(A) Promoters

[1] Indian

(a) Individuals / HUF 18396410 - 18396410 33.45 18396410 - 18396410 33.45 -

(b) Central Government - - - - - - - - -

(c) State 
Government(s)

- - - - - - - - -

(d) Bodies Corporate 3611910 - 3611910 6.57 3611914 - 3611914 6.57 -

(e) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - -

(d) Any Other - Trust 1362910 - 1362910 2.48 1362910 - 1362910 2.48 -
Sub Total (A)(1) 23371230 - 23371230 42.50 23371234 - 23371234 42.50 -

[2] Foreign

(a) NRIs - Individuals - - - - - - - - -

(b) Others - Individuals - - - - - - - - -

(c) Bodies Corporate - - - - - - - - -

(d) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - -

(e) Any Other - - - - - - - - -

Sub Total (A)(2) - - - - - - - - -
Total Shareholding 
of Promoter and 
Promoter Group 
(A)=(A)(1)+(A)(2)

23371230 - 23371230 42.50 23371234 - 23371234 42.50 -

(B) Public 
Shareholding

[1] Institutions

(a) Mutual Funds 1470 - 1470 - 1470 - 1470 - -

(b) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - -

(c) Central Government - - - - - - - - -

(d) State 
Government(s)

- - - - - - - - -

(e) Venture Capital 
Funds

- - - - - - - - -

(f) Insurance 
Companies

- - - - - - - - -
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S No
Category of 

Shareholders

No. Of Shares held at the beginning of the 
year (as on 01.04.2019)

No. Of Shares held at the

end of the year (as on 31.03.2020)

% 
Change 
during 

the 
year

Demat Physical Total
% of Total 

Shares
Demat Physical Total

% of 
Total 

Shares

(g) FIIs - 1000 1000 - - 1000 1000 - -

(h) Foreign Venture 
Capital Funds

- - - - - - - - -

(i) Others (Specify) - - - - - - - - -
Sub Total (B)(1) 1470 1000 2470 - 1470 1000 2470 - -

[2] Non-Institutions

(a) Bodies Corporate

I) Indian 2906292 18000 2924292 5.32 2626239 18000 2644239 4.81 (0.51)

Ii) Overseas - - - - - - - - -

(b) Individuals

(i) Individual 
shareholders 
holding nominal 
share capital upto 
Rs. 1 lakh.

20445593 1070310 21515903 39.12 20657884 869433 21527317 39.14 0.02

(ii) Individual 
shareholders 
holding nominal 
share capital in 
excess of Rs. 1 lakh

2886898 220110 3107008 5.65 3425928 220110 3646038 6.63 0.98

(c) Others - - - - - - - - -

(i) Clearing Member 172090 - 172090 0.31 50191 - 50191 0.09 (0.22)

(ii) NRI 446926 - 446926 0.81 464556 - 464556 0.84 0.03

(iii) HUF 2340574 - 2340574 4.26 2326545 - 2326545 4.23 (0.03)

(iv) Market Maker 26529 - 26529 0.05 - - - - (0.05)

(v) Any Other 1092978 - 1092978 1.98 967410 - 967410 1.76 (0.22)

Sub Total (B)(2) 30317880 1308420 31626300 57.50 30518753 1107543 31626296 57.50 -
Total Public 
Shareholding 
(B)=(B)(1)+(B)(2)

30319350 1309420 31628770 57.50 30520223 1108543 31628766 57.50 -

(C) Shares held by 
custodian for GDRs 
& ADRs

- - - - - - - - `-

Total (A)+(B)+(C) 53690580 1309420 55000000 100.00 53891457 1108543 55000000 100.00 -
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ii) 	 Shareholding of Promoters

S 
No

Shareholder’s Name

No. Of shares held at the beginning of 
the year (as on 01.04.2019)

No. Of shares held at the end of the 
year (as on 31.03.2020)

% Change 
during the 

year

No. of 
shares 
held

% of total 
Shares 
of the 

company

% of Shares 
Pledged / 

encumbered to 
total shares

No. of 
shares 
held

% of total 
Shares 
of the 

company

% of Shares 
Pledged / 

encumbered to 
total shares

% change in 
shareholding 

during the 
year

1 Sumanth.R. 8790530 15.98 - 8790530 15.98 - -

2 Nikhil Govind 
Ramamurthi

4000000 7.27 - 4000000 7.27 - -

3 Sanjay Krishna 
Ramamurthi

4000000 7.27 - 4000000 7.27 - -

4 Super Farm Products 
(P) Ltd

2845914 5.17 - 2845914 5.17 - -

5 Elgi Electric And 
Industries Ltd

765996 1.39 - 766000 1.39 - -

6 Nikhil Govind 
Ramamurthi Family 
Trust

681800 1.24 - 681800 1.24 - -

7 Sanjay Krishna 
Ramamurthi Family 
Trust

681110 1.24 - 681110 1.24 - -

8 Sumanth R (HUF) 650000 1.18 - 650000 1.18 - -

9 Ranganayaki N 314670 0.57 - 314670 0.57 - -

10 Hemalatha R 208000 0.38 - 208000 0.38 - -

11 Chitra Vidyaprakash 157680 0.28 - 157680 0.28 - -

12 Nithya Vidyaprakash 92560 0.17 - 92560 0.17 -

13 D Vidyaprakash 76330 0.14 - 76330 0.14 - -

14 Indira Lakshmi 
Vidyaprakash 

46190 0.08 - 46190 0.08 - -

15 Nivedita Lakshmi 
Narayanaswamy

27670 0.05 - 27670 0.05 - -

16 Arjun Prakash V 22280 0.04 - 22280 0.04 - -

17 N Krishnasamraj 8000 0.01 - 8000 0.01 - -

18 Ajeya Vel 
Narayanaswamy

2500 - - 2500 - - -

TOTAL 23371230 42.49 - 23371234 42.49 - -
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iii)	 Change in Promoters’ Shareholding

S 
No

Name of the Shareholders
Shareholding at the 

beginning of the year 
Cumulative Shareholding during 

the year

Name & Type of Transaction
No. Of 

shares held

% of total 
Shares of the 

Company

No. Of shares 
held

% of total 
Shares of the 

Company

1 Elgi Electric And Industries Ltd

At the beginning of the year 765996 1.39 765996 1.39
Purchase of Shares on 06.03.2020 4 - 766000 1.39
At the end of the year 766000 1.39 766000 1.39

iv) 	 Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders:

	 (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs);

S 
No

Name of the Shareholders
Shareholding at the beginning 

of the year 
Cumulative Shareholding 

during the year

Name & Type of Transaction
No. Of 

shares held
% of total Shares 
of the Company

No. Of 
shares held

% of total Shares 
of the Company

1 Gagandeep Credit Capital Pvt Ltd
At the beginning of the year 1400000 2.55 1400000 2.55
Increase / Decrease in 
shareholding during the year

- - - -

At the end of the year 1400000 2.55 1400000 2.55
2 Nemish S Shah

At the beginning of the year 760500 1.38 760500 1.38
Increase / Decrease in 
shareholding during the year

- - - -

At the end of the year 760500 1.38 760500 1.38
3 Vinodchandra Mansukhlal Parekh

At the beginning of the year 702692 1.28 702692 1.28
Increase / Decrease in 
shareholding during the year

- - - -

At the end of the year 702692 1.28 702692 1.28
4 S Sundravathanen

At the beginning of the year 299530 0.54 299530 0.54
Increase / Decrease in 
shareholding during the year

- - - -

At the end of the year 299530 0.54 299530 0.54
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S 
No

Name of the Shareholders
Shareholding at the beginning 

of the year 
Cumulative Shareholding 

during the year

Name & Type of Transaction
No. Of 

shares held
% of total Shares 
of the Company

No. Of 
shares held

% of total Shares 
of the Company

5 Authum Investment and 
Infrastructure Limited **

- - - -

Purchase of Shares on 14.02.2020 261423 0.48 261423 0.48
At the end of the year 261423 0.48 261423 0.48

6 Anitha Rajkumar Behr ** - - - -
Purchase of Shares on 04.10.2019 18659 0.03 18659 0.03
Purchase of Shares on11.10.2019 41461 0.08 60120 0.11
Purchase of Shares on 18.10.2019 40 - 60160 0.11
Purchase of Shares on 25.10.2019 15499 0.03 75659 0.14
Purchase of Shares on 15.11.2019 131826 0.24 207485 0.38
Purchase of Shares on 22.11.2019 42734 0.07 250219 0.45
At the end of the year 250219 0.45 250219 0.45

7 Sanjeev Vinodchandra Parekh
At the beginning of the year 238393 0.43 238393 0.43
Increase / Decrease in 
shareholding during the year

- - - -

At the end of the year 238393 0.43 238393 0.43
8 Jairam Varadaraj

At the beginning of the year 230870 0.42 230870 0.42
Increase / Decrease in 
shareholding during the year

- - - -

At the end of the year 230870 0.42 230870 0.42
9 Satish Pandurang Mallaya ** 40100 0.07 40100 0.07

Purchase of Shares on 03.05.2019 300 0.00 40400 0.07
Purchase of Shares on 10.05.2019 500 0.00 40900 0.07
Purchase of Shares on 17.05.2019 1200 0.00 42100 0.07
Purchase of Shares on 24.05.2019 300 0.00 42400 0.08
Purchase of Shares on 07.06.2019 100 0.00 42500 0.08
Purchase of Shares on14.06.2019 100 0.00 42600 0.08
Purchase of Shares on 21.06.2019 3000 0.00 45600 0.08
Purchase of Shares on 29.06.2019 3000 0.01 48600 0.09
Purchase of Shares on 19.07.2019 7915 0.01 56515 0.10
Purchase of Shares on 26.07.2019 18705 0.04 75220 0.14
Purchase of Shares on02.08.2019 30407 0.05 105627 0.19



24

S 
No

Name of the Shareholders
Shareholding at the beginning 

of the year 
Cumulative Shareholding 

during the year

Name & Type of Transaction
No. Of 

shares held
% of total Shares 
of the Company

No. Of 
shares held

% of total Shares 
of the Company

Purchase of Shares on 09.08.2019 23873 0.05 129500 0.24
Purchase of Shares on 23.08.2019 500 0.05 130000 0.24
Purchase of Shares on 30.08.2019 500 0.05 130500 0.24
Purchase of Shares on 06.09.2019 1500 0.05 132000 0.24
Purchase of Shares on 11.10.2019 46595 0.08 178595 0.32
At the end of the year 178595 0.32 178595 0.32

10 Devi D
At the beginning of the year 176380 0.32 176380 0.32
Sale of Shares on 27.09.2019 (5900) (0.01) 170480 0.31
At the end of the year 170480 0.31 170480 0.31

11 Yogesh Shah #
At the beginning of the year 161775 0.29 161775 0.29
Purchase of Shares on 07.06.2019 216 0.00 161991 0.00
At the end of the year 161991 0.29 161991 0.29

12 C Muralikrishnan #
At the beginning of the year 160710 0.29 160710 0.29
Increase / Decrease in 
shareholding during the year

- - - -

At the end of the year 160710 0.29 160710 0.29
13 Mentor Capital Ltd #

At the beginning of the year 261423 0.48 261423 0.48
Sale of Shares on 14.02.2020 (261423) (0.48) (261423) 0.00
At the end of the year - - - -

** 	 Not in the list of Top 10 shareholders as on 31.03.2019. The same is reflected above, since the shareholder is 
one of the Top 10 shareholder as on 31.03.2020.

# 	 Ceased to be in the list of Top 10 shareholders as on 31.03.2020. The same is reflected above, since the 
shareholder is one of the Top 10 shareholder as on 31.03.2019.
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v) 	 Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

S. 
No 

Name of Directors and Key 
Managerial Personnel

Shareholding at the beginning of 
the year

Cumulative Shareholding during 
the year

No. of shares % of total 
shares of the 
company

No. of shares % of total 
shares of the 
company

1 Sumanth Ramamurthi*

At the beginning of the year 9440530 17.16 9440530 17.16

Increase / Decrease in 
Shareholding during the year 

- - - -

At the end of the year 9440530 17.16 9440530 17.16
2 Sudarsan Varadaraj

At the beginning of the year 72810 0.13 72810 0.13

Increase / Decrease in 
Shareholding during the year 

- - - -

At the end of the year 72810 0.13 72810 0.13
3 C G Kumar

NIL

4 Suguna Ravichandran

5 B Lakhsmi Narayana

6 A R Balasundharam #

8 C S K Prabhu**

9 B Vijayakumar **

10 Sathyanarayana Reddy

11 Narmatha G K

* 	 Including 6,50,000 shares held in HUF

# 	 Resigned with effect from 1st April,2020.

** 	Retired with effect from 1st June 2019
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V. 	 INDEBTEDNESS - Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding / accrued but not  
due for payment	 (Rs. In lakhs)

Particulars
Secured Loans 

excluding deposits
Unsecured 

Loans
Deposits

Total 
Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year

i) 	 Principal Amount 4601.76 483.00 - 5084.76

ii) 	Interest due but not paid - - - -

iii)	Interest accrued but not due 61.19 - - 61.19
Total (i+ii+iii) 4662.95 483.00 - 5145.95

Change in Indebtedness during the financial year

Additions - - - -

Reductions 1429.81 - - 1429.81

Net Change (1429.81) - - (1429.81)

Indebtedness at the end of the financial year

i) 	 Principal Amount 3172.22 483.00 - 3655.22

ii) 	Interest due but not paid - - - -

iii)	Interest accrued but not due 60.92 - - 60.92
Total (i+ii+iii) 3233.14 483.00 - 3716.14

VI. 	REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A.	 Remuneration to Managerial Director, Whole- Time Directors and/ or Manager :	  (Rs. In lakhs)

S. 
No.

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of MD/WTD/ Manager
Total 

AmountSumanth Ramamurthi
Chairman and Managing Director

1 Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of 
the Income-tax Act, 1961

50.88 50.88

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 - -

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income- 
tax Act, 1961

- -

2 Stock Option - -

3 Sweat Equity - -

4 Commission

- as % of profit

- others - -

5 Others - -
Total (A) 50.88 50.88

 Ceiling as per the Act As per Schedule V
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B. 	 Remuneration to Other Directors

(Rs. In Lakhs)

S 
No

Particulars of 
Remuneration

Name of Directors
Total 

AmountCSK 
Prabhu

B.Vijaya 
kumar

Sudarsan 
Varadaraj

C G 
Kumar

Suguna 
Ravichandran

B.Lakshmi 
Narayana

A R Bala 
sundharam

1 Independent 
Directors

Fee for attending 
board/committee 
meetings

0.22 0.02 0.24 0.80 0.60 0.92 - 2.80

Commission - - - - - - - -

Others - - - - - - - -

Total (1) 0.22 0.02 0.24 0.80 0.60 0.92 - 2.80
2 Other Non-

Executive 
Directors

Fee for attending 
board committee 
meetings

- - - - - - 0.92 0.92

Commission - - - - - - - -

Others, please 
specify

- - - - - - - -

Total (2) - - - - - - 0.92 0.92

Total (B)=(1+2) 0.22 0.02 0.24 0.80 0.60 0.92 0.92 3.72
Total Managerial 
Remuneration

0.22 0.02 0.24 0.80 0.60 0.92 0.92 3.72

Overall Ceiling as 
per the Act

Not Exceeding One Lakh per meeting
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C. 	 Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/ Manager/ WTD	 (Rs. In Lakhs)

S. 
No

Particulars of Remuneration

Key Managerial Personnel

Total
CS CFO

Narmatha G K
B Sathyanarayana 

Reddy
1 Gross salary

Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of 
the Income-tax Act, 1961

4.87 15.66 20.53

Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 - - -
Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income-tax 
Act, 1961

- - -

2 Stock Option - - -
3 Sweat Equity - - -
4 Commission - as % of profit - - -

Others - - -
5 Others - - -

Total 4.87 15.66 20.53

VII. 	PENALTIES/ PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type Section of the 
Companies 
Act

Brief 
Description

Details of Penalty 
/ Punishment/ 
Compounding fees 
imposed

Authority 
[RD / NCLT/ 
COURT]

Appeal made, 
if any (give 
Details)

A. COMPANY

Penalty - - - - -
Punishment - - - - -
Compounding - - - - -

B. DIRECTORS

Penalty - - - - -
Punishment - - - - -
Compounding - - - - -

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty - - - - -
Punishment - - - - -
Compounding - - - - -

By order of the Board 
For Super Spinning Mills Limited

Sumanth Ramamurthi
Chairman & Managing Director

DIN: 00002773
Coimbatore
29th August, 2020
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Annexure 2

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

Introduction:

In pursuance of the Company’s policy to consider human resources as its invaluable assets, to pay equitable 
remuneration to all Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and employees of the Company, to harmonize 
the aspirations of human resources consistent with the goals of the Company and in terms of the provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and the listing agreement as amended from time to time this policy on nomination 
and remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management has been formulated by the 
Committee and approved by the Board of Directors.
Objective and purpose of the Policy:

The objective and purpose of this policy are:
l	 To lay down criteria and terms and conditions with regard to identifying persons who are qualified to become 

Directors (Executive and Non-Executive) and persons who may be appointed in Senior Management and Key 
Managerial positions and to determine their remuneration.

l	 To determine remuneration based on the Company’s size and financial position and trends and practices on 
remuneration prevailing in peer companies, in the textile industry.

l	 To carry out evaluation of the performance of Directors, as well as Key Managerial and Senior Management 
Personnel.

l	 To provide them reward linked directly to their effort, performance, dedication and achievement relating to the 
Company’s operations.

In the context of the aforesaid criteria the following policy has been formulated by the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee and adopted by the Board of Directors at its meeting held on 28th May, 2014.
Effective Date:

This policy shall be effective from 1st April, 2014
Definitions
l	 Board means Board of Directors of the Company.
l	 Directors mean Directors of the Company.
l	 Committee means Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company as constituted or reconstituted 

by the Board.
l	 Independent Director means a director referred to in Section 149 (6) of the Companies  Act, 2013.
l	 Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) means-

i.	 Executive Chairman and / or Managing Director;
ii.	 Whole-time Director;
iii.	 Chief Financial Officer;
iv.	 Company Secretary;
v.	 Such other officer as may be prescribed under the applicable statutory provisions / regulations.

l	 Senior Management means personnel of the company who are members of its core management team 
excluding the Board of Directors. This would also include all members of management one level below the chief 
executive officer/managing director/whole time director/manager (including chief executive officer/manager, in 
case they are not part of the board) and shall specifically include company secretary and chief financial officer.

l	 Unless the context otherwise requires, words and expressions used in this policy and not defined herein but 
defined in the Companies Act, 2013 as may be amended from time to time shall have the meaning respectively 
assigned to them therein.
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Constitution of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

The Remuneration Committee was constituted on 31st July 2008 consisting of four Independent Directors. The 
Board has changed the nomenclature of Remuneration Committee constituted by renaming it as Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee on 28th May, 2014.
The Board has the power to reconstitute the Committee consistent with the Company’s policy and applicable 
statutory requirement.
Role Of Committee

The role of the Committee inter alia will be the following:
a)	 to formulate a criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a Director.
b)	 to recommend to the Board the appointment and removal of Senior Management
c)	 to carry out evaluation of Director’s performance and recommend to the Board appointment / removal based on 

his / her performance.
d)	 to recommend to the Board on (i) policy relating to remuneration for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and 

Senior Management and (ii) Executive Directors remuneration and incentive.
e)	 to make recommendations to the Board concerning any matters relating to the continuation in office of any 

Director at any time including the suspension or termination of service of an Executive Director as an employee 
of the Company subject to the provision of the law and their service contract;

f)	 ensure that level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient, relationship of remuneration to 
performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks,

g)	 to devise a policy on Board diversity;
h)	 to develop a succession plan for the Board and to regularly review the plan;
Membership

a) 	 The Committee shall consist of a minimum 3 non‐executive directors, majority of them being independent.
b) 	 The quorum for a meeting of the nomination and remuneration committee shall be either two members or one 

third of the members of the committee, whichever is greater, including at least one independent director in 
attendance.

c) 	 Membership of the Committee shall be disclosed in the Annual Report.
d) 	 Term of the Committee shall be continued unless terminated by the Board of Directors.
Chairman

a)	 Chairman of the Committee shall be an Independent Director.
b)	 Chairperson of the Company may be appointed as a member of the Committee but shall not be a Chairman of 

the Committee.
c)	 In the absence of the Chairman, the members of the Committee present at the meeting shall choose one 

amongst them to act as Chairman.
d)	 Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee meeting could be present at the Annual General 

Meeting or may nominate some other member to answer the shareholders’ queries.
Frequency Of Meetings

The nomination and remuneration committee shall meet at least once in a year.
Secretary

The Company Secretary of the Company shall act as Secretary of the Committee.
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Nomination Duties

The duties of the Committee in relation to nomination matters include:
l	 Ensuring that there is an appropriate induction & training programme in place for new Directors and members 

of Senior Management and reviewing its effectiveness;
l	 Ensuring that on appointment to the Board, Non-Executive Directors receive a formal letter of appointment in 

accordance with the Guidelines provided under the Companies Act, 2013;
l	 Identifying and recommending Directors who are to be put forward for retirement by rotation.
l	 Determining the appropriate size, diversity and composition of the Board;
l	 Setting a formal and transparent procedure for selecting new Directors for appointment to the Board;
l	 Evaluating the performance of the Board members and Senior Management in the context of the Company’s 

performance from business and compliance perspective;
l	 Making recommendations to the Board concerning any matters relating to the continuation in office of any 

Director at any time including the suspension or termination of service of an Executive Director as an employee 
of the Company subject to the provision of the law and their service contract.

l	 Delegating any of its powers to one or more of its members or the Secretary of the Committee;
l	 Recommend any necessary changes to the Board.
l	 Considering any other matters as may be requested by the Board
Remuneration Duties

The duties of the Committee in relation to remuneration matters include:
l	 to consider and determine the Remuneration Policy, based on the performance and also bearing in mind that 

the remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract retain and motivate members of the Board and such 
other factors as the Committee shall deem appropriate all elements of the remuneration of the members of the 
Board.

l	 to approve the remuneration of the Senior Management including key managerial personnel of the Company 
maintaining a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long term performance objectives 
appropriate to the working of the Company.

l	 to delegate any of its powers to one or more of its members or the Secretary of the Committee
l	 to consider any other matters as may be requested by the Board;
l	 Professional indemnity and liability insurance for Directors and senior management.
Minutes Of Committee Meeting

Proceedings of all meetings must be recorded by way of minutes and signed by the Chairman of the Committee at 
the subsequent meeting. Minutes of the Committee meetings will be tabled at the subsequent Board and Committee 
meeting.
Policy Review

This policy was last modified and adopted on 9th February 2019 and will be reviewed as and when deemed 
necessary.

By order of the Board 
For Super Spinning Mills Limited

Sumanth Ramamurthi
Chairman & Managing Director

DIN: 00002773
Coimbatore
29th August, 2020
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ANNEXURE- 3

Form No. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2)  
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties 
referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions 
under third proviso thereto.

1. 	 Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis

     	 Not Applicable

2. 	 Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis

a. Name of the related party M/s. Elgi Electric and Industries Limited

Nature of relationship Mr. Sumanth Ramamurthi, Chairman and 
Managing Director is interested as Director/
Shareholder

b. Nature of contracts/ arrangements/transactions Sales and purchase of goods & availing and 
rendering of services and other transactions 
in the ordinary course of business upto a 
maximum aggregate value of Rs.50 Crores 
per annum.

c. Duration of the contracts/ arrangements/ transactions 5 years with effect from 01.01.2019

d. Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or 
transactions including the value, if any;

The proposed transaction would be carried 
at arm’s length basis and in the normal 
course of business

e. Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any. 27th October 2018

f. Amount paid as advances, if any. -

By order of the Board 
For Super Spinning Mills Limited

Sumanth Ramamurthi
Chairman & Managing Director

DIN: 00002773
Coimbatore
29th August, 2020
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Annexure 4

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earning and Outgo

A)	 Conservation of Energy

i)	 the steps taken or impact on conservation of energy;

1)	 TFO M/c Pot Conversion machineries were installed wherein 30% of energy saving is observed. Out 
of 16 machines 14 machines completed.

2)	 CDS system for Ring frames in place Elite System wherein 20% power saving observed .Out of 31 
machines 13 machines completed.

3)	 T5 Tube lights are being replaced with LED tube lights

4)	 Inverter provided for WRS main centrifugal fan – 5 No.s wherein 10% power saving observed

5)	 Compressor air energy consumption reduced by monitoring and arresting the air leakages

6)	 Energy monitoring system implemented in one unit.

ii)	 the steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate sources of energy;

	 Solar Energy is being sourced

iii)	 the capital investment on energy conservation equipment’s;

	 The Company has invested Rs. 96 Lakhs during the year under review towards Energy Conservation 
equipment’s.

B)	 Technology absorption

i)	 the efforts made towards technology absorption -  NIL

ii)	 the benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import substitution; - NIL

iii)	 in case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning of the 
financial year)

a)	 the details of technology imported; NIL

b)	 the year of import; N.A.

c)	 whether the technology been fully absorbed; N.A.

d)	 if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the reasons thereof;  N.A.

iv)	 the expenditure incurred on Research and Development. NIL

C)	 Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo

	 The foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual inflows during the year and the foreign exchange outgo during 
the year in terms of actual outflows.	 (Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars 2019-20 2018-19

Total Foreign Exchange earnings 755.10 3010.57

Total Foreign Exchange outflow 179.27 455.64

By order of the Board 
For Super Spinning Mills Limited

Sumanth Ramamurthi
Chairman & Managing Director

DIN: 00002773
Coimbatore
29th August, 2020



34

Annexure 5

Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Activities

1. 	 A brief outline of the Company’s CSR Policy, including overview of projects or programs proposed to 
be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or programmes

	 The Company has framed a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy with intent on improving the welfare of the 
people by providing education and basic sanitation facilities to the impoverished classes of people. Besides 
improving welfare, the policy framed in accordance with Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 also focuses 
on environmental sustainability and preservation of national heritage, art and culture. The company also intends 
to promote sports among the rural masses through its various initiatives. The detailed policy on the Corporate 
Social Responsibility has been posted on the website of the Company and can be accessed at the link http://
www.superspinning.com/wp-content/uploads/2015/05/CorporateSocialRespPolicy.pdf

2. 	 Composition of CSR Committee

	 The CSR Committee of the Board of Directors has been constituted with the following directors as its members:
	 Mr. B Lakshmi Narayana	 -	 Chairman (w.e.f 01st June 2019)
	 Mr. Sumanth Ramamurthi	 -	 Member
	 Mrs. Suguna Ravichandran	 -	 Member (w.e.f 01st April 2020)
	 Mr. A R Balasundharam	 -	 Member (upto 31st March 2020)
3. 	 Average Net Profit of the Company for last three Financial Years:

    	 There was net loss for the immediately preceding three financial years.
4. 	 Prescribed CSR Expenditure (2% of the amount as in item 3 above)

	 The Company was not required to spend on the Corporate Social Responsibility activities as the average net 
profits of the immediately preceding three financial years of the Company was in the negative.

5. 	 Details of CSR spent during the Financial Year 2019-20

a)	 Total amount to be spent for the financial year
	 The Company was not required to spend any amount on CSR activities.
b)	 Amount unspent, if any;
	 Nil
c)	 Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below:

	 As the company was not required to spend any amount on CSR expenses the disclosure with regard to the 
manner in which the amount was spent during the financial year does not arise.

6. 	 Reasons for not spending an amount equal 2% of the Average Net Profits of the last three financial years:

	 The Company was not required to spend on the Corporate Social Responsibility activities as the average net 
profits of the preceding three financial years of the Company was in the negative.

7. 	 Responsibility statement of the CSR Committee:

	 The CSR Committee confirms that the implementation and governance of CSR Programs have been elaborated 
in the Company’s CSR policy.  

By order of the Board 
For Super Spinning Mills Limited

Coimbatore
29th August, 2020

B Lakshmi Narayana
Chairman of CSR Committee

DIN: 00504396

Sumanth Ramamurthi
Chairman & Managing Director

DIN: 00002773
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Annexure - 6

FORM NO. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and pursuant to Regulation 24A of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]

To

The Members,
Super Spinning Mills Limited
(CIN: L17111TZ1962PLC001200)
‘ELGI Towers’, P.B No: 7113 Green Fields,
Puliakulam Road,
Coimbatore – 641045.

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to 
good corporate practices by M/s. Super Spinning Mills Limited (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial 
Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/
statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of M/s. Super Spinning Mills Limited’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns 
filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, 
agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, 
the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2020 complied with 
the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance 
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter.

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the 
Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2020 according to the provisions of:

i)	 The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

ii)	 The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

iii)	 The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and bye-laws framed thereunder;

iv)	 The following Regulations prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

a)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015.

b)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 
2011;

c)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

d)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

e)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018
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v.	 The following Law, as identified by the management, is specifically applicable to the industry to which the 
Company belongs,

a.	 Hank Yarn Packing Notification, 2003 issued under Textile (Development and Regulation) Order, 2001 
pursuant to Section 3 of the Essential Commodities Act, 1955;

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

a)	 Secretarial Standards with respect to Board Meetings (SS-1) and General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the 
Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI);

b)	 Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with the BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of 
India Limited;

During the year under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations and 
Standards etc., mentioned above.

I further report that, during the year under review, there were no actions/ events in pursuant of the following Rules/
Regulations requiring compliance thereof by the Company:

a.	 Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of 
Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

b.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2018;

c.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations 2014;

d.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;

e.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; and

f.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy back of Securities) Regulations, 2018;

I further report that having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on the review of quarterly 
compliance reports taken on record by the Board of Directors and on examination of the relevant documents and 
records in pursuance thereof, on test-check basis, the Company has complied with the labour and environmental 
laws as applicable.

I further report, that the compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws, like direct and indirect tax laws, 
has not been reviewed in this Audit since the same have been subject to review by statutory financial auditor and 
other designated professionals.

I further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive 
Directors, Independent Directors and a Woman Director. There were no changes in the composition of the Board of 
Directors during the period under review.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda 
were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

All decisions at Board meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out unanimously as recorded in the minutes 
of the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committees of the Board, as the case may be.
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I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and 
operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

I further report that during the period, there were no instances of:

l	 Public / Rights / Preferential issue of Shares / Debentures / Sweat Equity.

l	 Redemption / buy-back of securities

l	 Major decision taken by the members in pursuant to Section 180 of the Companies Act, 2013.

l	 Merger / Amalgamation / Reconstruction etc.

l	 Foreign technical collaborations. 

M D SELVARAJ
UDIN : F000960B000631117

MDS & Associates
Company Secretaries

FCS No.: 960, C P No.: 411

Coimbatore
29th August, 2020

This report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral  
part of this report.
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‘Annexure A’

To

The Members,
Super Spinning Mills Limited
(CIN: L17111TZ1962PLC001200)
‘ELGI Towers’, P.B No: 7113 Green Fields,
Puliakulam Road,
Coimbatore – 641045.

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.	 Maintenance of Secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My responsibility 
is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit.

2.	 I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about 
the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that 
correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that the processes and practices, I followed provide 
a reasonable basis for my opinion.

3.	 I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the 
Company.

4.	 Wherever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules, and 
regulations and happening of events etc.

5.	 The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations and standards is 
the responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedures on random test 
basis.

6.	 The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy 
or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

M D SELVARAJ
UDIN : F000960B000631117

MDS & Associates
Company Secretaries

FCS No.: 960, C P No.: 411

Coimbatore
29th August, 2020
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Particulars pursuant to Rule 5 of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 
Rules, 2014

ii)	 (a)	 The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median employee’s remuneration for the  financial year 
is given below:

Name Ratio

Mr.Sumanth Ramamurthi, Chairman and Managing Director 17.3:1
Mr. A.R.Balasundharam 0.31:1
Mr. C S K Prabhu 0.00:1
Mr. B Vijayakumar 0.00:1
Mr. Sudarsan Varadaraj 0.08:1

Mr. C G Kumar 0.27:1

Mrs. Suguna Ravichandran 0.20:1
Mr. B.Laskhmi Narayana 0.31:1

	 Sitting Fees paid to Non-Executive Directors has been considered as their remuneration.

(b) 	The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, CFO, CEO, CS or Manager, if any, in the 
financial year.

Name of the Director / CFO / 
CEO / CS / Manager

Designation
Percentage increase in 

Remuneraion

Mr. Sumanth Ramamurthi Chairman and Managing Director                          -

Mr. B Sathyanarayana Reddy Chief Financial Officer                          -

Mrs. Narmatha G K Company Secretary                         14.29%

c)	 The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year: 4.25%

d)	 The number of permanent employees on the rolls of company: 347

e)	 Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other that the managerial personnel 
in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration 
and justification thereof and any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration.

  	 Average decrease in remuneration is -4.00% for Employees and -2.86 % Key Managerial Personnel.

f)	 Your Directors affirm that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company.

By order of the Board 
For Super Spinning Mills Limited

Sumanth Ramamurthi
Chairman & Managing Director

DIN: 00002773
Coimbatore
29th August, 2020
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Management Discussion and Analysis
Industry Conditions and Review of Operations

Following are some of the major challenges faced by the spinning industry.
(a)	 India, which was enjoying a dominant position in international cotton yarn trade, is losing its market share. 

India’s cotton-spinning industry has been struggling with profitability over the years due to a sharp decline 
in yarn exports and cheaper import.

(b)	 Excess spinning capacity in the country and poor demand for yarn from overseas markets has led to 
accumulation of yarn stocks and liquidity crisis in the industry.

(c)	 As a result of this, Indian cotton spinning sector is facing a situation which was not seen in the past one 
decade. With volatility in cotton prices and lack of pricing power has resulted in low margins and low return 
on investment.

Considering all these, your Company continued to operate below its normal rated capacity resulting in a lower 
turnover during the year.  The turnover of the company was Rs 145 Crores as company to Rs 208 Crores in 
the previous year. The Board of Directors of the Company, at its meeting held on 27th June 2020, approved 
to sell/ transfer/dispose off one of its Manufacturing unit along with 36.26 Acres of land situated at Company’s 
SUPER A UNIT - Kirikera, Hindupur, Andhra Pradesh (“Undertaking”), and the same was approved by the 
shareholders of the company through the Postal Ballot held on 5th August 2020. The net proceeds from the 
sale of the Undertaking will be utilized to repay the existing loans, employee settlements, creditors payments 
and reduce the interest burden for enhancement of working capital of the Company.
Opportunities

With consumerism and disposable income on the rise, the retail sector has experienced a rapid growth in the 
past decade with the entry of several international players like Marks & Spencer, Guess and Next into the 
Indian market. European countries have developed friendly ties with India which will result in Good order for 
Fabric and Garments.
The Govt of India Cabinet Committee on Economic Affairs (CCEA) has also approved Rs.1300 Cr for new 
skill development scheme for Textiles. All these present an opportunity to your company in the years to come
Threats

As a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, orders from Asia and Europe has dropped significantly thereby bringing 
the total turnover of the Industry down. Moreover, companies are increasingly thinking about diversification, 
currently focusing on technical textiles; streamlining organisation and production processes; accelerating the 
reassessment of existing supply chains; and accelerating digitalisation and investing in sustainable production. 
Lack of modernization of machineries of our company and high wage cost added with stagnant income and 
slow down in economic growth could also be considered as threats.
Risks and concerns

Considering the large scale disruption in economic activity on account of the enforced Lockdown, optimum 
capacity utilization of the Plant is a cause of concern. Further, there are other risks like high volatility in cotton 
prices, shortage of skilled man power and high power cost. The nature and the magnitude of the risks associated 
with the Company are reviewed and placed before the Board periodically.
Health, safety and Security Environment

Our Company has always been adopting all possible safety measures concerning the health and safety of the 
Workers and staffs at all levels. This has improved the morale among the workers and staffs and also the 
working environment at large.
Human Resources/Industrial Relations

Employer-Employee relations continued to remain cordial during the year at all the units of the Company. Necessary 
measures are being adopted to improve the life, work culture, productivity, efficiency and effectiveness of the 
workers and staff at all levels. Even under the situation of Non availability of skilled manpower, the costs of 
recruiting, training and deploying trained labour still remains a major constraint to the Company. The Company 
has 347 permanent employees on roll as on 31st March 2020.
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Report on Corporate Governance

Good Governance ensures that the best corporate practices are followed by a Company. Good Governance 
underpins the success and integrity of the organisation, institutions and markets. The Directors of the Company 
present the Report on Corporate Governance for the year ended March 31, 2020, in terms of Regulation 34(3) 
read with Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing 
Regulation”).

Company’s philosophy on Code of Governance

The Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance finds expression in a self-governing model of voluntary 
adherence of all statutory rules and regulations, timely disclosures, transparent accounting policies and practices, 
maintenance of the highest degree of integrity and ethical conduct towards all the stakeholders namely shareholders, 
employees, financial institutions, suppliers and business partners. Company believes that sound Corporate 
Governance is vital to enhance and retain stakeholder trust.

Board of Directors - Composition, Category and Attendance

The Board has an optimum combination of Executive, Non-Executive and Independent Directors of which four 
are Independent Directors including one Woman Director as per requirements of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015.

The details of composition of the Board of Directors and number of directorship held in other Companies / Board 
Committees by each member of the Board of Directors of the Company is as under:

Name of the Director Category

No. of  
Directorships 

in other 
Companies ##

Committee of other 
Board’s in which he is 
a  Chairman/Member*

No. of 
Board 

Meetings 
attended

Whether 
attended the 
AGM held on 
28.08.2019Chairman Member

Mr. Sumanth Ramamurthi
(DIN : 00002773)

Chairman &  
Managing Director
Promoter

5 1 1 4 Yes

Mr. Sudarsan Varadaraj
(DIN : 00133533)

Independent and  
Non-Executive

5 Nil 2 2 No

Mr. C G Kumar 
(DIN : 02823567)

Independent and  
Non-Executive

- Nil Nil 4 No

Mrs. Suguna Ravichandran 
(DIN : 00170190)

Independent and  
Non-Executive

2 Nil 2 3 Yes

Mr. B Lakshmi Narayana 
(DIN : 00504396)

Independent and  
Non-Executive

2  Nil 2 4 Yes

Mr. Sanjay Krishna Ramamurthi 
(DIN : 08730627)
Appointed on 27.06.2020

Non-Independent
Non-Executive

1  Nil Nil NA NA

Mr. A R Balasundharam# 
(DIN : 07802383)

Non-Independent
Non-Executive

-  Nil Nil 4 Yes

Mr. C S K Prabhu ** 
(DIN : 00002913)

Independent and  
Non-Executive

2 2 1 1 No

Mr. B Vijayakumar ** 
(DIN : 00015583)

Independent and  
Non-Executive

5 Nil 2 - No

## 	Excluding Directorships in Private and Foreign Companies

Report on Corporate Governance
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* 	 Only Audit Committee and Stakeholders‘ Relationship Committee has been considered.

# 	 Resigned from the Directorship of the Company w.e.f. 1st April 2020.

** 	 Retired from the Directorship of the Company w.e.f. 1st June 2019.

Mr. Sanjay Krishna Ramamurthi is the son of Mr. Sumanth Ramamurthi. None of the other Directors on the Board 
are related to each other.

During the year 2019-20, Four Board Meetings were held at the Registered Office on 30th May 2019, 30th July 
2019, 02nd November 2019 and 7th February 2020.  The Company has held at least one Board meeting in every 
quarter and the gap between two meetings did not exceed one hundred and twenty days. The necessary quorum 
was present in all the meetings.

None of the Directors holds directorship in more than 20 Companies (including limit of maximum directorships in 10 
public companies) pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.  Further, none of the Directors including 
Independent Directors hold directorships in more than the maximum number of Directorships prescribed under 
Regulation 17A of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

As per the disclosures received from the directors, none of the directors serve as member of more than 10 
committees nor the Chairman / Chairperson of more than 5 committees, as per the requirements of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Other Directorships:

Directors
Details of the other listed entities where the Directors hold directorship

Name of the listed entity Designation

Mr. Sumanth Ramamurthi 
(DIN: 00002773)

Precot Meridian Limited Non-Executive-Independent Director

Mr. Sudarsan Varadaraj 
(DIN No.00133533)

Kovilpatti Lakshmi Roller Flour 
Mills limited

Non-Executive -                                     
Non-Independent Director

Elgi Equipments Limited Non-Executive
Non-Independent Director

Elgi Rubber Company Limited Executive Chairman & Managing Director

Mr. C G Kumar 
(DIN : 02823567)

Nil Nil

Mrs. Suguna Ravichandran 
(DIN : 00170190)

The Lakshmi Mills Company 
Limited

Non-Executive-Independent Director

Mr. B Lakshmi Narayana 
(DIN : 00504396)

Super Sales India Limited Non-Executive-Independent Director

Mr. Sanjay Krishna Ramamurthi 
(DIN : 08730627)

Nil Nil

Shareholding of Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Sudarsan Varadaraj is holding 72,810 equity shares in the Company as on 31st March 2020. None of the other 
Non-Executive directors are holding any shares in the Company.
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There has been no materially relevant pecuniary transaction or relationship between the Company and its Non-
Executive Independent Directors during the year.

The company has not issued any type of convertible instruments to non-executive directors.

Familiarization program for Independent Directors

The Company familiarizes its Independent Directors with their roles, rights and responsibility in the Company, nature 
of the Industry, unit-wise operational and financial aspects as per Regulation 25 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The Directors are also appraised about the new products and 
technology related aspects.

The details of familiarization program for the independent directors are placed on the Company’s website https://
www.superspinning.com/wp-content/uploads/2020/06/FamilPrgForIndeDirect.pdf.

Chart/Matrix setting out the skills/expertise/competence of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors comprises of experts who bring in the necessary skills and competence that allow them to 
make effective decisions or contributions to the Board, its committees and the management.

The list of core skills/ expertise/ competencies pertaining to the business, as identified and available with the Board 
of Directors is as follows:

l	 Behavioural – The Board members effectively participate and contribute in the Board meetings and maintain 
board confidentiality. The Board posseses key attributes and competencies on the whole enabling them to 
function well as a team.

l	 Governance – The essential governance, legal and compliance knowledge is possessed by all the directors 
which aids in protecting the shareholders interest.

l	 Technical – The director Possess required skills and specialist knowledge to assist the management in the key 
technical areas. All the directors have the ability to understand the financial statements.

l	 Industry – The directors have necessary experience and knowledge in the textile industry which enables them 
to guide the management.

Finance Financial performance Qualifications and experience in accounting and/or finance and the 
ability to: • analyse key financial statements; • critically assess financial 
viability and performance; • contribute to strategic financial planning;  
• oversee budgets and the efficient use of resources; and oversee funding 
arrangements and accountability.

Risk Risk and compliance 
oversight 

Ability to identify key risks to the organization in a wide range of 
areas including legal and regulatory compliance, and monitor risk and 
compliance management frameworks and systems

Technical Technical forsee Skills and specialist knowledge to assist the ongoing aspects of the 
board’s role

Industry Industry experience Industry experience and knowledge of sector. Understanding of 
government policies and legislative processes.
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The specific areas of focus or expertise of individual Board members have been highlighted in the below chart. 

Name of the Directors/
Skills

Financial 
performance

Risk and compliance 
oversight

Technical 
forsee

Industry 
experience

Mr. Sumanth Ramamurthi 4 4 4 4

Mr. B Lakshminarayana 4 4 4 4

Mr. C G Kumar 4 4 4 4

Mrs. Suguna Ravichandran 4 4 4 4

Mr. Sudarsan Varadaraj 4 4 4 4

Confirmation on the fulfillment of the conditions of independence:

Based on the declarations received from the Independent Directors, the Board of Directors are of the opinion that the 
Independent Directors fulfill the conditions specified in the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 and the Companies Act, 2013 and are independent of the management.

Resignation of Independent Directors before expiry of tenure:

During the year under review, Mr CSK Prabhu & Mr B Vijayakumar, retired  as Independent Directors of the Company 
after their tenure of 5 years came to an end on 31st May 2019.

In respect of the above, Board hereby confirms that there are no other material reasons other than the above 
provided reason for the retirement of the aforementioned Independent Directors from the Board of Directors of the 
Company.

Subject to the above, none of the Independent Directors has resigned before the expiry of the tenure during the 
year under review.

Separate Meeting of the Independent Directors:

Pursuant to the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, the Independent 
Directors meeting was held on 07th February 2020, without the attendance of Non-Independent Directors and 
members of Management to review the performance of the Chairman, Non-Independent Directors and access 
the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company and the Board. The terms and 
conditions for appointment of Independent Directors are placed on Company’s website www.superspinning.com.

Based on the declarations received from the Independent Directors, the Board of Directors are of the opinion that the 
Independent Directors fulfill the conditions specified in the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 and the Companies Act, 2013 and are independent of the management.

Committee of Board

a) Audit Committee

The Board has constituted a well-qualified Audit Committee in compliance with Section 177 of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with Regulation 18 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. Three members of the Committee are Independent Directors including its 
Chairman. They possess sound knowledge on accounts, audit, finance, taxation, internal controls etc.
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The terms of reference of this Committee are as required by SEBI - under Regulation 18 read with part C of Schedule 
II of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015. The powers and functions of 
the Audit Committee are as per Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and The SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The Committee acts as a link between the Statutory and Internal 
Auditors and the Board of Directors of the Company.

The Audit Committee met four times during the year on 30th May 2019, 30th July 2019, 02nd November 2019 and 
07th February 2020. The composition of the Audit Committee and particulars of meetings attended by the members 
of the Audit Committee are given below:

Name Category No. of Meetings Attended

Mrs. Suguna Ravichandran 
Chairperson 
(w.e.f. 01.06.2019)

Non-Executive - Independent 3

Mr. C G Kumar Non-Executive - Independent 4

Mr. B Lakshmi Narayana Non-Executive - Independent 4

Mr. A R Balasundharam 
(upto 31.03.2020)

Non-Executive - Non-Independent 4

Mr. C S K Prabhu, Chairman 
(upto 31.05.2019)

Non-Executive - Independent 1

The Chairman of the Audit Committee had attended the Annual General Meeting for the FY 2018-19.

The Statutory Auditors, Internal Auditors and Executives of the Company attended the meetings to discuss on the 
financials, internal controls etc. The minutes of the Audit Committee Meetings were placed at the Board Meetings. 
The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Committee. The Audit Committee considered and reviewed 
the accounts for the year 2019-20, before it was placed in the Board.

b) Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is constituted in compliance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 
2013 and Regulation 19 read with Part D of Schedule II of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015. The Committee comprises of 3 members, with its chairman being Non- Executive Independent 
Director. During the year under review, the Committee met 3 times on 25th May, 2019, 30th July, 2019 and 05th 
February, 2020.

The terms of reference of this Committee are as required by SEBI - under Regulation 18 read with part C of 
Schedule II of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015. The Committee was 
formed for identifying persons to be appointed as Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and senior management 
positions, recommend to the Board the appointment and removal of Directors, carryout evaluation of Directors, 
formulate criteria for determining qualification, positive attributes and independence of Directors, recommend policy 
relating to remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees.
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The composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the meetings attended by the members are as 
under.

Name Category No. of meetings attended

Mr. B Lakshmi Narayana, Chairman
(w.e.f. 01.06.2019)

Non-Executive  Independent 2

Mr. Sudarsan Varadaraj Non-Executive  Independent 2

Mr. C G Kumar 
(w.e.f. 01.06.2019)

Non-Executive - Independent

Mr. A R Balasundharam 
(upto 31.03.2020)

Non-Executive  Non-Independent 2

Mr. C S K Prabhu, Chairman 
(upto 31.05.2019)

Non-Executive  Independent 1

Mr. B Vijayakumar 
(upto 31.05.2019)

Non-Executive  Independent 1

The Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee had attended the Annual General Meeting for FY 
2018-19. The Company Secretary is the Secretary to the Committee.

Performance Evaluation of Non-Executive and Independent Directors / Performance evaluation criteria

The evaluation of the performance of the independent directors is based on their qualification, experience, 
knowledge and competency, ability to fulfill allotted functions / roles, ability to function as a team, pro-activeness, 
participation and attendance, commitment, contribution, integrity and ability to articulate independent views and 
judgement. Accordingly, the performance evaluation of Independent Directors has been conducted and the results 
have been communicated to the Chairman of the Board.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 37(10) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Board has carried out the annual performance evaluation 
of its own performance, the Directors individually as well as the evaluation of the working of its Audit, Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee, and Stakeholder Relationship Committee. A peer review was done by all the 
Directors evaluating every other Director. They also evaluated various aspects of the Board such as adequacy of 
the composition of the Board and its Committees, Board Diversity, execution and performance of specific duties, 
obligations and governance. Feedback on the appraisal has been provided to the board members.

Remuneration of Directors

Remuneration of the Executive Directors are decided by the Board based on the recommendations and approval 
of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee as per the remuneration policy of the company, within the ceiling 
fixed by the shareholders and within the overall ceiling limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

The remuneration paid / payable to the Executive Directors of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2020 is 
as follows.

Name of the Director Salary, Allowance and Perquisites (Rs in Lakhs) Service Contract

Mr. Sumanth Ramamurthi, 
Chairman and Managing Director

50.88
01.04.2017 to 
31.03.2020
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Note : Remuneration includes Salary, Allowances, Perquisites and Company’s contribution to Provident Fund.

No performance linked incentives were paid. No sitting fees were paid to the Chairman and Managing Director.

Remuneration paid to Non-Executive Director (other than sitting fee)

Except for Mr. A R Balasundharam , Vide a Special Resolution as approved by the members of the Company dated 
28th August 2019, the Company does not pay remuneration to any of its Non-Executive Directors except sitting fees 
for attending the Board/Committee Meeting(s).

Name of the Director
Salary, Allowance and 

Perquisites (Rs in Lakhs)

Mr. A R Balasundharam,
Non-Executive Director

18.00

The Non-Executive Directors are paid sitting fees for attending each Board and Committee Meetings as per details 
furnished below:

Name of the Non-Executive Director Sitting Fees (In Rs.)

Mr. C S K Prabhu 22,000

Mr. A R Balasundharam 92,000

Mr. Sudarsan Varadaraj 24,000

Mr. B Vijayakumar 2,000

Mr. C G Kumar 80,000
Mrs. Suguna Ravichandran 60,000

Mr. B Lakshmi Narayana 92,000

The Company currently does not have any Stock Option Scheme.

Policy for appointment and remuneration of directors, KMP and senior management

The nomination and remuneration committee (N&R Committee) and the board of directors, have adopted a 
nomination and remuneration policy, which, inter alia, deals with the criteria for appointment of the directors, KMP 
and senior management personnel and their remuneration. The remuneration policy of the Company is annexed to 
the Board’s Report and can also be accessed on the Company’s website at the link https://www.superspinning.com/
wp-content/uploads/2019/03/NominationAndRemunerationPolicy.pdf

Criteria for appointment of directors

While recommending the appointment of the directors to the board, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
shall consider criteria / attributes like qualification, expertise, experience of the directors in their respective fields, 
professional or business standing and diversity of the board. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has the 
discretion to decide whether qualification, expertise and experience possessed by a person is sufficient / satisfactory 
for the concerned position.

c) Stakeholders Relationship Committee

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee is constituted in compliance with Regulation 20 and Part D of Schedule 
II of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 and the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with. The Committee comprises of 
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3 members, with its chairman being Non- Executive Independent Director. During the year,  5 meetings of the 
Stakeholders Relationship Committee were held on  29th April 2019, 25th July 2019, 30th  October 2019, 02nd 
March 2020 and 13th March 2020.

The Committee primarily considers and resolves grievances of the shareholders of the Company and looks into 
the mechanism for addressing the same. It also suggests improvements to investor relations initiatives undertaken 
at the Company. It also periodically reviews the matters relating to transfer and transmission of shares, issue of 
duplicate share certificates, non receipt of annual report etc. The minutes of the same are placed at the Board 
Meetings from time to time.

The composition of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee and particulars of meetings attended by the members 
is as follows:

Name of the Member No. of  Meetings Attended

Mr. A R Balasundharam, Chairman 
(w.e.f. 01.06.2019)

5

Mr. Sumanth Ramamurthi 5

Mr. B Lakshmi Narayana 
(w.e.f. 01.06.2019)

4

Mr. C S K Prabhu, Chairman 
(Upto 31.05.2019)

1

The Chairman of the Committee had attended the Annual General Meeting held for the FY 2018-19.

The Company Secretary is the Secretary to the Committee and is the Compliance Officer as per SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015.

Details of Investors Complaints

During the year the Company has received a complaint from the shareholders and the same was attended to 
within 15 days from the date of receipt. There were no complaints pending unresolved during the year ended  
31st March 2020.

Pursuant to Regulation 40(9) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, a certificate on half-yearly basis confirming due compliance of share transfer 
formalities by the Company from Practising Company Secretary has been submitted to the Stock Exchanges within 
stipulated time.

Disclosure with respect to Unclaimed Suspense Account

Pursuant to Regulation 39(4) read with Schedule VI of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company had transferred on 05.07.2014, its unclaimed 
shares to “Super Spinning Mills Limited unclaimed suspense account” opened with Coimbatore Capital Limited. The 
details of the Unclaimed Securities Suspense Account is given below:
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Particulars Number of Shareholders Number of Equity shares

Aggregate number of shareholders and the 
outstanding shares in the suspense account 
lying at the beginning of the year 

483 9,68,890

Number of shareholders who approached the 
Company for transfer of shares from suspense 
account during of the year 

2 1480

Number of shareholders to whom shares were 
transferred from suspense account during of 
the year

2 1480

Aggregate number of shareholders and the 
outstanding shares in the suspense account 
lying as on 31st March, 2020 

481 9,67,410

The voting rights on the outstanding unclaimed shares as on 31st March, 2020 shall remain frozen till the rightful 
owner of such shares claims the shares by submission of the requisite documentary proof of their identity to the 
Company’s Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.

d) Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee:

In compliance with the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Corporate Social 
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, the Company has constituted the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee.

Terms of reference:

A.	 To formulate and recommend to the Board, a CSR policy which shall indicate the activities to be undertaken by 
the Company as specified in Schedule VII

B.	 To recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities referred to in Clause A

C.	 To monitor the CSR policy of the Company from time to time

D.	 Any other matter that may be referred by the Board from time to time or as may be necessary for compliance 
with the Companies Act, 2013 or Rules made thereunder or any other statutory laws of India

The Committee comprised of Mr C S K Prabhu, Mr Sumanth Ramamurthi and Mr A R Balasundharam as members. 
The Committee met on 29th May 2019.

The composition of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee and particulars of meeting attended by the 
members is as follows:

Name of the Member No. of  Meetings Attended

Mr. A R Balasundharam, Chairman 
(w.e.f. 01.06.2019)

1

Mr. Sumanth Ramamurthi 1

Mr. C S K Prabhu, Chairman
(Upto 31.05.2019)

1

Mr. B. Lakshmi Narayana
(w.e.f. 01.06.2019)

-
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However, the Company has not required to incur any expenditure on the CSR initiatives during the year under 
review as the average net profits of the preceding three financial years of the Company was in negative.

Management Discussion and Analysis Report:

Management Discussion and Analysis Report covering matters in Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) for the year under review forms part of the Annual Report.

General Body Meetings

Location and time for last three AGMs held and the Special Resolutions, if any, passed thereat, are as given below:

Year Location Date Time
Special Resolutions passed in the 

AGM’s

2017 Ardra Convention Centre, 
Kaanchan, No.9, North Huzur 
Road, Coimbatore  641 018

01.12.2017 3:30 PM Nil

2018 Ardra Convention Centre, 
Kaanchan, No.9, North Huzur 
Road, Coimbatore  641 018

29.08.2018 3:30 PM Payment of Consultancy fees to 
Mr.A.R.Balasundharam, Non-Executive 
Director

2019 Ardra Convention Centre, 
Kaanchan, No.9, North Huzur 
Road, Coimbatore  641 018

28.08.2019 3:30 PM a. 	Re-appointment of Mr. C G Kumar 
as an Independent Director for a 
second term of 5 consecutive years.

b. 	Re-appointment of Mr. Sudarsan 
Varadaraj as an Independent 
Director for a second term of 5 
consecutive years.

c. 	Re-appointment of Mrs. Suguna 
Ravichandran as an Independent 
Director for a second term of 5 
consecutive years.

d. 	Payment of Consultancy fees to 
Mr.A.R.Balasundharam, Non-
Executive Director

All resolutions moved at the last Annual General Meeting were passed by the requisite majority of shareholders.

EGM and Postal Ballot

No resolution was put through Postal Ballot/EGM last year. No special resolution requiring Postal Ballot is being 
proposed on or before the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the company.

Postal Ballot conducted:

In the current financial year, the Company has conducted a Postal Ballot vide Notice dated 27th June, 2020 for 
seeking approval of the shareholders by way of the following special/ordinary resolutions through postal ballot only 
through remote e-voting;
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1. 	 To approve the sale of undertaking under Section 180 (1) (a) of the Companies Act, 2013.

2. 	 To appoint Mr. Sanjay Krishna Ramamurthi, (DIN 08730627) as Director of the Company.

The details of resolution passed through Postal Ballot and the voting pattern for the said resolutions are disclosed 
as under:

Resolution Particulars
Type of 

Resolution

No. Of 
votes 
polled

Votes cast in favour
Votes cast 

against

Invalid 
Votes 
Cast

No of Votes %
No of 
Votes

%
No of 
Votes

Sale of undertaking under 
Section 180 (1) (a) of the 
Companies Act, 2013

Special 2,21,18,811 2,21,13,246 99.97 5,565 0.03 NA

Appoint Mr. Sanjay 
Krishna Ramamurthi,  
(DIN 08730627) as 
Director of the Company.

Ordinary 2,21,18,811 2,21,13,256 99.97 5,555 0.03 NA

Sri. M.D. Selvaraj, FCS of M/s. MDS & Associates, Company Secretaries, Coimbatore, was appointed as the 
scrutinizer for carrying on the postal ballot process in a fair and transparent manner.

Procedure for postal ballot:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 & 110 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 22 of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended), Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the General Circulars No.14/2020 dated April 8, 2020, No. 
17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 and No. 22/2020 dated June 15, 2020, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, 
Government of India, the resolutions as specified in the Notice of the Postal Ballot dated 27th June 2020 were 
transacted by means of voting through electronic means only (e-voting). The Company had engaged the services 
of M/s. Link Intime India Private Limited (“LIIPL”) for providing e-voting facility to the members.

The members were provided the option of exercising their right to vote on the said resolution through e-voting 
only during the period commencing from 9:00 AM on Tuesday, the 07th July 2020 to 5.00 PM on Wednesday, the 
05th August, 2020. Upon completion of the voting period, the scrutinizer completed the scrutiny of votes cast and 
submitted his report to the Chairman and Managing Director. The results of the voting were declared on Friday, 07th 
August 2020 on the website of the Company, Stock Exchanges and LIIPL.

Means of Communication

The quarterly, half yearly and annual financial results are published in the newspapers viz., Business Standard (all 
editions) and Maalai Murasu (Vernacular paper) and displayed on website of the company www.superspinning.com 
and at the website of Stock Exchanges viz.,www.nseindia.com and www.bseindia.com. The Company regularly 
intimates quarterly and annual financial results to the Stock Exchanges immediately after the same was taken on 
record by the Board. The results are not separately circulated to the shareholders.
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There were no specific presentations made to Institutional Investors or to the analysts during the year.

General Shareholder Information

Annual General Meeting

Financial Year : 01.04.2019 - 31.03.2020

Day, Date and Time : Wednesday, 23rd  September 2020 at 2.30 P.M

Venue : Annual General Meeting (AGM) to be conducted through Video Conferencing 
(VC) / Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM), pursuant to MCA Circular dated 
5th May, 2020 read with circulars dated 8th April, 2020 and 13th April, 2020 
(collectively referred to as “MCA Circulars”), without the physical presence of 
Members at a common venue. The deemed venue for the AGM shall be the 
Corporate Office of the Company.

Date of Book closure : 17th September 2020 to 23rd  September 2020
(both days inclusive)

Dividend Payment Date : Not Applicable
Listing of shares on Stock Exchanges

BSE Limited
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers
Dalal Street, Fort
Mumbai – 400 001

National Stock Exchange of India Ltd
Exchange Plaza, 5th Floor, Plot No. C/1
‘G’ Block, Bandra-Kurla Complex
Bandra (East), Mumbai – 400 051

STOCK MARKET DATA

Type of Security: Equity

The Equity Shares of the company are listed on The BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited. 
The Company confirms that it has paid annual listing fees to “The BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of 
India Limited” for the year 2019-20.

Stock Code

Name of the stock Exchange Scrip code

Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd 521180

National Stock Exchange of India Ltd SUPERSPIN

ISIN with NSDL & CDSL INE662A01027
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Market price data for the year 2019-20

Month

BSE Limited National Stock Exchange

Share Price Sensex Share Price S&P Nifty

High (Rs.) Low (Rs.) High Low High (Rs.) Low (Rs.) High Low

April’19 8.45 6.00 39,487 38,460 8.25 5.80 11856 11549

May’19 7.4 5.27 40,125 36,956 7.35 5.20 12041 11108

June’19 6.44 4.8 40,312 38,871 6.35 4.25 12103 11625

July’19 6.00 4.23 40,032 37,128 5.70 4.20 11982 10999

August’19 4.8 3.6 37,807 36,102 4.95 3.60 11181 10637

September’19 4.3 3.65 39,441 35,987 4.40 3.40 11695 10670

October’19 5.00 3.2 40,392 37,416 4.75 3.15 11945 11090

November’19 5.5 3.75 41,164 40,014 5.10 3.70 12159 11803

December’19 4.6 3.45 41,810 40,135 4.40 3.35 12294 11832

January’20 3.9 3.48 42,274 40,476 3.90 3.45 12430 11930

February’20 3.93 2.93 41,709 38,211 3.85 2.90 12247 11175

March’20 3.18 2.33 39,075 25,651 3.15 2.00 11433 7511

Note: The Face Value is Re.1/-

Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit

A qualified Company Secretary in Practice carried out reconciliation of share capital audit to reconcile the total 
admitted capital with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited 
(CDSL) and the total issued and listed capital. The reconciliation of share capital audit report confirms that the total 
issued/ paid up capital is in agreement with the total number of shares in physical form and the total number of 
dematerialised shares held with NSDL & CDSL.

Share Transfer System

The company’s shares being in compulsory dematerialized (demat) list are transferable through the depository 
system. Shares in physical form are processed by the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents, Link Intime India 
Private Limited and approved by the Stakeholders Relationship Committee of the Company. The Share transfers 
are processed within a period of 15 days from the date of receipt of the transfer documents by the Registrar and 
Share Transfer Agents, if the documents are complete in all respects.  All requests for dematerialization of shares 
are processed and confirmed to the depositories, NSDL and CDSL, within 15 days. All the applications received 
either for transfer or dematerialization will be processed only after getting the approval from the members of the 
Stakeholders Relationship Committee.
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Shareholding Pattern as on 31st March 2020

Category No. of Share Holders No. of shares held % of share Holding

Promoters and promoters group 22 2,33,71,234 42.49

Mutual Funds 1 1470 -

Foreign Institutional Investors/ NRI/ OCB 84 4,65,556 0.85

Bodies Corporate 110 26,44,239 4.82

Public 9849 2,85,17,501 51.84

Total 10066 5,50,00,000 100.00

Distribution of shareholdings as on 31st March 2020

Shares No of Shareholders % of holding No of Shares % of holding

1 - 5000 9102 90.42 83,38,973 15.16
5001 - 10000 455 4.52 35,18,266 6.40

10001 - 20000 250 2.48 35,77,853 6.50
20001 - 30000 84 0.83 21,23,877 3.86
30001 - 40000 48 0.48 17,13,751 3.12
40001 - 50000 40 0.40 18,42,863 3.35

50001 - 100000 51 0.51 38,05,885 6.92
100001 Above 36 0.36 3,00,78,532 54.69

Total 10066 100.00 5,50,00,000 100.00

Demat and Physical Shares as on 31st March 2020

Particulars No. of Shares % to Share capital

National Securities Depository Ltd 4,24,45,273 77.17

Central Depository Services (India) Limited 1,14,46,184 20.81

Physical 11,08,543 2.02
Total 5,50,00,000 100.00

With effect from 1st April, 2019, the applications for transfer of shares held in physical form will not be processed by 
the listed entity / registrar and share transfer agent, except in case of transmission or transposition, in accordance 
with the amended Regulation 40 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

The custodial fee to the depositories (NSDL & CDSL) was paid for the year 2019-20.

Outstanding GDRs / ADRs / Warrants or any Convertible Instruments and their likely impact on equity

There are no outstanding warrants or any convertible instruments. The Company has not issued GDR/ADR.

Plant Locations

A unit B unit

Kirikera, Hindupur, Ananthapur Dist, Andhra Pradesh. Kotnur, Hindupur, Ananthapur Dist, Andhra Pradesh.
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Address for Correspondence and Registered Office Address for Correspondence with Registrar and 
Share Transfer Agent

Mrs. Narmatha G K
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
Super Spinning Mills Limited
“Elgi Towers”, PB No. 7113
737-D, Green Fields,
Puliakulam Road
Coimbatore - 641 045, Tamil Nadu
Phone: 91-422-2311711 / 4351711
Fax Number: 91- 422 - 2311611
E Mail.: investors@ssh.saraelgi.com
Web: www.superspinning.com

Link Intime India Pvt Limited
Coimbatore Branch Office
“SURYA’ 35 Mayflower Avenue
Behind Senthil Nagar
Sowripalayam, Coimbatore – 641 028.
Tamil Nadu
Phone: 91 - 422 - 2314792
Fax Number: 91-422–2314792 / 2315792
E Mail : coimbatore@linkintime.co.in

Disclosure

Related Party Transactions

a) 	 Disclosure on materially significant related party transactions that may have potential conflict with the 
interest of the  Company at large

	 All the related party transactions are entered on arm’s length basis, in the ordinary course of business and are 
in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations. There 
are no materially significant related party transactions made by the Company with Promoters, Directors or Key 
Managerial Personnel etc. which may have potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large.

	 The details of the transactions with Related Party are provided in the Company’s financial statements in 
accordance with the Accounting Standards. All Related Party Transactions are presented to the Audit 
Committee and the Board. Omnibus approval is obtained for the transactions which are foreseen and repetitive 
in nature. A statement of all related party transactions is presented before the Audit Committee on a quarterly 
basis, specifying the nature, value and terms and conditions of the transactions.

	 Kindly refer to the notes forming part of accounts for the details of Related Party Transactions.

b) 	 Details of non-compliance by the Company, penalties, strictures imposed on the Company by Stock 
Exchanges or SEBI or any Statutory Authorities, or any matter relating to capital markets, during the 
last three years

	 The company has complied with all the requirements of the Listing Agreement of the stock exchange as well 
as regulations and guidelines of SEBI including SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015. No penalties have been levied or strictures have been passed by SEBI, stock exchange or 
any other statutory authority on matters relating to capital markets during the last three years.

c) 	 Details of establishment of vigil mechanism, whistle blower policy and affirmation that no personnel 
has been denied access to the Audit Committee

	 The company has adopted a whistle blower policy to provide a formal mechanism to the Directors and employees 
to report their concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the company’s code 
of Conduct or ethics policy. The policy provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of employees 
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who avail of the mechanism and also provides for direct access to the chairman of the audit committee. It is 
affirmed that no personnel of the company has been denied access to the audit committee.

	 Your company hereby affirms that no complaints were received during the year under review.

d) 	 Details of compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of the non-mandatory requirements

	 The company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of corporate governance norms as enumerated 
in SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

	 The company has adopted the non-mandatory requirement of reporting of internal auditors to Audit Committee 
as recommended under Regulation 27(1) read with Part E of Schedule II of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The company has not adopted any other non- mandatory 
requirements.

e) 	 Web link where policy for determining “material” subsidiaries is disclosed

	 The Company does not have any subsidiaries as defined under Regulation 16(1)(c) of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

f) 	 Web link where policy on dealing with related party transactions

	 The Company has framed Related Party Transaction Policy and the same is placed on the Company’s 
website and the web link for the same is https://www.superspinning.com/wp-content/uploads/2020/06/
RPTpolicy_20200610.pdf

g) 	 Disclosure of commodity price risks and commodity hedging activities

	 During the financial year ended 31st March 2020, the Company did not engage in commodity hedging activities.

h) 	 Disclosure on accounting treatment

	 In the preparation of the financial statements, the Company has followed the accounting standards referred to 
in Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013. The significant accounting policies which are consistently applied 
are set out in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

i) 	 Disclosure on risk management

	 Business risk evaluation and management is an ongoing process within the Company. The assessment is 
periodically examined by the Audit Committee.

	 There has been no instance of non-compliance of any requirement of corporate governance report as stated above.

	 The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements specified in Regulation 17 to 27 and clauses 
(b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

j) 	 Credit Rating

	 The company does not have any debt instruments or fixed deposit programme or any scheme or proposal 
involving mobilization of funds either in India or abroad that requires credit rating.

k) 	 Other disclosures

	 The company has not raised any funds through preferential allotment or qualified institutional placement as 
specified under Regulation 32 (7A) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.
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	 A certificate from a company secretary in practice that none of the directors on the board of the company have 
been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the Security 
Exchange Board of India / Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority has been obtained and 
is annexed to this report.

	 During the year under review, the recommendations made by the different committees have been accepted and 
there were no instances where the board of directors had not accepted any recommendation of the committees.

	 The company has paid a sum of Rs. 6,00,000/- plus out of pocket expenses and applicable taxes as fees on 
consolidated basis to the statutory auditor and all entities in the network firm / entity of which the statutory 
auditor is a part for the services rendered by them.

	 As per the provisions of the sexual harassment of women at workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) 
Act, 2013, the company has constituted an internal complaints committee. During the year 2019- 20, no complaint 
was received by the committee. As such, there are no complaints pending as at the end of the financial year.

	 Certificate from CEO / CFO

	 The CEO and CFO certification of the financial statements for the year has been submitted to the Board of 
Directors, in its meeting held on 27th June 2020 as required under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

	 Code of Conduct

	 The Board of Directors has laid down a code of conduct for all Board Members and Senior Management of 
the Company. The same has been posted on the website of the Company. All  Board members and senior 
management personnel have affirmed their compliance with the code of conduct for the year under review.

	 The Directors and senior management of the Company have made disclosures to the Board confirming that 
there are no material financial and/ or commercial transactions between them and the Company that could 
have potential conflict of interest with the Company at large.

	 Code for Prevention of Insider Trading

	 The Company has framed a code of conduct for monitoring the trading done by Insiders based on SEBI (Prohibition 
of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015. This code is applicable to all directors / officers / designated employees.

	 The Company has also formulated “The Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished 
Price Sensitive Information (UPSI)” in compliance with SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015.

	 Declaration for code of conduct

	 I hereby affirm and state that all board members and senior management personnel of the company have given 
a declaration in accordance with Regulation 26(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 and I hereby affirm compliance with the said code of conduct for the financial year 2019-20.

By order of the Board 
For Super Spinning Mills Limited

Sumanth Ramamurthi
Chairman & Managing Director

DIN: 00002773
Coimbatore
29th August, 2020
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

(pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To
The Members of 
M/s. SUPER SPINNING MILLS LIMITED
(CIN: L17111TZ1962PLC001200)
‘Elgi Towers’, P.B No:7113 Green Fields
Puliakulam Road 
Coimbatore - 641045

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of 
M/s. SUPER SPINNING MILLS LIMITED having CIN: L17111TZ1962PLC001200 and having registered office 
at ‘Elgi Towers’, P.B No:7113 Green Fields, Puliakulam Road, Coimbatore – 641045 (hereinafter referred to as 
‘the Company’), produced before me by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance 
with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification 
Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to me 
by the Company & its officers, I hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as 
stated below for the Financial Year ending on 31st March 2020 have been debarred or disqualified from being 
appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory Authority.

Sr. No. Name of Director DIN Date of appointment in Company

1 Mr. Sumanth Ramamurthi
(Chairman & Managing Director)

00002773 22/02/1992

2 Mr. Sudarsan Varadaraj 00133533 13/03/1993
3 Mr. Coimbatore Gopal Kumar 02823567 01/06/2014
4 Mrs. Suguna Ravichandran 00170190 01/06/2014
5 Mr. Lakshminarayana 00504396 01/06/2017

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the 
management of the Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on my verification. This 
certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness 
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

M D SELVARAJ
UDIN : F000960B000631141

MDS & Associates
Company Secretaries

FCS No.: 960, C P No.: 411

Coimbatore
29th August, 2020
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Certification by Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer
To the Board of Directors of Super Spinning Mills Limited,
We, Sumanth Ramamurthi, Chairman cum Managing Director and B Sathyanarayana Reddy, Chief Financial Officer 
of Super Spinning Mills Limited, certify that:
a.	 We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended 31st March 2020 

and to the best of our knowledge and belief: 
i)	 These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain 

statements that might be misleading.
ii)	 These statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s affairs and are in compliance with 

existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.
b.	 There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the company during the year 

ended 31st March 2020 are fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct.
c.	 We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and we have 

evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and 
we have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such the 
internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these 
deficiencies.  

d.	 We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit Committee
i.	 There have not been any significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year 

ended 31st March 2020.
ii.	 There have not been any significant changes in accounting polices during the year ended 31st March 2020.
iii.	 There have been no instances during the year ended 31st March 2020 of significant fraud of which we have 

become aware and the involvement therein, of management or an employee having a significant role in the 
Company’s internal control system over financial reporting.

Coimbatore
29th August, 2020

B Sathyanarayana Reddy
Chief Financial Officer

Sumanth Ramamurthi
Chairman & Managing Director

DIN: 00002773

Auditors` certificate on corporate governance
To the Members of Super Spinning Mills Limited,
We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by M/s Super Spinning Mills Limited 
(‘the company’), for the year ended 31st March, 2020 as stipulated in Regulations 17 to 27 and Clauses (b) to (i) 
of Regulation 46 (2) and paras C and D of the Schedule V of the securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘the Listing Regulations’).
The compliances of conditions of Corporate Governance are the responsibility of the Management. Our examination 
was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the company for ensuring the compliance of the 
conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements 
of the company.
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the 
Company has complied with the conditions of the Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above mentioned 
Listing Regulations, as applicable.
We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the 
efficiency of effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Bengaluru
27th June, 2020

For M/s Sethia, Prabhad Hegde & Co
	 Chartered Accountants                 

Firm Registration No. 013367S
Timmayya Hegde

Partner
Membership No. 226267
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Independent Auditors’ Report on the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) Financial Statements

To the members of Super Spinning Mills Limited

Report on the Financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Financial statements of M/s Super Spinning Mills Limited (‘the Company’), 
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2020, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement 
of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year 
then ended and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies and 
other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as ‘Financial statements’).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
Financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (‘the Act’) in the 
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed 
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, 
(“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 
31st March 2020, its losses including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for 
the year ended on that date, except for the matter highlighted in the “Emphasis of Matter” paragraph forming part 
of this report.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit of the Financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), as specified 
under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the ‘Auditors’ 
responsibilities for the audit of the Financial statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company 
in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the 
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the 
Rules thereunder and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and 
the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion on the Financial statements.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
Financial statements for the financial year ended 31st March 2020. These matters were addressed in the context 
of our audit of the Financial statements as a whole and in forming our opinion thereon and we do not provide a 
separate opinion on these matters.

Emphasis of Matters

Without qualifying our report, we draw attention to:

i)	 Note no. 52 to the financial statements, the extent of COVID 19 Pandemic`s impact on company’s financial 
performance depends on future developments, which are highly uncertain and as such, we are unable to 
quantify the financial impact.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matter.

Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
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information included in the Chairman’s Letter, Management Discussion and Analysis, Corporate Governance and 
Directors’ Report, but does not include the Financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the Financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and in 
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Financial statements or our 
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have 
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that 
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management for the Financial statements

The  Company’s  Board  of  Directors  is  responsible  for  the  matters  stated  in  Section  134(5)  of  the Companies  
Act,  2013  (“the  Act”)  with  respect  to  the  preparation  of  these Financial statements that give a true and fair view 
of the financial position, financial performance including Other Comprehensive Income, cash flows and changes 
in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the 
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act  read  with  the Rules specified in 
the  Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time. This responsibility also 
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding 
of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and 
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
and design, implementation  and  maintenance  of  adequate  internal  financial  controls,  that  were  operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the Financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue 
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless Management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial 
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the audit of the Financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error 
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also:

- 	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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- 	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our 
opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls.

- 	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by Management.

- 	 Conclude on the appropriateness of Management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and based 
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may 
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based 
on the audit evidence obtained up-to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may 
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

- 	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial statements, including the disclosures 
and whether the Financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that 
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of 
most significance in the audit of the Financial statements for the financial year ended 31st March 2020 and are 
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes 
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not 
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to 
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.	 As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a)	 We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 
appears from our examination of those books;

(c)	 The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash 
Flow Statement and Statement of changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the 
books of account;

(d)	 In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under 
Section 133 of the Act, read with the Rules specified in the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time;
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(e)	 On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2020 taken on 
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2020 from being 
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f)	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company 
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure A” forming part 
of the Independent Auditors` Report. Our report expresses a Disclaimer of opinion on the adequacy and 
operating effectiveness of the Company`s internal financial controls over financial reporting;

(g)	 In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended 31st March 2020 has been paid/provided 
by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to 
the Act; and

(h)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to us:

i.	 The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigation on its financial position in its Financial 
statements included in Note No. 42 of the Financial statements;

ii.	 The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were 
any material foreseeable losses; and

iii.	 There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund by the Company.

2.	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order 2016 (“the order”), issued by the Central Government 
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure B” statement on the 
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the order to the extent applicable.

Bengaluru
27th June, 2020

For M/s Sethia, Prabhad Hegde & Co
	 Chartered Accountants                 

Firm Registration No. 013367S

Timmayya Hegde
Partner

Membership No. 226267
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Annexure - A to the Independent Auditors’ Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our 
report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/s SUPER SPINNING MILLS LIMITED 
(“the Company”) as of 31st March 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the Financial statements of the Company 
for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the 
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the 
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting 
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and 
deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of 
internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively 
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness 
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including 
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Financial statements for external purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial 
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable 
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide 
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reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are 
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide 
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of 
the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the Financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of 
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and 
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future 
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Disclaimer of Opinion

The Company was not able to provide us with sufficient appropriate audit evidence on the system of internal 
financial control over financial reporting based on criteria considering the essential components of internal control 
as stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Due to the aforesaid reason, we are unable to and do not provide any 
opinion as to whether the Company had adequate internal financial control over financial reporting as at 31st March, 
2020 and whether such internal financial controls were operating effectively.

Bengaluru
27th June, 2020

For M/s Sethia, Prabhad Hegde & Co
	 Chartered Accountants                 

Firm Registration No. 013367S

Timmayya Hegde
Partner

Membership No. 226267
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ANNEXURE `B` TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of 
even date to the members of M/s SUPER SPINNING MILLS LIMITED for the year ended 31st March, 2020)

We report that:

i)	 (a)	 The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and 
situation of fixed assets.

(b) 	The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed assets by which fixed assets are 
verified in a phased manner over a period of three years. In accordance with this programme, certain fixed 
assets were verified during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In 
our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company 
and the nature of its assets.

(c)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 
records of the company, the title deeds of the immovable properties are held in the name of the company.

ii)	 (a) 	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the management has 
conducted the physical verification of inventories at reasonable intervals during the year under review.

(b) 	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the procedures of physical 
verification of inventories followed by the management are reasonable and adequate in relation to the 
size of the Company and nature of its business.

(c) 	 According to the information and explanations given to us, we are of the opinion that the Company is 
maintaining proper records of inventories and no material discrepancies were noticed on their physical 
verification.

iii)	 (a) 	The Company had not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to any companies, firms or other parties 
covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year.  Hence, 
comments on the provisions of clause (iii) (a) to (c) of the said Order do not arise.

iv)	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has complied with 
the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to the loans, guarantees and investments made.

v)	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year, the Company 
has not accepted any deposit within the meaning of Section 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013, and rules 
framed there under.

vi)	 We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the company, pursuant to the Rules made by 
the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under Section 148 (1) of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 as amended and are of the opinion that 
prima-facie, the specified accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have not, however, 
made a detailed examination of the records with a view to determining whether they are accurate or complete.

vii)	 (a) 	According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 
records of the company, amounts deducted/accrued in the books of accounts in respect of undisputed 
statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, goods and service tax, 
customs duty, cess and other material statutory dues have been regularly deposited during the year by 
the company with appropriate authorities. There are no undisputed statutory dues as referred to above as 
at 31st March 2020, outstanding for a period of more than six months from the date they become payable.
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(b) 	According to the information and explanations given to us, the disputed statutory dues that have not been 
deposited on account of matters pending before the appropriate authority are as under:

Name of 
Statute

Nature of 
Dues

Issues in the Appeal Unpaid 
Amount 
(In lakhs)

Period to 
which the 
amount 
relates

Forum Where 
Dispute is 
Pending

Income Tax 
Act, 1961

Income Tax Disallowance on 
account of replacement 
of machinery

523.74 1993 –94, 
1994-95, 
1998-99, 
2005-06, 
2006-07, 
2007-08, 
2008-09

CIT(Appeals), 
Coimbatore

2000- 01 ITAT, Chennai

APGST Act, 
1957

Sales Tax Disallowance of Stock 
Transfer to branch & Tax 
due on other pending 
declaration forms

162.96 2010-2011 STAT, 
Visakhapatnam

APGST Act, 
1957

Sales Tax Disallowance of Stock 
Transfer to branch & Tax 
due on other pending 
declaration forms

432.00 2011-2012 STAT, 
Visakhapatnam

Central 
Excise 
Act,1944

Export Rebate 
claim

Appealed against the 
rejection of refund of 
export rebate claim 
which was received 
earlier.

25.41 2006-2007 Commissioner of 
Central Excise 
and Customs 
(Appeals), Guntur

Central 
Excise 
Act,1944

Export Rebate 
claim

Appealed against the 
rejection of refund of 
export rebate claim 
which was received 
earlier.

39.77 2006-2007 Commissioner of 
Central Excise 
and Customs 
(Appeals), Guntur

viii)	 The company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and borrowing to financial institution, bank, government 
or dues to debenture holders.

ix)	 The company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt 
instrument) and term loans during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix) of the order is not applicable.

x)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the Company or on the 
Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

xi)	 According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the records of 
the Company, the Company has paid/provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite 
approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.
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xii)	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a nidhi 
company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

xiii)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the 
Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where 
applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the Financial statements as required by 
the applicable Indian accounting standards (Ind AS).

xiv)	 According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or 
partly convertible debentures during the year.

xv)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with 
him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

xvi)	 The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934.

Bengaluru
27th June, 2020

For M/s Sethia, Prabhad Hegde & Co
	 Chartered Accountants                 

Firm Registration No. 013367S

Timmayya Hegde
Partner

Membership No. 226267
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5 Year Highlights

Operating Results 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Sales and Other Income 35027 30678 26362 20962 15004

Operating Profit 686 1321 (222) 746 41

Finance Cost 2143 1700 1382 1266 881

Gross Profit (1457) (379) (1604) (520) (839)

Depreciation 995 956 555 409 390

Taxes (299) (263) 0 0 0

Net Profit (582) (1072) (2159) (929) (1229)
Performance Parameters

Net Fixed Assets 7119 6999 21382 17135 15391

Share Capital 550 550 550 550 550

Reserves 4938 4236 13915 12006 10777

Net Worth 5488 4786 14465 12556 11327

Return on Net Worth (%) (11) (22) (15) (7) (11)

Bank Borrowings 11150 8753 6871 4602 3172

Debt : Equity 2.03 : 1 1.83 : 1 0.48:1 0.37:1 0.28:1

Earnings per Share (in Rs.) (1.06) (1.95) (3.93) (2.91) (2.06)

(Rs. in Lakhs)
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Particulars Note no.
As at  

March 31, 2020 
As at  

March 31, 2019
I.	 ASSETS

1.	 Non-current assets

(a)	 Property, plant and equipment 4  15,337.16  17,069.78

(b)	 Intangible assets 4  -    -

(c)	 Capital work in progress 5  1.31  12.68

(d)	 Investment property 6  52.43  52.43

(e)	 Financial assets

i.	 Investments 7  1,327.05  1,327.05

ii.	 Other financial assets 8  268.83  349.72

(f)	 Other non-current assets 9  2,416.78  2,603.06
Total non-current assets  19,403.56  21,414.72
Current assets

(a)	 Inventories 10  1,217.30  2,485.43

(b)	 Financial assets

i.	 Trade receivables 11  975.19  1,073.24

ii.	 Cash and cash equivalents 12  10.21  14.97

iii.	 Other financial assets 13  222.38  471.58

(c)	 Non-Current Assets Held for Sale 14  1,102.01  4,480.59

(d)	 Other current assets 15  169.77  144.41
Total current assets  3,696.88  8,670.23
Total Assets  23,100.44  30,084.95

II.	 EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

1.	 Equity

(a)	 Equity share capital 16  550.00  550.00

(b)	 Other equity 17  10,776.73  12,005.60
Total equity  11,326.73  12,555.60

2.	 Liabilities

(i)	 Non-current liabilities

(a)	 Financial liabilities

	 Borrowings 18  -    179.75
(b)	 Provisions 19  490.48  655.31
(c)	 Deferred Tax Liabilities (net) 20  -    -
(d)	 Other non-current liabilities 21  182.18  170.98

Total non-current liabilities  672.66  1,006.05

Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2020 (Rs. In Lakhs)
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Particulars Note no.
As at  

March 31, 2020 
As at  

March 31, 2019
(ii)	 Current liabilities

(a)	 Financial liabilities

	 i. Borrowings 22  3,567.66  4,232.56
.	 ii. Trade payables 23

-	 Total outstanding dues of micro and 
small enterprises; and

 4.10  31.33

-	 Total outstanding dues of creditors 
other than micro and small enterprises

 6,282.88  6,619.54

(b)	 Other current liabilities 24  1,136.25  5,482.47
(c)	 Short Term Provisions 25  110.14  157.40

Total current liabilities  11,101.04  16,523.31

Total liabilities  11,773.70  17,529.35

Total Equity and Liabilities  23,100.44  30,084.95

G K Narmatha
Company Secretary

B Sathyanarayana Reddy 
Chief Financial Officer

Sumanth Ramamurthi 
Chairman and  
Managing Director 
DIN : 00002773

For and on behalf of the Board

For M/s Sethia, Prabhad Hegde & Co
Chartered Accountants

FRN 013367S

Timmayya Hegde
Partner, 

Membership No.226267

As per our report of even date attached

Coimbatore
27th June, 2020

B Lakshminarayana 
Director 
DIN : 00504396

Significant accounting policies and the accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

Bangalore
27th June, 2020

(Rs. In Lakhs)
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Particulars Note no. Year ended 
March 31, 2020 

Year ended 
March 31, 2019

Continuing Operations	
A	 Income

Revenue from operations 26  14,560.63  20,812.23 
Other income 27  443.40  150.12 
Total income  15,004.03  20,962.35 

B	 Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 28  8,232.84  14,330.21 
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work in progress 29  1,107.96  (656.37)
Employee Benefits Expense 31  2,487.66  3,315.44 
Power and Fuel 30  2,302.02  2,578.46 
Finance costs 32  880.50  1,265.63 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 33  389.56  409.15 
Other expenses 34  1,437.74  1,900.39 
Total expenses  16,838.29  23,142.91 

C	 Profit before exceptional items and tax  (1,834.26)  (2,180.56)
Exceptional items 35  704.00  734.47 

D	 Profit before tax from continuing operations  (1,130.26)  (1,446.09)
Income tax expense 36
	 Current tax  -    -   
	 Deferred tax charge/ (credit) relating to earlier years  -    -   
Profit for the year  (1,130.26)  (1,446.09)

E	 Profit before tax from discontinued operations 46  -    (156.48)
Income tax expense
	 Current tax  -    -   
	 Deferred tax charge/ (credit) relating to earlier years  -    -   
Profit for the year  -    (156.48)

F	 Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
	 Remeasurement of goodwill arising in business combination  -    (798.70)
	 Fair value changes in Freehold Land  -    1,472.00 
	 Remeasurement of post employment benefit obligations  (98.60)  -   
Income tax relating to these items  -    -   
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax  (98.60)  673.30 
Total comprehensive income for the year  (1,228.86)  (929.27)
Earnings per share 37
Basic earnings per share  (2.06)  (2.91)
Diluted earnings per share  (2.06)  (2.91)

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2020

G K Narmatha
Company Secretary

B Sathyanarayana Reddy 
Chief Financial Officer

Sumanth Ramamurthi 
Chairman and  
Managing Director 
DIN : 00002773

For and on behalf of the Board
For M/s Sethia, Prabhad Hegde & Co

Chartered Accountants
FRN 013367S

Timmayya Hegde
Partner, 

Membership No.226267

As per our report of even date attached

Coimbatore 
27th June, 2020

B Lakshminarayana 
Director 
DIN : 00504396

Significant accounting policies and the accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

Bangalore 
27th June, 2020

(Rs. In Lakhs)
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Particulars
Year ended 

March 31, 2020 
Year ended 

March 31, 2019
I. 	 Operating Activities

Profit before income tax (1,130.26) (1,602.57)

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation expense 389.56 409.15 

(Profit)/ Loss on sale of assets - Net (704.00) (835.28)

Interest income (29.84) (33.08)

Finance costs 880.50 1,265.63 
(594.05) (796.16)

Change in assets and liabilities

(Increase)/ decrease in Other financial assets 252.00 (113.94)

(Increase)/ decrease in inventories 1,268.13 (703.02)

(Increase)/ decrease in trade receivables 98.05 121.80 

(Increase)/ decrease in Other assets 4,534.86 (114.28)

Increase/ (decrease) in provisions and other liabilities (4,074.16) 3,604.98 

Increase/ (decrease) in trade payables (363.88) 364.25 

Cash generated from operations 1,120.96 2,363.62 

Less : Income taxes paid (net of refunds) -   -   
Net cash flow from / (used in) operating activities (I) 1,120.96 2,363.62 

II. 	 Investing Activities

Purchase of Property, plant and equipment (including changes in 
Capital work in progress)

(181.26) (254.71)

Sale proceeds of Property, plant and equipment 1,322.41 1,172.80 

(Purchase)/ disposal proceeds of Investment Property -   41.13 

Interest income 29.84 33.08 
Net cash flow from / (used in) Investing activities (II) 1,170.98 992.30 

Statement of cash flows for the year ending March 31, 2020 (Rs. In Lakhs)
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Particulars
Year ended 

March 31, 2020 
Year ended 

March 31, 2019
III. 	 Financing Activities

Proceeds from/ (repayment of) long term borrowings (764.64) (821.56)

Proceeds from/ (repayment of) short term borrowings (664.90) (1,418.07)

Finance costs (867.16) (1,259.54)
Net cash flow from / (used in) Financing activities (III) (2,296.70) (3,499.17)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (I+II+III) (4.76) (143.25)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 14.97 158.22 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 10.21 14.97 

Notes:

1. 	 The above cash flow statement has been prepared under indirect 
method prescribed in Ind AS 7 "Cash Flow Statements".

2. 	 Components of cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks

- in current accounts  5.13  12.53 

Cash on hand  5.07  2.44 
 10.21  14.97 

G K Narmatha
Company Secretary

B Sathyanarayana Reddy 
Chief Financial Officer

Sumanth Ramamurthi 
Chairman and  
Managing Director 
DIN : 00002773

For and on behalf of the Board

For M/s Sethia, Prabhad Hegde & Co
Chartered Accountants

FRN 013367S

Timmayya Hegde
Partner, 

Membership No.226267

As per our report of even date attached

Coimbatore
27th June, 2020

B Lakshminarayana 
Director 
DIN : 00504396

Significant accounting policies and the accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

Bangalore 
27th June, 2020

(Rs. In Lakhs)
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(A) 	Equity Share Capital

Balance at the beginning of April 1, 2019  550.00

Changes in equity share capital during the year  -

Balance at the end of March 31, 2020  550.00

(B) 	Other Equity

Particulars
General 
Reserve

Securities 
Premium 
Reserve

Capital 
Reserve

Other 
comprehensive 

income

Retained 
Earnings

Total

Balance as at April 
1,2018

8,666.85 1,487.50 51.02 (72.75) 2,802.25 12,934.87

Additions/ (deductions) 
during the year

-   -   -   -   -   -

Total Comprehensive 
Income for the year

-   -   -   673.30 (1,602.57) (929.27)

Balance as at March 
31, 2019

8,666.85 1,487.50 51.02 600.55 1,199.67 12,005.60

Balance as at April 
1,2019

8,666.85 1,487.50 51.02 600.55 1,199.67 12,005.60

Additions/ (deductions) 
during the year

-   -   -   -   -   -

Total Comprehensive 
Income for the year

-   -   -   (98.60) (1,130.26) (1,228.86)

Balance as at March 
31, 2020

8,666.85 1,487.50 51.02 501.95 69.41 10,776.73

G K Narmatha
Company Secretary

B Sathyanarayana Reddy 
Chief Financial Officer

Sumanth Ramamurthi 
Chairman and  
Managing Director 
DIN : 00002773

For and on behalf of the Board

For M/s Sethia, Prabhad Hegde & Co
Chartered Accountants

FRN 013367S

Timmayya Hegde
Partner, 

Membership No.226267

As per our report of even date attached

Coimbatore
27th June, 2020

B Lakshminarayana 
Director 
DIN : 00504396

Significant accounting policies and the accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2020

Bangalore 
27th June, 2020

(Rs. In Lakhs)
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

1	 Corporate Information

	 Super Spinning Mills Limited is a public limited company incorporated under the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 1956. The company is engaged in the manufacture and selling of cotton, cotton yarn and allied products 
and its shares are listed on the BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited. The company has 
manufacturing units in Andhra Pradesh.

2	 Basis of preparation of financial statements

	 Statement of compliance

	 These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) under the 
historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured at 
fair values, the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) (to the extent notified) and guidelines issued 
by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI). The Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the 
Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016.

	 Basis of preparation and presentation

	 The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following assets and 
liabilities which have been measured at fair value or revalued amount:

a)	 Derivative financial instruments

b)	 Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial 
instruments)

	 Use of estimates

	 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) 
requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting 
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and the disclosure of contingent 
liabilities on the date of the financial statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Estimates and 
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognised 
prospectively in current and future periods.

	 Functional and presentation currency

	 These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the Company’s functional currency. 
All financial information presented in INR has been rounded to the nearest lakhs (up to two decimals). 

	 The financial statements are approved for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on June 27, 2020.

2A	 Critical accounting estimates and management judgments

	 In application of the accounting policies, which are described in note 2, the management of the Company 
is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and assumptions are based on 
historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from 
these estimates.

	 Information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgements used in applying 
accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial 
statements is included in the following notes:
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

	 Property, Plant and Equipment, Intangible Assets and Investment Properties

	 The residual values and estimated useful life of PPEs, Intangible Assets and Investment Properties 
are assessed by the technical team at each reporting date by taking into account the nature of asset, 
the estimated usage of the asset, the operating condition of the asset, past history of replacement and 
maintenance support. Upon review, the management accepts the assigned useful life and residual value 
for computation of depreciation/amortisation. Also, management judgement is exercised for classifying the 
asset as investment properties or vice versa.

	 Current tax

	 Calculations of income taxes for the current period are done based on applicable tax laws and management’s 
judgement by evaluating positions taken in tax returns and interpretations of relevant provisions of law.

	 Deferred Tax Assets (including MAT Credit Entitlement)

	 Significant management judgement is exercised by reviewing the deferred tax assets at each reporting 
date to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be retained / recognised, based upon the 
likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

	 Fair value

	 Management uses valuation techniques in measuring the fair value of financial instruments where active 
market quotes are not available. In applying the valuation techniques, management makes maximum use of 
market inputs and uses estimates and assumptions that are, as far as possible, consistent with observable 
data that market participants would use in pricing the instrument. Where applicable data is not observable, 
management uses its best estimate about the assumptions that market participants would make. These 
estimates may vary from the actual prices that would be achieved in an arm’s length transaction at the 
reporting date.

	 Impairment of Trade Receivables

	 The impairment for trade receivables are done based on assumptions about risk of default and expected 
loss rates. The assumptions, selection of inputs for calculation of impairment are based on management 
judgement considering the past history, market conditions and forward looking estimates at the end of each 
reporting date.

	 Impairment of Non-financial assets (PPE/Intangible Assets/Investment Properties)

	 The  impairment  of  non-financial  assets  is  determined  based  on  estimation  of recoverable  amount  of  
such  assets.  The  assumptions  used  in  computing  the recoverable amount are based on management 
judgement considering the timing of future cash flows, discount rates and the risks specific to the asset.

	 Defined Benefit Plans and Other long term benefits

	 The cost of the defined benefit plan and other long term benefits, and the present value of such obligation are 
determined by the independent actuarial valuer. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions 
that may differ from actual developments in future. Management believes that the assumptions used by the 
actuary in determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and attrition rates are 
reasonable. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and  its  long term  nature, this  obligation is  
highly sensitive  to changes  in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

	 Fair value measurement of financial instruments

	 When  the  fair  values  of  financial  assets  and  financial  liabilities  could  not  be measured based on 
quoted prices in active markets, management uses valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash 
Flow (DCF) model, to determine its fair value  The  inputs  to  these  models  are  taken  from  observable  
markets  where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is exercised in establishing 
fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility.

	 Provisions and contingencies

	 The recognition and measurement of other provisions are based on the assessment of the probability of an 
outflow of resources, and on past experience and circumstances known at the reporting date. The actual 
outflow of resources at a future date may therefore vary from the figure estimated at end of each reporting 
period.

3	 Significant Accounting Policies

a)	 Current versus non-current classification

	 The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.

	 An asset is treated as current when it is:

i)	 Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

ii)	 Held primarily for the purpose of trading

iii)	 Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv)	 Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 
twelve months after the reporting period

	 All other assets are classified as non-current.

	 A liability is current when:

i)	 It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

ii)	 It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

iii)	 It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv)	 There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the 
reporting period

	 All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

	 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

	 The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash 
and cash equivalents. The Company has identified 12 months as its operating cycle.

b)	 Fair value measurement

	 The Company has applied the fair value measurement wherever necessitated at each reporting period.

	 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.  The fair value measurement is based on 
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

i)	 In the principal market for the asset or liability;

ii)	 In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

	 The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

	 The fair value of an asset or liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use 
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

	 A fair value measurement of a non - financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate 
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and the best use or by selling it to another  market participant 
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

	 The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data 
are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use 
of unobservable inputs.

	 All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized 
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 
value measurement as a whole:

	 Level  1 : Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active market for identical assets or liabilities;

	 Level 2 : Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement 
is directly or indirectly observable; and

	 Level 3 : Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement 
is unobservable.

	 For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company 
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization 
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each 
reporting period.

	 The Company has designated the respective team leads to determine the policies and procedures for both 
recurring and non - recurring fair value measurement.  External valuers are involved, wherever necessary 
with the approval of Company’s board of directors.  Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation, 
independence and whether professional standards are maintained.

	 For the purpose of fair value disclosure, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the 
basis of the nature, characteristics and risk of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as 
explained above.  The component wise fair value measurement is disclosed in the relevant notes.

c)	 Revenue Recognition

	 Sale of goods

	 Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company 
and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue on sale 
of goods is recognised when the risk and rewards of ownership is transferred to the buyer, which generally 
coincides with the despatch of the goods or as per the inco-terms agreed with the customers.

	 Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account 
contractually defined terms of payment. It comprises of invoice value of goods including excise duty and after 
deducting discounts, volume rebates and applicable taxes on sale. It also excludes value of self-consumption.
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

	 Sale of services

	 Income from sale of services is recognised when the services are rendered as per the terms of the agreement 
and when no significant uncertainty as to its determination or realisation exists.

	 Export entitlements

	 Export entitlements from Government authorities are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the 
right to receive credit as per the terms of the scheme is established in respect of the exports made by the 
Company, and where there is no significant uncertainty regarding the ultimate collection of the relevant export 
proceeds.

	 Interest Income

	 Interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the 
estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter 
period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a 
financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows 
by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call 
and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses.

	 Rental income

	 Rental income from operating lease is recognised on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease, if 
the escalation is not a compensation for increase in cost inflation index.

	 Dividend income

	 Dividend income is recognized when the company’s right to receive dividend is established by the reporting 
date, which is generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

d)	 Property, plant and equipment and capital work in progress

	 Presentation

	 Property, plant and equipment and capital work in progress are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment 
and borrowing costs of a qualifying asset,  if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of plant and 
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their 
specific useful lives. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

	 Advances paid towards the acquisition of tangible assets outstanding at each balance sheet date, are disclosed 
as capital advances under long term loans and advances and the cost of the tangible assets not ready for their 
intended use before such date, are disclosed as capital work in progress.

	 Component Cost

	 All material/ significant components have been identified for our plant and have been accounted separately. The 
useful life of such component are analysed independently and wherever components are having different useful 
life other than plant they are part of, useful life of components are considered for calculation of depreciation.

	 The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of 
the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Company 
and its cost can be measured reliably. The costs of repairs and maintenance are recognised in the statement 
of profit and loss as incurred.
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	 Machinery spares/ insurance spares that can be issued only in connection with an item of fixed assets and their 
issue is expected to be irregular are capitalised. Replacement of such spares is charged to revenue. Other 
spares are charged as revenue expenditure as and when consumed.

	 Derecognition

	 Gains or losses arising from derecognition of property, plant and equipment are measured as the difference 
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement 
of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

e)	 Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

	 Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life. The depreciable 
amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less 5% being its residual value. 
Depreciation is provided on straight line method, over the useful lives specified in Schedule II to the Companies 
Act, 2013 except for the following items, where useful life estimated on technical assessment, past trends and 
differ from those provided in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.

Assets Category Estimated useful life (in years)

Plant and Machinery Single Shift 20

Plant and Machinery Triple Shift 10

Roads, fences, walls 15

	 Depreciation for PPE on additions is calculated on pro-rata basis from the date of such additions. For deletion/ 
disposals, the depreciation is calculated on pro-rata basis up to the date on which such assets have been 
discarded/ sold. Additions to fixed assets, costing 5000 each or less are fully depreciated retaining its residual 
value.

	 The residual values, estimated useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are 
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

f)	 Intangible assets

	 Intangible assets acquired separately

	 Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of a separately 
acquired intangible asset comprises (a) its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase 
taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates; and (b) any directly attributable cost of preparing the asset 
for its intended use.

	 Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and 
accumulated impairment losses.

	 Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

	 Intangible assets acquired in a business combination and recognised separately from goodwill are initially 
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their cost).

	 Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a business combination are reported at cost less 
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that are 
acquired separately.
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	 Intangible assets internally generated

	 Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the year in which it is incurred. 
An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development (or from the development phase of an 
internal project) is recognised if, and only if, the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria referred in 
Ind AS 38 “Intangible Assets”. Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised, development 
expenditure is recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which it is incurred.

	 Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible assets are reported at cost less accumulated 
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired 
separately.

	 Useful life and amortisation of intangible assets

	 The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives 
are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that 
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible 
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period.

	 Estimated useful lives of the intangible assets are as follow:

Assets Category Estimated useful life (in years)

ERP software and other software 5

	 The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss 
unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

	 Intabible assets with indefinite useful life

	 Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually.  The 
assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be 
supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

	 Subsequent cost and measurement

	 Subsequent costs are capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific 
asset to which it relates. All other expenditures, including expenditure on internally-generated intangibles, are 
recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred.

	 Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible assets are reported at cost less accumulated 
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired 
separately.

	 The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss 
unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

g)	 Investment property

	 Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation (including property 
under construction for such purposes).

	 Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial 
recognition, investment properties are measured in accordance with Ind AS 16 - Property, plant and equipment’s 
requirements for cost model. The cost includes the cost of replacing parts and borrowing costs for long-term 
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construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of the investment property are 
required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful 
lives. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred.

	 Company depreciates investment property as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule II of the Companies 
Act, 2013.

	 Though the Company measures investment property using the cost-based measurement, the fair value of 
investment property is disclosed in the notes. Fair values are determined based on an annual evaluation 
performed by an accredited external independent valuer applying a valuation model.

	 An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is permanently 
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising 
on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the 
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which the property 
is derecognised.

h)	 Non Current Assets Held for Sale

	 Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered 
principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met 
only when the asset (or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to 
terms that are usual and customary for sales of such asset (or disposal group) and its sale is highly probable. 
Management must be committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed 
sale within one year from the date of classification.

	 Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying 
amount and fair value less costs to sell.

i)	 Inventories

	 Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.  Cost includes cost of purchase and other 
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Costs are determined on 
weighted average basis as follows :

i) 	 Raw materials, packing materials and Store and Spare Parts : At purchase cost including other cost 
incurred in bringing materials/consumables to their present location and condition.

ii) 	 Work in progress: At material cost, conversion costs and appropriate share of production overheads

iii) 	 Finished goods and waste : At material cost, conversion costs, appropriate share of production overheads 
and Excise Duty. Post implementation of GST from July 1, 2017 no excise duty is included in the closing 
stock of finished goods as at March 31, 2018, March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2020.

j)	 Financial Instruments

	 Financial assets

	 Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when an entity becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instruments.

	 Initial recognition and measurement

	 All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at 
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. 
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Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by 
regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the 
date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

	 Subsequent measurement

	 For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified on the basis of their contractual cash 
flow characteristics and the entity’s business model of managing them.

	 Financial assets are classified into the following categories:

l	 Financial instruments (other than equity instruments) at amortised cost

l	 Financial Instruments (other than equity instruments) at Fair value through Other comprehensive income 
(FVTOCI)

l	 Other Financial Instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

l	 Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

	 Financial instruments other than equity instruments at amortised cost

	 The Company classifies a financial instruments (other than equity instruments) at amortised cost, if both the 
following conditions are met:

a)	 The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash 
flows; and

b)	 Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

	 Such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) 
method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees 
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or 
loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss.

	 Financial instruments other than equity instruments at FVTOCI

	 The Company classifies a financial instrument (other than equity instrument) at FVTOCI, if both of the following 
criteria are met:

a)	 The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the 
financial assets, and

b)	 The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

	 Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair 
value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the group recognizes 
interest income, impairment losses and reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the profit and loss 
statement. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified 
from the equity to profit and loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest 
income using the EIR method.

	 Financial instruments other than equity instruments at FVTPL

	 The Company classifies all other financial instruments, which do not meet the criteria for categorization as at 
amortized cost or as FVTOCI, as at FVTPL.
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	 Financial instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized 
in the profit and loss.

	 Equity investments

	 All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for 
trading are classified as at FVTPL. Where  the Company makes an irrevocable election of equity instruments 
at FVTOCI, it recognises all subsequent changes in the fair value in other comprehensive income, without any 
recycling of the amounts from OCI to profit and loss, even on sale of such investments.

	 Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized 
in the profit and loss.

	 Financial assets are measured at FVTPL except for those financial assets whose contractual terms give rise to 
cash flows on specified dates that represents solely payments of principal and interest thereon, are measured 
as detailed below depending on the business model:

Classification Name of the financial asset

Amortised cost Trade receivables, Loans to employees  and  related  parties,  deposits, interest 
receivable, unbilled revenue and other advances recoverable in cash

FVTOCI Equity    investments    in    companies    other    than Subsidiaries and Associates as an 
option exercised at the time of initial recognition.

FVTPL Other investments   in  equity instruments, forward   exchange contracts. (to the extent 
not designated as hedging instrument)

	 Derecognition

	 A financial asset is primarily derecognised when:

l	 The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

l	 The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation 
to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’  
arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the 
asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the 
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

	 When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When 
it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred 
control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s 
continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred 
asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the 
Company has retained.

	 Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower 
of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could 
be required to repay.

	 Impairment of financial assets

	 In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and 
recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:
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a)	 Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities, 
deposits, trade receivables and bank balance.

b)	 Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured at FVTOCI

c)	 Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from 
transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18.

	 The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:

l	 Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and

l	 All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 17

	 The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it 
recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime Expected Credit Loss (ECL) at each reporting date, 
right from its initial recognition.

	 For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that 
whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not 
increased significantly, 12 months ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has 
increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves 
such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to 
recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

	 Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a 
financial instrument. The 12 months ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that 
are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

	 ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the 
contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the 
original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, the Company considers all contractual terms of the financial 
instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and similar options) over the expected life of the financial 
instrument and Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the 
contractual terms.

	 ECL allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the statement 
of profit and loss, net of lien available on securities held against the receivables. This amount is reflected 
under the head ‘other expenses’ in the profit and loss. The balance sheet presentation for various financial 
instruments is described below:

l	 Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and lease receivables: 
ECL is presented as an allowance, which reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off 
criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

l	 Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: Since financial assets are already reflected at fair value, impairment 
allowance is not further reduced from its value. Rather, ECL amount is presented as ‘accumulated 
impairment amount’ in the OCI.

	 For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the company combines financial instruments on the 
basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable 
significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.
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	 For impairment purposes, significant financial assets are tested on individual basis at each reporting date. Other 
financial assets are assessed collectively in groups that share similar credit risk characteristics. Accordingly, 
the impairment testing is done retrospectively on the following basis:

Name of the financial asset Impairment Testing Methodology

Trade Receivables Expected Credit Loss model (ECL) is applied. The ECL over lifetime of the 
assets are estimated by using a provision  matrix  which  is  based  on  historical  
loss rates reflecting  current conditions and forecasts of future economic 
conditions which are grouped on the basis of similar credit characteristics 
such as nature of industry,  customer  segment,  past  due  status  and 
other factors that are relevant to estimate the expected cash loss from these 
assets.

Other financial assets When the credit risk has not increased significantly, 12 month ECL is used 
to provide for impairment loss. When there is significant change in credit risk 
since initial recognition, the impairment is measured based on probability 
of default over the life time. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the 
instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in 
credit risk since initial recognition, then the  entity  reverts  to  recognising  
impairment  loss allowance based on 12 month ECL.

	 Financial liabilities

	 Initial recognition and measurement

	 Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at FVTPL and as at amortised cost.

	 Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs 
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit 
and loss.

	 All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, 
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

	 The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank 
overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

	 The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

	 Financial liabilities at FVTPL

	 Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon 
initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading 
if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative 
financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge 
relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading 
unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

	 Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

	 For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are 
recognized in OCI. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to profit and loss. However, the company 
may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are 
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recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The company has not designated any financial liability as at fair 
value through profit and loss.

	 Loans and borrowings

	 After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost 
using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised 
as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

	 Derivative financial instruments

	 The Company holds derivative financial instruments such as foreign exchange forward and options contracts 
to mitigate the risk of changes in exchange rates on foreign currency exposures. The counterparty for these 
contracts is generally a bank.

(a) 	Derivatives fair valued through profit or loss

	 This category has derivative financial assets or liabilities which are not designated as hedges. 
Although the Company believes that these derivatives constitute hedges from an economic perspective, 
they may not qualify for hedge accounting under Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments. Any derivative that is 
either not designated a hedge, or is so designated but is ineffective as per Ind AS 109, is categorized as a 
financial asset or financial liability, at fair value through profit or loss.

	 Derivatives not designated as hedges are recognized initially at fair value and attributable transaction costs are 
recognized in net profit in the Statement of Profit and Loss when incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, 
these derivatives are measured at fair value through profit or loss and the resulting exchange gains or losses 
are included in other income. Assets / liabilities in this category are presented as current assets / current 
liabilities if they are either held for trading or are expected to be realized within 12 months after the Balance 
Sheet date.

	 Derecognition of financial liabilities

	 A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. 
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, 
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as 
the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective 
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

	 Reclassification of financial assets

	 The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial 
recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. 
For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the 
business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The 
Company’s senior management determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal 
changes which are significant to the Company’s operations. Such changes are evident to external parties. 
A change in the business model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity 
that is significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification 
prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period 
following the change in business model. The Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, 
losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.
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	 The following table shows various reclassification and how they are accounted for:

S.No Original 
classification

Revised 
classification

Accounting treatment

1 Amortised cost FVTPL Fair value is measured at reclassification date. 
Difference between previous amortized cost and 
fair value is recognised in P&L.

2 FVTPL Amortised Cost Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new 
gross carrying amount. EIR is calculated based on 
the new gross carrying amount.

3 Amortised cost FVTOCI Fair value is measured at reclassification date. 
Difference between previous amortised cost and 
fair value is recognised in OCI. No change in EIR 
due to reclassification.

4 FVTOCI Amortised cost Fair value at reclassification date becomes its 
new amortised cost carrying amount. However, 
cumulative gain or loss in OCI is adjusted against 
fair value. Consequently, the asset is measured as 
if it had always been measured at amortised cost.

5 FVTPL FVTOCI Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new 
carrying amount. No other adjustment is required.

6 FVTOCI FVTPL Assets continue to be measured at fair value. 
Cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in 
OCI is reclassified to P&L at the reclassification date.

	 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet, if there 
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net 
basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

k)	 Foreign currency transactions and translations

	 Transactions and balances

	 Transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the 
rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. However, for practical reasons, the Company uses 
an average rate, if the average approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

	 Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot 
rates of exchange at the reporting date. Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary 
items are recognised in profit or loss.

	 Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the 
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign 
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss 
arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the 
gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain 
or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).
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	 The Company enters into forward exchange contract to hedge its risk associated with Foreign currency 
fluctuations. The premium or discount arising at the inception of a forward exchange contract is amortized 
as expense or income over the life of the contract. In case of monetary items which are covered by forward 
exchange contract, the difference between the yearend rate and rate on the date of the contract is recognized 
as exchange difference. Any profit or loss arising on cancellation of a forward exchange contract is recognized 
as income or expense for that year.

l)	 Borrowing Costs

	 Borrowing cost  include  interest  computed using Effective  Interest  Rate  method, amortisation  of  ancillary  
costs  incurred  and  exchange  differences  arising  from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are 
regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost.

	 Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction, production of a qualifying asset are 
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset which takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended 
use. The Company determines the amount of borrowing cost eligible for capitalisation by applying capitalisation 
rate to the expenditure incurred on such cost. The capitalisation rate is determined based on the weighted 
average rate of borrowing cost applicable to the borrowings of the Company which are outstanding during 
the period, other than borrowings made specifically towards purchase of the qualifying asset. The amount of 
borrowing cost that the Company capitalises during the period does not exceed the amount of borrowing cost 
incurred during that period. All other borrowings costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.

	 Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on 
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. All other borrowing costs are 
recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which they are incurred.

m)	 Government grants

	 Government  grants  are  recognised  at  fair  value  where  there  is  a  reasonable assurance  that  the  grant  
will  be  received  and  all  the  attached  conditions  are complied with.

	 In case of revenue related grant, the income is recognised on a systematic basis over the period for which it 
is intended to compensate an expense and is disclosed under “Other operating revenue” or netted off against 
corresponding expenses wherever appropriate. Receivables of such grants are shown under “Other Financial 
Assets”. Export benefits are accounted for in the year of exports based on eligibility and when there is no 
uncertainty in receiving the same. Receivables of such benefits are shown under “Other Financial Assets”.

	 Government grants related to assets, including non-monetary grants at fair value, shall be presented in the 
balance sheet by setting up the grant as deferred income. The grant set up as deferred income is recognised 
in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the useful life of the asset.

n)	 Taxes

	 Current income tax

	 Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid 
to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted 
or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and generates 
taxable income.

	 Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either 
in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying 
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax 
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returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes 
provisions where  appropriate.

	 Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future economic benefits in 
the form of adjustment to future tax liability, is recognised as an asset viz. MAT Credit Entitlement, to the extent 
there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal Income tax and it is highly probable that future 
economic benefits associated with it will flow to the Company during the specified  period.  The  Company  
reviews  the  “MAT  Credit  Entitlement”  at  each Balance Sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of 
the same to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that the  Company will pay normal 
Income tax during the specified period.

	 Deferred tax

	 Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets 
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

	 Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.

	 Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against 
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses 
can be utilised. Where there is deferred tax assets arising from carry forward of unused tax losses and unused 
tax created, they are recognised to the extent of deferred tax liability.

	 The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it 
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to 
be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the 
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

	 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when 
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

	 Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in 
other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying 
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

	 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current 
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same 
taxation authority.

o)	 Retirement and other employee benefits

	 Short-term employee benefits

	 A liability is recognised for short-term employee benefit in the period the related service is rendered at the 
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service.

	 Defined contribution plans

	 Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no 
obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund and super annuation fund. The Company 
recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders 
the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet 
date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after 
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deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for 
services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the 
pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

	 Defined benefit plans

	 The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires contributions to be made to a 
separately administered fund. The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using 
the projected unit credit method.

	 Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts 
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts 
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet 
with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. 
Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

	 Compensated absences

	 The Company has a policy on compensated absences which are both accumulating and non-accumulating 
in nature. The expected cost of accumulating compensated absences is determined by actuarial valuation 
performed by an independent actuary at each balance sheet date using projected unit credit method on the 
additional amount expected to be paid / availed as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at 
the balance sheet date. Expense on non-accumulating compensated absences is recognized in the period in 
which the absences occur.

	 Other long term employee benefits

	 Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at the present value of the 
estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the Company in respect of services provided by the 
employees up to the reporting date.

p)	 Business Combinations

	 Acquisitions of business are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a 
business combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair 
values of the assets transferred by the Company, liabilities incurred by the Company to the former owners of the 
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Company in exchange of control of the acquiree. Acquisition-
related costs are generally recognised in statement of profit and loss as incurred.

	 At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair 
value, except that

l	 deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are 
recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 Income Taxes and Ind AS 19 Employee Benefits 
respectively;

l	 liabilities or equity instruments related to share based payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-
based payment arrangements of the Company entered into to replace share-based payment arrangements 
of the acquiree are measured in accordance with Ind AS 102 Share based Payment at the acquisition date; 
and

l	 assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with Ind AS 105 Noncurrent 
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that Standard.
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	 Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred and the fair value of the 
acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of 
the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed.

	 When the consideration transferred by the Company in a business combination includes assets or liabilities 
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured at its 
acquisition-date fair value and included as part of the consideration transferred in a business combination. 
Changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments 
are adjusted retrospectively, with corresponding adjustments against goodwill or capital reserve, as the case 
maybe. Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional information obtained 
during the ‘measurement period’ (which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts and 
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

	 The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration that do not qualify 
as measurement period adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent 
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent 
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is 
remeasured at fair value at subsequent reporting dates with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised in 
statement of profit and loss.

	 When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Company’s previously held equity interest in the 
acquiree is remeasured to its acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in 
statement of profit and loss. Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that 
have previously been recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to statement of profit and loss 
where such treatment would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

	 If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which 
the combination occurs, the Company reports provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is 
incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement period (see above), or additional 
assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that 
existed at the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognised at that date.

q)	 Impairment of non financial assets

	 The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. 
If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the 
asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s 
(CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual 
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets 
or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset 
is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

r)	 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent asset

	 Provisions

	 Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a 
past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle 
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
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	 Provisions are discounted, if the effect of the time value of money is material, using pre-tax rates that reflects 
the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, an increase in the provisions due to the passage of 
time is recognised as finance cost. These provisions are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to 
reflect the current best estimates.

	 Necessary provision for doubtful debts, claims, etc., are made if realisation of money is doubtful in the judgement 
of the management.

	 Contingent liability

	 A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by 
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the company 
or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be 
required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a 
liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. Contingent liabilities are disclosed 
separately.

	 Show cause notices issued by various Government authorities are considered for evaluation of contingent 
liabilities only when converted into demand.

	 Contingent assets

	 Where an inflow of economic benefits is probable, the Company discloses a brief description of the nature of 
the contingent assets at the end of the reporting period, and, where practicable, an estimate of their financial 
effect. Contingent assets are disclosed but not recognised in the financial statements.

s)	 Cash and cash equivalents

	 Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances 
with original maturity of less than 3 months, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into cash, 
which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

t)	 Cash Flow Statement

	 Cash flows are presented using indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before tax is adjusted for the effects of 
transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments.

	 Bank borrowings are generally considered to be financing activities. However, where bank overdrafts which are 
repayable on demand form an integral part of an entity’s cash management, bank overdrafts are included as a 
component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of Cash flow statement.

u)	 Earnings per share

	 The basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to equity 
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.  

	 Diluted EPS is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares 
considered for deriving basic EPS and also weighted average number of equity shares that could have been 
issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed 
converted as of the beginning of the period, unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are 
determined independently for each period presented. The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive 
equity shares are adjusted for bonus shares, as appropriate
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4	 Property, plant and equipment

Particulars

Tangible Assets Intangible Assets

Freehold 

Land 
Buildings 

Plant and 

Equipment

Furniture 

and 

Fixtures 

Data 

Processing 

Equipment 

Vehicles Total  

Intangible 

Assets - 

Software 

Goodwill 

on merger 
Total

Cost as at April 1, 2018 15,027.77 4,750.94 24,919.37 282.28 702.47 192.12 45,874.95 313.77 798.70 1,112.47

Additions -   56.99 176.09 4.02 1.75 3.19 242.03 -   -

Addition due to 
Remeasurement 1,472.00 - 1,472.00

Reclassified under Non 
current assets held for sale 
under Note no. 14 (4,480.59) (4,480.59) -

Disposals (84.97) (255.71) (1,713.14) (54.59) (189.12) (11.18) (2,308.70) -   -

Cost as at March 31, 2019 11,934.22 4,552.22 23,382.32 231.71 515.10 184.13 40,799.69 313.77 798.70 1,112.47

Additions during the year 12.84 165.32 0.29 4.20 9.98 192.63 -

Addition due to 
Remeasurement

-  -

Reclassified under Non 
current assets held for sale 
under Note no. 14 (1,088.72) (251.88) (1,340.60) -

Disposals (91.33) (159.87) (3,349.87) (16.91) (9.85) (20.19) (3,648.01) -

Cost as at March 31, 2020 10,754.17 4,405.19 19,945.89 215.09 509.44 173.92 36,003.71 313.77 798.70 1,112.47

Depreciation/Amortisation

As at March 31, 2018 -   2,018.63 22,189.41 240.73 661.11 182.28 25,292.16 313.55 -   313.55

Charge for the year 122.21 278.41 5.18 2.84 0.28 408.93 0.22 - 0.22

Impairment during the year 
(Discontinued Operations)*

-   798.70 798.70

On disposals (101.10) (1,627.87) (51.91) (179.68) (10.62) (1,971.18) -   -   -

As at March 31, 2019 -   2,039.74 20,839.95 194.01 484.27 171.95 23,729.91 313.77 798.70 1,112.47

Charge for the year 116.10 264.24 5.40 3.06 0.75 389.56 -   -   -

Reclassified under Non 
current assets held for sale 
under Note no. 14 (238.59) (238.59) -

On disposals (69.58) (3,100.23) (15.98) (14.63) (13.92) (3,214.33) -   -   -

As at March 31, 2020 -   2,086.26 17,765.36 183.44 472.71 158.78 20,666.55 313.77 798.70 1,112.47

Net Block

As at March 31, 2018 15,027.77 2,732.31 2,729.96 41.55 41.36 9.84 20,582.79 0.22 798.70 798.92

As at March 31, 2019 11,934.22 2,512.48 2,542.37 37.70 30.83 12.18 17,069.78 0.00 -   0.00

As at March 31, 2020 10,754.17 2,318.94 2,180.52 31.66 36.73 15.14 15,337.16 0.00 -   0.00 

* disclosed under Other Comprehensive Income in the Statement of Profit and loss

(Rs. In Lakhs)
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As at 
March 31, 2020

As at 
March 31, 2019

5 Capital Work-in-progress

Plant & Equipment  1.31  12.68 
 1.31  12.68 

6 Investment Property

Land  52.43  52.43 
 52.43  52.43 

7 Non-current investments

Investments in Equity shares in Others FVTPL

Trade Unquoted

9,38,000 (Previous year 9,38,000) Equity Shares of ` 10/- each 
fully paid in Andhra Pradesh Gas Power Corporation Limited *

 1,326.05  1,326.05 

10,000 (Previous year 10,000) Equity Shares of ` 10/- each fully 
paid in Cotton Sourcing Company Ltd

 1.00  1.00 

 1,327.05  1,327.05 
Total non-current investments

Aggregate amount of quoted investments  -    -   

Aggregate market value of quoted investments  -    -   

Aggregate cost of unquoted investments  1,327.05  1,327.05 

Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments  -    -   

* 	In respect investments made purusuant to power purchase agreements, the exit price is equivalent to the 
initial investment. Accordingly, the fair value of those investments have been considered at the original 
investment value as per Ind AS 113

8 Other non- current financial assets 

(Unsecured, considered good)

Security deposits and other receivables  345.85  347.59 

Less: Provision for expected credit loss  (78.08)  -   

Security deposits and other receivables (Net)  267.76  347.59 

Unamortised interest expense  1.06  2.12 
 268.83  349.72 

9 Other non-current assets

(Unsecured, considered good)

Advance to suppliers towards goods/services  213.69  206.85 

Less: Provision for expected credit loss  (106.65)  -   

(Rs. In Lakhs)
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As at 
March 31, 2020

As at 
March 31, 2019

Advance to suppliers towards goods/services (Net)  107.05  206.85 

Tax deducted at source and Income taxes paid under protest  2,014.01  1,927.49 

Income and claims receivable  295.72  463.73 

Advance for investments  -    5.00 
 2,416.78  2,603.06 

10 Inventories

Raw Materials  353.44  493.22 

Work-in-progress  202.18  483.91 

Finished products (Other than acquired for trading)  520.90  1,335.06 

Stores and spares  109.97  130.34 

Waste  30.82  42.89 
 1,217.30  2,485.43 

Inventory comprise of 

Raw Materials

Raw cotton  253.17  416.57 

Viscose fibre  63.74  38.50 

Polyster  54.53  38.15 
 353.44  493.22 

Work in progress  202.18  483.91 
Finished Goods

Cotton yarn  520.90  1,335.06 
 520.90  1,335.06 

11 Trade receivables

(Unsecured, considered good)

Outstanding for a period exceeding 6 months from due date of 
payment

 639.71  541.58 

Others  817.83  1,014.01 
 1,457.54  1,555.59 

Less: Allowance for expected credit losses  482.35  482.35 
 975.19  1,073.24 

(Rs. In Lakhs)
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As at 
March 31, 2020

As at 
March 31, 2019

12 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand  5.07  2.44 

Balances with banks

In current accounts  5.13  12.53 
 10.21  14.97 

13 Other current financial assets

(Unsecured, considered good)

Margin money balance against Letter of Credit facility  206.67  227.34 

Balance with govt authorities (Indirect taxes)  -    217.10 

Loans and advances to employees  15.71  27.14 
 222.38  471.58 

14 Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets held for sale
(Refer Note no. 46 for details)

 1,102.01  4,480.59 

 1,102.01  4,480.59 
15 Other current assets

(Unsecured, considered good)

Prepaid expenses  32.37  45.14 

Advance to suppliers  111.16  84.56 

Other advances  26.25  14.72 
 169.77  144.41 

16 Capital

Authorised Share Capital

27,50,00,000 (27,50,00,000) Equity shares of Rs. 1 each  2,750.00  2,750.00 
 2,750.00  2,750.00 

Issued Share Capital

5,50,00,000 (5,50,00,000) Equity shares of Rs. 1 each  550.00  550.00 
 550.00  550.00 

Subscribed and fully paid up share capital

5,50,00,000 (5,50,00,000) Equity shares of Rs. 1 each  550.00  550.00 
 550.00  550.00 

(Rs. In Lakhs)
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As at 
March 31, 2020

As at 
March 31, 2019

Notes:

(a) Reconciliation of number of equity shares subscribed

Balance as at the beginning of the year  5,50,00,000  5,50,00,000 

Add: Issued during the year  -    -   

Balance at the end of the year  5,50,00,000  5,50,00,000 

(b) There are no bonus shares, shares issued for consideration other than cash and shares bought back during 
the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date.	

(c) The Company has no Holding or Subsidiary Companies.
(d) Shareholders holding more than 5% of the total share capital

Name of the share holder
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

 No of 
shares 

%  of 

Holding
 No of 
shares 

%  of 

Holding

Sumanth Ramamurthi 94,40,530 17.16% 94,40,530 17.16%

Nikhil Govind Ramamurthi 40,00,000 7.27% 40,00,000 7.27%

Sanjay Krishna Ramamurthi 40,00,000 7.27% 40,00,000 7.27%

Super Farm Products (P) Limited 28,45,914 5.17% 28,45,914 5.17%

(e) Rights, preferences and restrictions in respect of equity shares issued by the Company

The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ̀  1 each. The equity shares of the company 
having par value of ` 1/- rank pari-passu in all respects including voting rights and entitlement to dividend.

17 Other Equity

General reserve  8,666.85  8,666.85 

Securities Premium Reserve  1,487.50  1,487.50 

Capital Reserve  51.02  51.02 

Other comprehensive income  501.95  600.55 

Retained earnings  69.41  1,199.67 
 10,776.73  12,005.60 

a) 	 General reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year  8,666.85  8,666.85 
	 Additions during the year  -    -   
	 Transfer of General Reserve on account of merger

Balance at the end of the year  8,666.85  8,666.85 
b) 	 Securities Premium Reserve

Balance at the beginning and end of the year  1,487.50  1,487.50 

(Rs. In Lakhs)
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As at 
March 31, 2020

As at 
March 31, 2019

c) 	 Capital Reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year  51.02  51.02 

Add: Transfer of capital reserve on account of merger  -    -   

Balance at the end of the year  51.02  51.02 
d)    Other comprehensive income

Balance at the beginning of the year  600.55  (72.75)

Additions/(deletions) during the year  (98.60)  673.30 

Balance at the end of the year  501.95  600.55 
e) 	 Retained earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year  1,199.67  2,802.25 

Net profit/(loss) for the period  (1,130.26)  (1,602.57)

Transfers to General Reserve  -    -   

Balance at the end of the year  69.41  1,199.67 
18 Long Term Borrowings

From Banks *  87.56  852.20 

Less : Current maturities due within 1 year (refer note 24 below)  87.56  672.45 
 -    179.75 

*	 Also refer note 48 for terms and conditions and security details
19 Provisions (Non -current)

Provision for Employee Benefits

Gratuity  490.48  655.31 
 490.48  655.31 

20 Deferred Tax Liability - Net *

*	 Since the Company has unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward losses as per taxation losses, it has 
scaled down the recognition of deferred tax asset to the extent that it matches with the aggregate deferred 
tax liabilities.

21 Other non-current Liabilities

Rental deposits collected from tenants  182.18  170.98 
 182.18  170.98 

(Rs. In Lakhs)



102

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

As at 
March 31, 2020

As at 
March 31, 2019

22 Current liabilities - Financial Liabilities: Borrowings *

Secured

Loans repayable on demand

	 From Banks  3,084.66  3,749.56 

Unsecured

Loan from Directors  483.00  483.00 

 3,567.66  4,232.56 

* Also refer note 49 for terms and conditions and security details

23 Trade payables

Trade payables *

i) 	 Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises; and  4.10  31.33 

ii)	 Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small 
enterprises

 6,282.88  6,619.54 

 6,286.99  6,650.87 

* 	Refer Note no. 51 for related party balances

* 	Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified 
on the basis of information collected by the management represents the principal amount payable to these 
enterprises. There are no interest due and outstanding as at the reporting date. Please refer note no. 43 
forming part of the financial statements

24 Other current liabilities

Current maturities of long term debt

From Banks  87.56  672.45 

Advance from customers  217.84  265.17 

Employee payables  253.33  368.15 

Statutory dues payable  79.90  41.33 

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings  60.92  61.19 

Advances received towards Non-current assets held for sale*  176.61  3,967.97 

Other payables  260.09  106.21 

 1,136.25  5,482.47 

* refer Note No. 46 for details
25 Provisions (Current)

Provision for gratuity  110.14  157.40 
 110.14  157.40 

(Rs. In Lakhs)
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Year ended  
March 31, 2020

 Year ended  
March 31, 2019

26 Revenue from operations

Sale of Products

Domestic  13,202.06  17,511.60 

Export  755.30  3,059.78 

Sale of services - Design job work  547.10  88.75 

Other Operating Revenue [refer note 26 (a) below]  56.16  152.10 
 14,560.63  20,812.23 

26 (a)	 Other Operating Revenue

Export Incentives  -    40.45 

Others  56.16  111.65 
 56.16  152.10 

27 Other income

Interest Income [refer note 27 (a) below}  29.84  33.08 

Other non-operating Income  [refer note 27 (b) below}  413.56  117.04 
 443.40  150.12 

27 (a)	 Interest Income

Interest on Electricity Deposits  14.79  20.38 

Other interest receipts  15.05  12.70 
 29.84  33.08 

27 (b)	 Other non-operating Income

Rent Receipts  384.87  70.68 

Exchange Gain (Net)  15.54  -   

Other income/write backs  13.15  21.78 

Agricultural Income (Net)  -    24.59 
 413.56  117.04 

28 Cost of Materials consumed

Opening inventory of raw materials  493.22  460.39 

Add : Purchases  8,093.06  14,363.05 

Less : Closing inventory of raw materials  353.44  493.22 
 8,232.84  14,330.21 

(Rs. In Lakhs)
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Year ended  
March 31, 2020

 Year ended  
March 31, 2019

Cost of material consumed comprises of

Cotton  8,232.84  14,330.21 

Resin and additives  -    -   

Steel Reinforcement  -    -   

Profiles and other accessories for doors and windows  -    -   
 8,232.84  14,330.21 

29 Changes in inventories of work-in-progress, stock in trade 
and finished goods

Opening Balance

Work-in-progress  483.91  624.94 

Finished goods  1,335.06  523.94 

Stock in trade  -    1.00 

Waste  42.89  55.62 
 1,861.87  1,205.50 

Closing Balance

Work-in-progress  202.18  483.91 

Finished goods  520.90  1,335.06 

Stock in trade  -    -   

Waste  30.82  42.89 
 753.90  1,861.87 

Changes in inventories  (1,107.96)  656.37 
30 Power and Fuel

Power and Fuel  2,302.02  2,578.46 
 2,302.02  2,578.46 

31 Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus  2,069.96  2,720.02 

Contribution towards:

Provident Fund  105.45  125.04 

Super Annuation Fund  1.08  1.42 

Gratuity Fund  84.26  136.50 

Staff welfare expenses  226.91  332.46 
 2,487.66  3,315.44 

(Rs. In Lakhs)
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Year ended  
March 31, 2020

 Year ended  
March 31, 2019

32 Finance Cost

Interest on borrowings  837.02  1,199.82 

Interest to others  43.48  65.81 
 880.50  1,265.63 

33 Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  389.56  408.93 

Amortization of Intangible assets  -    0.22 
 389.56  409.15 

34 Other expenses

Stores and spares consumed  555.30  755.58 

Repairs and Maintenance

Building  43.66  28.93 

Machinery  162.29  234.87 

Others  22.46  36.75 

Processing charges  2.10  1.66 

Selling Expenses  131.50  363.70 

Insurance  17.68  28.47 

Postage, telegram and printing charges  16.79  24.29 

Travelling expenses  57.57  73.63 

Bank Charges  104.14  107.40 

Rates and Taxes  128.28  44.20 

Professional and Consultancy Charges  53.01  48.82 

Auditors' Remuneration  8.24  7.63 

Director's Sitting Fees  3.72  5.84 

Exchange Loss (Net)  -    41.66 

Others  130.98  96.97 
 1,437.74  1,900.39 

Auditors' Remuneration

 As Auditor  4.00  4.00 

 Tax Audit Fee  1.00  1.00 

 Others  3.24  2.63 
 8.24  7.63 

(Rs. In Lakhs)
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Year ended  
March 31, 2020

 Year ended  
March 31, 2019

35 Exceptional items

Inventory Loss Due to Fire Accident  -    (19.50)

Provision for expected credit losses  (184.73)  -   

Profit/(loss) on sale of assets - Net  888.73  753.97 

 704.00  734.47 
36 Income tax expense

(a)	 Income tax expense

Current tax

	 Current tax on profits for the year  -    -   
	 Total current tax expense  -    -   
Deferred tax

	 Reversal of deferred tax assets of earlier years  -    -   
	 Total deferred tax expense/(benefit)  -    -   
Income tax expense  -    -   

b)	 The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled 
to the accounting profit as follows:

Profit before tax from continuing operations  (1,130.26)  (1,446.09)

Income tax expense calculated at 26.0% (2018-19: 26.0%)  -    -   

Effect of carried forward losses not recognexpenses that are 
not deductible in determining taxable profit

 -    -   

Income tax expense  -    -   
c)	  Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income

Deferred tax

Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation  -    -   

Total income tax recognised in other comprehensive income  -    -   

(Rs. In Lakhs)
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d) 	 Movement of deferred tax expense during the year ended March 31, 2020

Deferred tax (liabilities)/assets 
in relation to

Opening 
balance

Recognised 
in profit or 

loss

Recognised 
in Other 

comprehensive 
income 

Closing 
balance

Property, plant, and equipment 
and Intangible Assets

 -    -    -    -   

Expenses allowable on payment 
basis under the Income Tax Act

 -    -    -    -   

Other temporary differences  -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -

MAT Credit entitlement  -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -

d) 	 Movement of deferred tax expense during the year ended March 31, 2019

Deferred tax (liabilities)/assets 
in relation to

Opening 
balance

Recognised 
in profit or 

loss

Recognised 
in Other 

comprehensive 
income 

Closing 
balance

Property, plant, and equipment 
and Intangible Assets

 -    -    -    -   

Expenses allowable on payment 
basis under the Income Tax Act

 -    -    -    -   

Other temporary differences  -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -

MAT Credit entitlement  -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -

f) 	 Unused tax credits

The Company has unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward losses under the Income Tax Act, 1961. 
The Company has scaled down the recognition of deferred tax asset to the extent that it matches with 
the aggregate deferred tax liabilities. At the end of each reporting period, the Company reassesses 
unrecognised deferred tax assets. The Company recognises a previously unrecognised deferred tax asset 
to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be 
recovered.

(Rs. In Lakhs)
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Year ended  
March 31, 2020

 Year ended  
March 31, 2019

37 Earnings per share

Profit/(Loss) for the year (Rs. in lakhs)  (1,130.26)  (1,602.57)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding  5,50,00,000  5,50,00,000 

Basic earnings per share (Rs)  (2.06)  (2.91)

Diluted earnings per share (Rs)  (2.06)  (2.91)
38 Earnings in foreign currency

FOB value of exports  755.10  3,010.57 
 755.10  3,010.57 

39 Expenditure in foreign currency

Foreign Travel  0.56  4.47 

Commission  13.32  21.03 

Others  1.73  4.58 
 15.61  30.08 

40 Value of Imports (on C.I.F basis)

Raw Materials  163.13  372.09 

Components and spares  0.53  53.47 
 163.66  425.56 

41	 Value of  imported and indigenous Raw materials, Packing materials consumed and Consumable 
Spares during the financial year and the percentage of each to the total consumption		

Particulars
Year ended March 31, 2020 Year ended March 31, 2019

 Value Percentage (%)  Value Percentage (%)

Value of raw materials consumed

Imported  1,315.01  15.97  439.01  3.06

Indigenous  6,917.84  84.03  13,891.20  96.94
 8,232.84  100.00  14,330.21  100.00

Value of Stores and Spares Consumed

Imported  -    -    51.57  6.82

Indigenous  555.30  100.00  704.01  93.18
 555.30  100.00  755.58  100.00

(Rs. In Lakhs)
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42	 Commitments and contingent liability

Particulars
Year ended  

March 31, 2020
 Year ended  

March 31, 2019
Contingent Liability *

Bank Guarantees  30.00  -   

Bills discounted with company's bankers  -    353.26 

Disputed demands from Income tax authorities  523.74  523.74 

Disputed excise duty liability  65.18  65.18 

Disputed sales tax liability  594.96  594.96 
Capital Commitments

Estimated amount of investments remaining to be executed on 
capital account and not provided for Tangible assets

 180.30  57.01 

* The management believes, based on internal assessment and / or legal advice, that the probability of an 
ultimate adverse decision and outflow of resources of the company is not probable and accordingly, no 
provision for the same is considered necessary.

43	 Disclosures required by the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development (MSMED) Act, 2006 
as amended are as under:

Particulars
Year ended  

March 31, 2020
 Year ended  

March 31, 2019

(a)	 The principal amount remaining unpaid at the end of the year  4.10  31.33 

(b) 	The delayed payments of principal amount paid beyond the 
appointed date during the year

 -    -   

(c) 	 Interest actually paid under Section 16 of MSMED Act  -    -   

(d) 	Normal Interest due and payable during the year, for all the 
delayed payments, as per the agreed terms

 -   

(e) 	Total interest accrued during the year and remaining unpaid  -    -   

* This information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of 
information available with the Company.

(Rs. In Lakhs)
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44	 Operating Segments

	 The Company’s main business segment is “Textile” while the other segment does not meet the reportable 
segment thresholds given in Ind AS 108 “Operating Segments” and hence included under “Others”	

Particulars
Year ended  

March 31, 2020
 Year ended  

March 31, 2019
Segment Revenue

a) 	 Textiles  4,198.84  20,812.23 

b) 	 Others  -    -   

Revenue from operations (Net)  4,198.84  20,812.23 
Segment Results

Profit (+) / Loss (-) before tax and finance cost

a) 	 Textiles  (249.77)  (180.46)

b) 	 Others  -    -   

Total  (249.77)  (180.46)

Add/ Less :  Finance Cost  880.50  1,265.63 

Profit /(Loss) from continuing operations  (1,130.26)  (1,446.09)

Profit/(Loss) from discontinued operations*  -    (156.48)

Profit Before Tax  (1,130.26)  (1,602.57)
Segment Assets

a) 	 Textiles  23,100.44  30,084.95 

b) 	 Others  -    -   

c) 	 Other unallocable corporate assets  -    -   
Total assets  23,100.44  30,084.95 
Segment Liabilities

a) 	 Textile operations  11,773.70  17,529.35 

b) 	 Others  -    -   

c) 	 Other unallocable corporate liabilities  -    -   
Total liabilities  11,773.70  17,529.35 
Capital Employed (Segment assets-Segment liabilities)

a) 	 Textiles  11,326.73  12,555.60 

b) 	 Others  -    -   
Total capital employed in segments  11,326.73  12,555.60 

Unallocable corporate assets less corporate liabilities  -    -   
Total Capital Employed  11,326.73  12,555.60 

(Rs. In Lakhs)
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Particulars
Year ended  

March 31, 2020
 Year ended  

March 31, 2019
Information relating to geographical areas

(a) 	Revenue from external customers

India  13,749.17  17,600.35 

Rest of the world  755.30  3,059.78 

Total  14,504.47  20,660.13 
(b) 	Non current assets

	 The manufacturing facilities of the Company are situated in India and no non-current assets are held 
outside India.

(c) 	 Information about major customers

Number of external customers each contributing more than 
10% of total revenue

 3  -   

Total revenue from the above customers (Rs. in lakhs)  7,802  -   

45	  Operating lease arrangements (as lessor)

	 The Company has given certain properties on operating lease arrangements. The leases are cancellable at the 
option of either party to lease and may be renewed based on mutual agreement of the parties. The total lease 
income recognised on such contracts for the year is Rs. 384.87 Lakhs (Previous year Rs. 70.68 Lakhs).

46	 Note on Non-current Assets held for sale and discontinued operations

(a) 	Note on Non-current Asset held for sale

	 During the year, the Company has reclassified a portion of factory land and machinery held at Hindupur, 
Andrapradesh under “Non-current assets held for sale” in Note no. 14 of the financial statements to the 
extent of Rs. 1,102.01 lakhs which had been earlier included in Note no. 4 of the financial statements as 
required under Ind AS 105 (Non current Assets held for sale and discontinued operations) of Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 specified as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 as 
amended from time to time.

(b) 	Note on discontinued operations

	 During the previous year ended March 31, 2019, the company has permanently suspended the operations 
of Super SARA unit at Hindupur, Andhrapradesh and UPVC WINDOWS & PROFILES units at Coimbatore, 
Tamilnadu and accordinlgy has reported the losses arised out of these units aggregating to Rs.156.48 lakhs 
in its Statement of Profit and Loss under Profit/loss from Discontinued Operations above as required under 
Ind AS 105 (Non current Assets held for sale and discontinued operations) of Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015 specified as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 as amended from time to time. 
In addition to above, the Company has done the Impairment testing of all its assets pertaining to Discontinued 
Operations and wherever it deems fit has impaired such assets that are no longer cash generating in 
nature which are forming part of losses from discontinued operations as classified in Statement of Profit 
and loss above.

(Rs. In Lakhs)
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47	 Financial Instruments

	 Capital management

	 The Company manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Company will be able to continue as going 
concern, while maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

	 The Company determines the amount of capital required on the basis of annual operating plans and long-term 
product and other strategic investment plans. The funding requirements are met through equity, long-term 
borrowings and other short-term borrowings.

	 For the purposes of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued capital, share premium and all 
other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders.

Year ended  
March 31, 2020

 Year ended  
March 31, 2019

Gearing Ratio:

Debt  -    179.75 

Less: Cash and bank balances  10.21  14.97 

Net debt  (10.21)  164.78 

Total equity  11,326.73  12,555.60 

Net debt to equity ratio (%) -0.09% 1.31%
Categories of Financial Instruments

Financial assets

a. 	 Measured at amortised cost

Other non-current financial assets  268.83  349.72 

Trade receivables  975.19  1,073.24 

Cash and cash equivalents  10.21  14.97 

Other financial assets  222.38  471.58 
b. 	 Mandatorily measured at fair value through profit  

or loss (FVTPL)

Investments  1,327.05  1,327.05 

Derivative instruments  -    -   
Financial liabilities

a. 	 Measured at amortised cost

Borrowings (short term)  3,567.66  4,232.56 

Trade payables  -    -   
b. 	 Mandatorily measured at fair value through profit  

or loss (FVTPL)

Derivative instruments  -    -   

(Rs. In Lakhs)
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Financial risk management objectives

The treasury function provides services to the business, co-ordinates access to domestic and international financial 
markets, monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations through internal risk reports which 
analyse exposures by degree and magnitude of risks. These risks include market risk (including currency risk, 
interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Company seeks to minimise the effects of these risks by using natural hedging financial instruments and 
forward contracts to hedge risk exposures. The use of financial derivatives is governed by the Company’s policies 
approved by the board of directors, which provide written principles on foreign exchange risk, the use of financial 
derivatives, and the investment of excess liquidity. The Company does not enter into or trade financial instruments, 
including derivative financial instruments, for speculative purposes.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk of any loss in future earnings, in realizable fair values or in future cash flows that may result 
from a change in the price of a financial instrument. The Company’s activities expose it primarily to the financial risks 
of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. The Company actively manages its currency and 
interest rate exposures through its finance division and uses derivative instruments such as forward contracts and 
currency swaps, wherever required, to mitigate the risks from such exposures. The use of derivative instruments is 
subject to limits and regular monitoring by appropriate levels of management.

Foreign currency risk management

The Company undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currencies; consequently, exposures to exchange 
rate fluctuations arise. The Company actively manages its currency rate exposures through a centralised treasury 
division and uses natural hedging principles to mitigate the risks from such exposures. The use of derivative 
instruments, if any, is subject to limits and regular monitoring by appropriate levels of management.

Forward foreign exchange contracts

It is the policy of the company to enter into forward foreign exchange contracts to cover (a) repayments of specific 
foreign currency borrowings; (b) the risk associated with anticipated sales and purchase transactions out to 6 
months within 50% to 70% of the exposure generated.

Disclosure of hedged and unhedged foreign currency exposure

The carrying amounts of the Company’s foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at 
the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Currency

Liabilities Assets Net overall 
exposure on the  
currency - net 
assets / (net 
liabilities)

Gross 
exposure

Exposure 
hedged using 
derivatives

Net liability 
exposure on 
the currency

Gross 
exposure

Exposure 
hedged using 
derivatives

Net asset 
exposure on 
the currency

As on March 31, 2020

USD 6,519 -   6,519 -   -   -   (6,519)

In INR (` In lacs) 4.68 -   4.68 -   -   -   (4.68)

As on March 31, 2019

USD 2,26,878 -   2,26,878.00 2,61,806 -   2,61,806 34,928 

In INR (` In lacs) 165.76 -   165.76 182.83 -   182.83 17.07 

(Rs. In Lakhs)
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Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

Movement in the functional currencies of the various operations of the Company against major foreign currencies 
may impact the Company’s revenues from its operations. Any weakening of the functional currency may impact the 
Company’s cost of imports and cost of borrowings and consequently may increase the cost of financing the Company’s 
capital expenditures. The foreign exchange rate sensitivity is calculated for each currency by aggregation of the net 
foreign exchange rate exposure of a currency and a simultaneous parallel foreign exchange rates shift in the foreign 
exchange rates of each currency by 2%, which represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible 
change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated 
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the period end for a 2% change in foreign currency rates.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk because 
the exposure at the end of the reporting period does not reflect the exposure during the year.

Interest rate risk management

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk because it borrow funds at both fixed and floating interest rates. The 
risk is managed by the Company by maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and floating rate borrowings and 
by the use of interest rate swap contracts. Hedging activities are evaluated regularly to align with interest rate views 
and defined risk appetite, ensuring the most cost-effective hedging strategies are applied. Further, in appropriate 
cases, the Company also effects changes in the borrowing arrangements to convert floating interest rates to fixed 
interest rates.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for both derivatives 
and non-derivative instruments at the end of the reporting period. For floating rate liabilities, the analysis is prepared 
assuming the amount of the liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period was outstanding for the whole 
year. A 25 basis point increase or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management 
personnel and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

The 25 basis point interest rate changes will impact the profitability by INR 18 Lakhs for the year (Previous INR 20 
Lakhs)

Credit risk management

Credit risk arises when a customer or counterparty does not meet its obligations under a customer contract or 
financial instrument, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities 
primarily trade receivables and from its financing/ investing activities, including deposits with banks, mutual fund 
investments, investments in debt securities and foreign exchange transactions. The Company has no significant 
concentration of credit risk with any counterparty.

Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure is the 
total of the carrying amount of balances with banks, short term deposits with banks, trade receivables, margin 
money and other financial assets excluding equity investments.

(a)	 Trade Receivables

	 Trade receivables are consisting of a large number of customers. The Company has credit evaluation policy for each 
customer and, based on the evaluation, credit limit of each customer is defined. Wherever the Company assesses 
the credit risk as high, the exposure is backed by either bank, guarantee/letter of credit or security deposits.

(Rs. In Lakhs)
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	 The Company does not have higher concentration of credit risks to a single customer. As per simplified 
approach, the Company makes provision of expected credit losses on trade receivables using a provision 
matrix to mitigate the risk of default in payments and makes appropriate provision at each reporting date 
wherever outstanding is for longer period and involves higher risk.

(b) 	Investments, Derivative Instruments, Cash and Cash Equivalents and Bank deposits

	 Credit Risk on cash and cash equivalents, deposits with the banks/financial institutions is generally low as the 
said deposits have been made with the banks/financial institutions, who have been assigned high credit rating 
by international and domestic rating agencies.

	 Credit Risk on Derivative Instruments is generally low as the Company enters into the Derivative Contracts with 
the reputed Banks.

	 Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved Financial Institutions/ Counterparty. The Company 
has standard operating procedures and investment policy for deployment of surplus liquidity, which allows 
investment in debt securities and mutual fund schemes of debt and arbitrage categories and restricts the 
exposure in equity markets.

Offsetting related disclosures

Offsetting of cash and cash equivalents to borrowings as per the consortium agreement is available only to the 
bank in the event of a default. Company does not have the right to offset in case of the counter party’s bankruptcy, 
therefore, these disclosures are not required.

Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company cannot meet its financial obligations. The objective of liquidity risk 
management is to maintain sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are available for use as per requirements. The 
Company invests its surplus funds in bank fixed deposit and mutual funds, which carry minimal mark to market 
risks. The Company also constantly monitors funding options available in the debt and capital markets with a view 
to maintaining financial flexibility.

Liquidity tables

The following tables detail the Company’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities 
with agreed repayment periods. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial 
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Company can be required to pay.

Due in 1st year 
Due in 2nd to 

5th year 
Due after 5th 

year 
Carrying 
amount

March 31, 2020

Trade payables 6,286.99 -   -   6,286.99
Borrowings (including interest accrued 
thereon up to the reporting date)

148.48 -   -   148.48

6,435.47 -   -   6,435.47

March 31, 2019

Trade payables  6,650.87  -    -    6,650.87 
Borrowings (including interest accrued 
thereon up to the reporting date)

 733.64  179.75  -    913.40 

 7,384.52  179.75  -    7,564.27 

(Rs. In Lakhs)
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Year ended  
March 31, 2020

 Year ended  
March 31, 2019

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not 
measured at fair value (but fair value disclosures are required):	

Nil Nil

48	 Terms and conditions of long term loans taken from banks	

	 Details of Security of Long term Borrowings	

	 The Term loan from SBI is secured by:	

(a) 	First Charge over Fixed Assets purchased out of Bank finance.   

(b) 	Collateral First Paripassu charge over the entire of the company (excluding fixed assets charged term loan 
of SBI).

(c) 	 Personal Guarantee from promoter director”	 The term loans are repayable in balance 4 installments upto 
July 2020 on monthly basis which carry an interest rate of 10.75 % as on the date of balance sheet	

49	 Terms and conditions of short term loans taken from banks Working capital loan from banks are 
secured by:

(a) 	Pari-passu  first charge on entire current assets of the Company including hypothication of Stocks of RM, 
SIP,FG, receivables and other current assets of the company.

(b) 	Second pari-passu charge on entire fixed assets of the company 

	 Working capital loans are payable on demand and carries interest rate for cash credit and packing credit 
ranging from 10.75% to 13.60%

50	  Retirement benefit plans

	 Defined contribution plans

	 In accordance with Indian law, eligible employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits in respect of 
provident fund and super annuation fund, a defined contribution plan, in which both employees and the Company 
make monthly contributions at a specified percentage of the covered employees’ salary. The contributions, as 
specified under the law, are made to the Provident Fund.

	 The total expense recognised in profit or loss of Rs.106.53 Lakhs (for the year ended March 31, 2019: Rs. 126.46 
Lakhs) represents contribution paid to these plans by the Company at rates specified in the rules of the plan.

	 Defined benefit plans

(a) 	Gratuity

	 Gratuity is payable as per Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972.  In terms of the same, gratuity is computed by 
multiplying last drawn salary (basic salary including dearness Allowance if any) by completed years of 
continuous service with part thereof in excess of six months and again by 15/26.  The Act provides for a 
vesting period of 5 years for withdrawal and retirement and a monetary ceiling on gratuity payable to an 
employee on separation, as may be prescribed under the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, from time to time.  
However, in cases where an enterprise has more favourable terms in this regard the same has been adopted.

	 These plans typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as: investment risk, interest rate risk and 
salary risk.

(Rs. In Lakhs)
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Investment risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount 
rate determined by reference to the market yields on government bonds denominated 
in Indian Rupees. If the actual return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a 
plan deficit.

Interest risk A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability. However, this will 
be partially offset by an increase in the return on the plan’s debt investments.

Longevity risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to 
the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants both during and after their 
employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase 
the plan’s liability.

Salary risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to 
the future salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan 
participants will increase the plan’s liability.

	 The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:

Year ended  
March 31, 2020

 Year ended  
March 31, 2019

Discount Rate 6.35% p.a 7.57% p.a

Rate of increase in compensation level 2.50% p.a 2.50% p.a

Rate of Return on Plan Assets 7.70% p.a 7.70% p.a

Attrition rate 1.00% p.a 1.00% p.a

	 The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, 
seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

	 Amounts recognised in total comprehensive income in respect of these defined benefit plans are 
as follows:

Year ended  
March 31, 2020

 Year ended  
March 31, 2019

Current service cost  34.19  26.91 

Net interest expense  48.95  60.26 

Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net 
interest expense)

 1.06  (8.20)

Components of defined benefit costs recognised in profit or loss  84.20  78.98 

Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability comprising:

Actuarial (gains)/losses recognised during the period  98.67  57.52 

Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other 
comprehensive income

 98.67  57.52 

 182.86  136.50 

(Rs. In Lakhs)
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i) 	 The current service cost and the net interest expense for the year are included in the ‘employee 
benefits expense’ in profit or loss.

ii) 	 The remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability is included in other comprehensive income.

	 Amounts recognised in total comprehensive income in respect of these defined benefit plans are 
as follows:

Year ended  
March 31, 2020

 Year ended  
March 31, 2019

Present value of defined benefit obligation  610.52  834.41 

Fair value of plan assets  (9.90)  (21.70)

Net liability/ (asset) arising from defined benefit obligation  600.62  812.71 

Funded  9.90  21.70 

Unfunded  590.72  791.01 
 600.62  812.71 

The above provisions are reflected under 'Provision for employee benefits- gratuity' as per details 
below

Long term provisions (refer note 19) 490.48 655.31

Short term provisions (refer note 25) 110.14 157.40
600.62 812.71

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation in the current year were as follows:

Opening defined benefit obligation  834.41  874.02 

Current service cost  34.19  26.91 

Interest cost  48.95  60.26 

Actuarial (gains) /losses  98.60  55.92 

Benefits paid  (405.63)  (182.71)

Others  -    -   

Closing defined benefit obligation  610.52  834.41 

Movements in the fair value of the plan assets in the current year were as follows:

Opening fair value of plan assets  21.70  197.81 

Fair Value of Plan Assets of Subsidiary company taken over

Return on plan assets  (1.06)  8.20 

Contributions  394.95  -   

Benefits paid  (405.63)  (182.71)

Actuarial gains/(loss)  (0.07)  (1.59)

Others  -    -   

Closing fair value of plan assets  9.90  21.70 

(Rs. In Lakhs)
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	 Sensitivity analysis

	 In view of the fact that the Company for preparing the sensitivity analysis considers the present value of the 
defined benefit obligation which has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of 
the reporting period, which is the same as that applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation liability 
recognised in the balance sheet.

(b) 	Compensated absences

	 The leave scheme is a final salary defined benefit plan, that provides for a lumpsum payment at the time 
of separation; based on scheme rules the benefits are calculated on the basis of last drawn salary and the 
leave count at the time of separation and paid as lumpsum.

 	 The expected cost of accumulating compensated absences is determined by actuarial valuation performed 
by an independent actuary at each balance sheet date using projected unit credit method on the additional 
amount expected to be paid / availed as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the 
balance sheet date. Expense recognised during the year is Rs.5.46 Lakhs (previous year Rs. 7.99 Lakhs)

	 The design entitles the following risk

Interest rate risk The defined benefit obligation calculated uses a discount rate based on government 
bonds. If bond yields fall, the defined benefit obligation will tend to increase.

Salary inflation risk Higher than expected increases in salary will increase the defined benefit obligation.

Demographic risk This is the risk of volatility of results due to unexpected nature of decrements that 
include mortality attrition, disability and retirement. The effects of these decrement 
on the DBO depends upon the combination salary increase, discount rate, and 
vesting criteria and therefore not very straight forward. It is important not to 
overstate withdrawal rate because the cost of retirement benefit of a short caring 
employees will be less compared to long service employees.

51	 Related party disclosures

(a) 	Name of related party and nature of relationship

	 Key management personnel

Sumanth Ramamurthi Executive Chairman & Managing Director

A R Balasundharam Non-Executive & Non-Independent Director  
(resigned on 31st March 2020)

B.Sathyanarayana Reddy Chief Financial Officer

G.K.Narmatha Company Secretary
Other Enterprises with which promoter has significant influence

Elgi Electric and Industries Limited

Super Sara Textiles Limited

Sara Elgi Industries Limited

Super Farm Products (P) Limited

Sara Elgi Envirotech LLP
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b) 	 Transactions during the year

S. 
No

Nature of transactions
Year ended   

March 31, 2020
Year ended  

March 31, 2019

1 Others

Purchase of goods 977.06  1,820.31

Sale of Goods 149.57  644.27

Purchase of Fixed Assets  -    8.93

Sale of Fixed Assets  -    0.80

Service Charges Paid 0.32  0.35

Rent Received 18.63  17.70

Interest Expended  -    52.49

Other Expenses  -    5.20

Other Receipts 10.09  17.20

2 Sumanth Ramamurthi

Managerial Remuneration  48.00  48.00

Contribution to provident and other funds  2.88  2.88

Loan received  -    30.00

Interest Expended  58.12  56.92

3 A R Balasundharam 
(resigned on 31st  March 2020)

Professional Fees  18.00  18.00

4 A S Thirumoorthy 
(resigned on 31st May 2018)

Remuneration  -    9.68

Contribution to provident and other funds  -    0.58

5 B Sathyanarayana Reddy  
(Appointed on  09th February 2019)

Remuneration  15.44  1.28

Contribution to provident and other funds  0.22  0.02

6 G K Narmatha  
(Appointed on 14th September 2018)

Remuneration  4.67  2.17

Contribution to provident and other funds  0.20  0.11

(Rs. In Lakhs)
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S. 
No

Nature of transactions
Year ended   

March 31, 2020
Year ended  

March 31, 2019

7 Dhilip Kumar  
(Appointed on 28th July 2018) 
(resigned on 14th January 2019)

Remuneration  -    3.67

Contribution to provident and other funds  -    0.09

8 C Shankar  
(resigned on 2nd June 2018)

Remuneration  -    2.05

Contribution to provident and other funds  -    0.04

9 Ramaa Krishnakumar  
(resigned on 12th September 2018)

Remuneration  -    2.86

Contribution to provident and other funds  -    0.10

c) 	 Balance outstanding at the year end

Nature of transactions
Year ended   

March 31, 2020
Year ended  

March 31, 2019

Others

Elgi Electric and Industries Ltd

Amount outstanding at year end - Cr  1,287.29  1,301.57 

Amount outstanding at year end - Dr  -    -   

Super Farm Products Pvt Ltd

Amount outstanding at year end - Dr  -    -   

Amount outstanding at year end - Cr  5.85  117.51 

Sara Elgi Industries Ltd

Amount outstanding at year end - Dr  -    -   

Sumanth Ramamurthi

Amount outstanding at year end - Cr  483.00  483.00 

(Rs. In Lakhs)
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52	 SUBSEQUENT EVENT - IMPACT OF COVID-19

	 The SARS-CoV-2 virus responsible for COVID-19 continues to spread across the globe and India, which 
has contributed to a significant decline and volatility in global and Indian financial markets and a significant 
decrease in global and local economic activities. On March 11, 2020, the COVID-19 outbreak was declared 
a global pandemic by the World Health Organization. Numerous governments and companies, including the 
Bank,NBFC, have introduced a variety of measures to contain the spread of the virus. On March 24, 2020, 
the Indian government announced a strict 21-day lockdown which was further extended multiple times across 
the country to contain the spread of the virus. The extent to which the COVID-19 pandemic will impact on The 
Company operation will depend on future developments, which are highly uncertain, including, among other 
things, any new information concerning the severity of the COVID-19 pandemic.			 

	 Impact on the Company Operations

1. 	 The company has noticed significant drop in revenues, both domestic and export which has in turn led 
to reduction in production caused mainly due to grimming market conditions and marginal reduction in 
Industrial demand during Covid 19 pandemic situation peaking at the current situation.

2. 	 The company has also faced severe shortage in manpower owing to migrant workers not returning back 
from their respective hometowns/places which has in turn caused difficulty for the management to deliver 
the orders in hand in the current scenario.

G K Narmatha
Company Secretary

B Sathyanarayana Reddy 
Chief Financial Officer

Sumanth Ramamurthi 
Chairman and  
Managing Director 
DIN : 00002773

For and on behalf of the Board

For M/s Sethia, Prabhad Hegde & Co
Chartered Accountants

FRN 013367S

Timmayya Hegde
Partner, 

Membership No.226267

As per our report of even date attached

Coimbatore
27th June, 2020

B Lakshminarayana 
Director 
DIN : 00504396

Significant accounting policies and the accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

Bangalore
27th June, 2020
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